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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of
the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors’) of Flying Financial
Service Holdings Limited (the “Company’) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, (ii) there are no other matters the omission of
which would make any statement herein or this report misleading; and (iij) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEEHR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Weijing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Guo Chanjiao
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Vincent Cheng

Mr. Leung Po Hon (resigned on 19 November 2020)
Dr. Miao Bo

Mr. Hsu Tawei (appointed on 1 March 2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Chi Wing

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Zheng Weijing (resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (appointed on 26 March 2021)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zheng Weijing (resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (appointed on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Chow Chi Wing

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Vincent Cheng (Chairman)

Mr. Leung Po Hon (resigned on 19 November 2020)
Dr. Miao Bo

Mr. Hsu Tawei (appointed on 1 March 2021)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hsu Tawei (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Leung Po Hon (Chairman)
(resigned on 19 November 2020)

Mr. Zhang Gongjun

Dr. Miao Bo
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

NRIER(E)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zheng Weijing (Chairman)
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (Chairman)
(appointed on 26 March 2021)
Dr. Vincent Cheng
Mr. Leung Po Hon (resigned on 19 November 2020)
Dr. Miao Bo
Ms. Guo Chanjiao
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Hsu Tawei (appointed on 1 March 2021)

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Shenzhen Excellence Century Centre Branch
1/F, No. 3, Excellence Century Centre

Fuhua Three Road

Futian District

Shenzhen, China

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAW

Chiu & Partners

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1309, 13/F
Mirror Tower

61 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
NRIER(E)

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC")

18th Floor, Block C, Building 1
Shenzhen Software Industry Base
High-tech Industrial Park
Nanshan District

Shenzhen, China

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

(formerly known as SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited)
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www flyingfinancial hk

STOCK CODE

8030
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

2020 2019 Changes
—E-EF —E-NF )]
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥T R ARETT
OPERATING RESULTS R
Revenue Wz 19,721 104,390 -81.1%
Loss for the year attributable to KRR ANEIEFE
owners of the Company &1 (468,725) (673,713) -30.4%
Basic loss per share BREXERE RMB(27.07) cents  RMB(38.91) cents
AR¥(27.07) 7 AR®3E89) D -30.4%
FINANCIAL POSITION Bk OR
Total assets BEEELHE 394,665 854,816 -53.8%
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRBEEEEE 7,324 16,973 -56.8%
Net assets BEFHE 301,703 757,229 -60.2%
Dividends KRE
~ Interim dividend paid (per share) —BFHBRE () - -
— Proposed final dividend (per share) —REERRE (BR) - -
EHSBREZERERAR —ECEEER



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHRES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board") of Flying Financial Service

Holdings Limited (“Flying Financial” or the “Company”), | hereby report the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “reporting period”).

In 2020, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately RMB19.7
million, loss before income tax expenses amounted to approximately
RMB490.8 million, and loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB468.7 million. Throughout the year, the performance
of the Group was sluggish with a substantial loss in operating results, which
was firstly due to the severe decline in profit and valuation of the Group’s
investment in property development projects, which involved the continued
intensification of the state’s regulatory policies on the real estate industry
in China. Secondly, the discontinuation of the Group’s online financing
intermediary business in the fourth quarter of 2019 resulted in a significant
reduction in revenue from the financial service platform for the year. Thirdly,
the Group’s new business is still at an early stage and requires investment but
with limited contribution.

In 2020, due to the impact of the global pandemic, China's economy grew
slowly as it navigated through risks and challenges. After the imposition of
the “three red lines’, the real estate industry was under mounting pressure.
Although | believe the real estate industry is still the ballast and stabilizer of
China’s economy, the emphasis on the core regulatory policy of “housing for
living, not for speculation” makes the state’s efforts to curb asset bubbles and
prevent financial risks a top priority. This has prolonged the realisation of the
Group’s investment in property development projects, significantly reducing
their profitability.

In 2020, in view of the regulatory requirements for the internet finance
platform business in China, the Group has realised the strategic shift from
internet finance services platform to internet microfinance services platform.
Through our financial technology service platform, " FE B " the Group
has strategically cooperated with a number of enterprises and our business
has achieved certain results. We believe that, the development of the
internet microfinance business through the collaboration between * &
% %L " and internet microfinance companies will help the Company’s
operations to stabilize in the near future and help the Company transform.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FRBES(E)

In sum, 2020 is a year where the Group transformed and sought for new
development opportunities. Despite the setback in the Group’s business of
investment in property development projects, our internet microfinance
business and financial technology services platform have achieved a certain
degree of progress. We have also made progress in innovative businesses,
such as the construction of the service platform and system of medical
aesthetic team.

Looking ahead to 2021, we will remain to be committed to our positioning
as a financial services provider to empower the industry through financial
technology, enhance compliance management and risk control, and insist
on innovation and placing services as the priority. The Group operates its
business prudently and keeps introducing technologies to strengthen its
core advantages in financial technology services.

We seize opportunities amidst crisis and open up new horizons amidst
changes.

At last, on behalf of the Board, management and staff of the Group, | would
like to express my gratitude to all shareholders for their continued support.
By taking a pragmatic yet innovative approach, my colleagues and | will
stand shoulder to shoulder, rise to the challenge, forge ahead fearlessly, and
generate returns for our shareholders.

Zhang Gongjun
Chairman

31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has been committed to developing itself as an influential real
estate financial service provider in the PRC and has been putting great
efforts in providing financial services to the real estate sector for many
years. Leveraging on our experience and expertise in serving as leading real
estate developers, our service coverage has been expanded to developers
of different scales. We are honored to be able to fulfill the business needs of
our business partners and support their continuous growth. During the year,
the Group focused on the development of pipeline property development
projects and provided services to our partners with our experiences and
technologies through our financial service platform. Our core customer base
continued to expand. We strived to mitigate compliance risks and reduce
operating costs of the Group through business transformation, in order to
maintain stable growth and retain our strengths during the downward cycle
of the industry.

As at 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group, loss before income tax
expense and loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB19.7 million, RMB490.8 million and
RMB468.7 million, respectively. In 2020, performance of our investment
in property development projects was further adversely affected by the
cyclical downtrend of the real estate industry in the PRC, which resulted in
a significant decrease in related investment income, financial consultation
services income and fair value of the investments. Secondly, due to the
repayment abilities of the Group’s customers and business partners affected
by economic environment of the PRC, the Group had to make substantial
provision on loss allowance for the accounts receivables and other
receivables. In addition, the Group had faced unprecedented challenges,
including the China-USA trade war and the outbreak of coronavirus disease
(“COVID-19"). The Group'’s operation has been affected in certain ways due
to the travel restrictions, social distancing and quarantine measures in
connection with the outbreak of COVID-19, as the Group has been taking all
practicable measures to cope with the potential transmission of COVID-19 by
striving for the highest caution standard to protect the health and safety of
our staff, business partners and customers.

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB7.3 million, which represented a decrease
of 56.8% as compared to the previous year. The decrease was mainly due
to lack of sufficient operating income to meet the outgoing expenses
during the year. The Group recorded a net asset of RMB301.7 million,
which represented a decrease of approximately 60.2% as compared to
the previous year. The debt to equity ratio and gearing ratio of the Group
were approximately 5.2% and 4.0%, representing year-on-year increase of
approximately 3.3 percentage point and 2.3 percentage point, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

E 3 )

AEBEEINKSTEEZNEMES BIRT
B BENBEERMZF  ERRBRER
LA R ERMRMEE S - BFREEIRABET
ERRBETENFER - RPIREHBRERS
FBRUFHERBEBRHFERREMRBIIRE
AEBEAFERENZAHEFENYERRE
B IEESRHMETE/EIERHELITER
BMEAM RS - OB PRHERE - W BBEE
BEANTARERNEENS RER ML ZK
A UHETE MTEMERRSBENZERE

s ST b AL, B2
2 WEERE -

HE-_Z-_ZF+_A=1+—H KEHEBEK
ABARE197EEBIL  RATSHRAZ AIBELY
AREE408BEIL A AR HEAABEFEE
BHOARKE487BBIT —_S_Z2F rA5H
FEZIPERNMEMETE MTBHNFBEY
LY RYERREERRATE HEMNEE
WA~ B TS EE R RIS AR E QR FERIBR D o
FZ HARBMOEPREBBRANERENT
BB EIRIE 2 AR D RESRR R R E
fth FEYGRIEVE H KRB 1B - 1Eo - REE R
EERIFT A B kS, - BIEPEE B AR
RmER ((FEmA L) B3 - AEB —E R —
YR 1 THE B FE SRR I A B EHE - Ik A&
SREREZEREET  EXBHNEPHOER
Hee - FHilt - SIE AR B IRER S - #2352
PEEE AR R AR E R EEN TR o

HE-T-_ZTF+-_A=1+—H £AEEHES
MREEEBENARBIZEE L REFR
R 56.8% WA Y E B RN FARZ TR
EWANERNFZER - ~SESRSFEERA
RE301 78T REFRBTEA602% ° A
EEMNEBESLEEREEARBRED FILE52%
%40% RtH Rl EALBEED B R23EE

7 E o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group's “investment in property development projects” segment was an
extension of the Group’s financial solution provider business leveraging on
its experience in the financial services industry and also its understanding of
the operational environment of the real estate industry via the provision of
financial services to property developers of various sizes and other players
along the real estate development value chain or their stakeholders in prior
years.

Investment in property development projects was the main source of
revenue of the Group in the past few years. In this segment, the Group's
business and revenue mainly include investment income and financial
consultation services income.

Since 2018, regulatory authorities have tightened real estate policies to curb
asset bubbles and prevent financial risks and the principle of “houses are for
living in, not for speculation” ({1 %) has become the core direction of
public opinion of the industry. The real estate industry highly relies on assets
and the application of financial instruments and is materially affected by the
policies. In 2019, the real estate industry decelerated. There were policies
and regulations imposed by the China Banking and Insurance Regulation
Commission in second half of 2019 to further crackdown the financing
channels of property developers. In 2020, due to the impact of the global
pandemic, China’s economic grew slowed as it navigated through risks
and challenges. After the imposition of the "three red lines’, the real estate
industry was under mounting pressure. In order to cope with the impact of
the cyclical down trend of the real estate industry, the Group focused on the
development of pipeline property development projects in 2020. The Group
explored other business opportunities along the business value chain and
aimed to control business risks with prudent operation through reducing
cash expenditure relating to investment.

In the first half of 2020, with the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 in
the PRC, the majority of the construction and sale activities of the Group’s
property development projects were suspended and/or postponed. As
a result, revenue from the Group’s investments in property development
projects recorded a significant decline during the year and, due to the
expected delay in the cashflow derived from the sale activities of the Group's
property development projects and the less than expected repayment to
be received from the limited partnerships arising from certain disposal of
the equity interests in project companies, a significant fair value loss of the
relevant property investment projects was also recorded in 2020. In order to
cope with the impact of the cyclical downtrend of the real estate industry,
the Group focused on the development of pipeline property development
projects in 2020. For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
investment income generated from the property development projects
of the Group. The Group explored other business opportunities along the
business value chain and aimed to control business risks with prudent
operation through reducing cash expenditure relating to investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEF WD (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment in Property Development Projects
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of investment in property
development projects held by the Group amounted to approximately
RMB231.4 million.

Fin-tech Platform

In 2020, the Group has put great effort in transforming its internet finance
business segment and cooperated with internet small loan companies to
develop internet small loan business. The service of our financial technology
service platform, " [& B &L £ " was expanded to cover more property
developers. Leveraging on our experience and expertise of serving leading
property developers, we have fulfilled the business needs of many partners
and enabled the industry for further development. The financial technology
service platform has established comprehensive business process and
technology system covering customer acquisition, risk identification, risk
assessment, loan distribution channel, payment channel and big data
analysis through cooperating with Tencent Cloud and other licensed
institutions. Business needs of our partners can be fulfilled through quick
access to the technologies. The platform facilitates asset-light operation with
low risk through technology services and consolidates the position of the
Group as a real estate financial service provider and its original aspiration to
grow with core customers during the downward cycle of the industry.

With the impact of COVID-19, however, restrictions in travelling have
greatly slowed down the communication and cooperation with potential
customers, which hindered the development of the financial service
platform and affected the financial performance of this segment.

Provision of loan services, financial consultation
services, finance lease services

Under these two business segments, the Group provides short-term and
long-term financial consultation services, entrusted loans, pawn loans
and other loans to borrowers and financial institutions. The Group also
provides long-term finance lease services. The Group tailored different
types of financial products for its customers depending on their individual
circumstances and funding needs in order to resolve the financing needs of
the customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

To cope with the industry downturn of its principal business, the Group
further reduced its costs and strengthened its internal control. During the
year, through optimising human resources and streamlining organizational
structure of the Group, the number of staff of the Group decreased from 158
to 90 and the number of departments decreased from 14 to 9. The operation
efficiency and per capita efficiency were further enhanced. In addition, the
Group refined its business operation and improved its rules and regulations
after assessment and supervision of the internal control of various business
segments. Our internal control system was improved through supervising
the implementation of remedial measures for the loopholes found during
our inspection.

In general, the Group focused on its business and adhered to its prudent
approach in operation in 2020. Against the backdrop of cyclical downtrend
of the industry and the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group was determined to
focus on the development of pipeline projects and to build up its internal
strengths. All senior management members and our staff are confident and
expecting a prosperous future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB19.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
81.1% from approximately RMB104.4 million in the previous year, primarily
due to the effects of development progress of property development
projects and downward sales cycle. In the year under review, there were 12
property development projects.

In terms of revenue breakdown, revenue from financial consultation
services for the year under review amounted to approximately RMB1.2
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 96.2%.
Revenue from financial service platforms amounted to approximately
RMB15.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 21.0%. Revenue
from interest income and finance lease service income for the year under
review amounted to approximately RMB3.1 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 26.9%. For the year under review, there
were no investment income from property development projects (2019:
approximately RMB49.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Finance Costs

In the year under review, interest expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 83.8% to RMB1.2 million from RMB7.3 million in the previous
year, which mainly resulted from the decrease in bank borrowings and
corporate bond of the Group during the year.

Other Income/(Expenses), Net

The Group's other income/(expenses), net mainly comprised bad debts
written off of loans and accounts receivables, dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, fair value
gain/(loss) on investment properties, recovery of impairment on loans and
accounts receivables previously recognised, gain on disposal of a property,
plant and equipment, and bank interest income.

Administrative and Employee Benefit Expenses
Administrative and employee benefit expenses of the Group mainly
comprised salaries and employee benefits, rental expenses, and marketing
and advertising fees. In the year under review, administrative and employee
benefit expenses of the Group was approximately RMB53.9 million,
representing year-on-year decrease of 47.2%. The decrease was due to
implementation of cost control of the Group.

Fair Value Changes in Financial Assets

Under HKFRS 9, investments in the property development projects through
limited partnerships and the assets-backed securities of the Group are stated
at fair value and classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. The changes in fair values of these investments during the year of
approximately RMB362.3 million (2019: RMB522.7 million) was recognised as
fair value loss in profit or loss.

In particular, three limited partnerships in which the Group is one of the
limited partners have disposed of their respective equity interests in three
project companies during the year ended 31 December 2020 due to the
expected continuous delay in the construction and sale activities of the
relevant property development projects. Based on the latest information
available to the management of the Group, it is estimated that the
repayment to be received from the limited partnerships arising from such
disposals would be significantly less than that originally expected by the
Group. As such, a fair value loss of approximately RMB240.7 million was
recognised for the relevant property development projects during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Changes in Financial Assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group has withdrawn its equity interest in a limited
partnership which had invested in a property development project during
the year ended 31 December 2020, due to the expected continuous delay
in the construction and sale activities of the relevant property development
project. Based on the latest information available to the management of the
Group, the relevant property development project would incur a significant
loss, so the Group did not expect no any repayment to be received from the
project. As a result, a further fair value loss of approximately RMB144.4 million
was recognised for the relevant property development project during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Loss Allowance on Financial Assets

In the year under review, impairment loss on loans and accounts receivables
and other receivables aggregated approximately RMB89.5 million (2019:
approximately RMB108.3 million) due to the increase in credit risk of certain
customers.

Loss for the Year Attributable to the Owners of the
Company

In the year under review, loss attributable to the owners of the Company
was approximately RMB468.7 million (2019: RMB673.7 million), which was
primarily due to (i) lack of investment income from property development
projects and platform services income during the year, (i) fair value loss in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB362.3
million, and (iii) loss allowance on financial assets of approximately RMB89.5
million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank balances and cash amounted
to approximately RMB7.3 million (2019: approximately RMB17.0 million),
and the Group's borrowings amounted to approximately RMB15.7 million
(2019: approximately RMB14.4 million). The gearing ratio representing the
total borrowings of the Group divided by the total assets of the Group was
approximately 4.0% (2019: approximately 1.7%). As at 31 December 2020,
100% (2019: approximately 15.0%) of the Group’s borrowings would be
due within one year, while none (end of 2019: approximately 85.0%) of
the Group’s borrowings would be due after one year. As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s borrowings were denominated in RMB (2019: same), with
approximately 19.0% and 81.0% (2019: approximately 0% and 100%) of the
Group's borrowings carrying interests at fixed and floating rates, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB47.9 million (2019:
RMB49.1 million) were pledged for a bank borrowing.

The Directors considered that, in the foreseeable future, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations in full when
they fall due. In the year under review, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and
services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

Please also refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
contained in this annual report for further details of the Group’s
environmental performance and relationship with its employees, suppliers
and customers.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Over the past few years, the Group has experienced significant changes in
the political environment, including the increasingly stringent regulations
for the real estate industry in China, which have affected the valuation and
returns of the Group's property investment projects. There were also changes
in the relevant polices in the PRC in relation to internet finance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

BUSINESS OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Although the Group’s business was impacted by the political environment
in China, China’s economy is still on the upward trend. The Group has state-
issued licenses for pawnbroking, finance leasing and factoring, and we have
successfully cooperated with internet microfinance companies. In addition,
our well-connected corporate partners also have licenses for the disposal of
non-performing assets, insurance sales, and auction.

In the coming year, we will continue to have a mix of old and new businesses.
On one hand, we will continue to carry on the business of our financial
technology service platform, * & B %t £, which has been expanded for
further development. On the other hand, we will strive to explore new
businesses. Currently, we have chosen the high-end medical aesthetics
market segment in the comprehensive healthcare industry. With the
combination of our license advantages and existing clientele, we are making
steady progress and are looking forward to a good start. For financial services
in the real economy, we will focus on equipment and commaodity finance
leasing, which will be a good indication of the scale of our businesses.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks related to the Property Market in the PRC

The Group's investments in property development projects are largely
dependent on the performance of property market in the PRC. A number of
factors would affect the property market in the PRC, including changes in
governmental policies, legal environment, social economy and consumers’
confidence and preferences. Default on the part of the Group'’s business
partners in the property development projects may also have significant and
negative impact on the result of the Group’s investments.

The Group pays attention to and monitors closely the property development
projects to ensure smooth progress and the compliance of the terms and
conditions of the cooperation agreements by its business partners.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Transformation of the Financial Services Platform

The financial services platform of the Group has undergone strategic
transformation according to the requirements of relevant policies and
withdrew from the existing development businesses in an orderly and
compliant manner. The financial services platform of the Group has also
proactively cooperated with internet small loan platforms to develop
internet small loan business as part of the transformation, which might last
for a relatively longer period of time and be exposed to uncertainties such
as loss of customers, increased costs and change of policies. The Group
shall oversee the transformation dynamically and make timely adjustments
during the process in order to ensure the success of such transformation.

Risks related to Cyber Security

The Group handles significant amount of personal data and credit
information of its customers, which is susceptible to cyber threats. The
Group's operations, reputation and financial performance could be adversely
impacted if the Group suffers from cyber-attacks that disrupt its operations.

The Group makes extensive use of multiple channels to keep informed
of emerging cyber security threats to identify and implement measures
intended to mitigate the occurrence and/or consequences of such risks.

MAJOR INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, as one of the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, the Group continued to invest in property
development projects through investments in certain limited partnerships,
which engaged in business of property development in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED (&)

MAJOR INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group held investments in property development projects classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (“financial assets at
FVTPL") of approximately RMB231,351,000 as at 31 December 2020, which
individually constituted 10% or more of the total amount of the financial
assets at fair value (including financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income) as at 31 December

2020 and represented 5% or more of the total assets of the Group as at 31

December 2020. Further details are set out below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

MAJOR INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, for the remaining 7 investments in property
development projects, the ranges of:

- their fair values individually ranged from approximately nil to
RMB16,741,000;

- percentage to total amount of the financial assets of fair value
individually ranged from approximately 0% to 5.3%;

- percentage to total assets individually ranged from approximately 0%
to 4.2%.

Looking ahead, the Board is of the view that as a result of the PRC's
economy’s relatively rapid growth and greater demand for commodity
housing in the first and second-tier cities, the real estate industry is
expected to maintain a momentum of long- term development given its
indispensable role in the national economy. On the other hand, with the
control measures such as region-specific regulatory policies and category-
specific guidance implemented by the government, the real estate market
shall see its development pace slowed down for adjustment, which
intensified market segregation and accelerated consolidation of enterprises.

The Group had invested in property development projects (including urban
redevelopment projects) in, among others, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Fujian,
Xiangyang, Wuhan, Kunming, Guangdong and Chongging. The Group will
closely monitor the changes of policies and market dynamics in different
places and adjust the investment direction and strategies of the Group
in accordance with the characteristics of different places and projects in
due time. The Group is actively looking for investment and development
opportunities of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and is
committed to bringing the underlying value of the urban redevelopment
projects, with a view to securing the returns to the shareholders of the
Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED (&)

LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

m

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March
2021, a writ of civil summons have been issued against Mr. Zheng
Weijing (“Mr. Zheng"), Ms. Guo Chanjiao (“Ms. Guo”), two PRC
subsidiaries of the Company (namely, Qianhai Flying Financial PRC
Service (Shenzhen) Limited and Flying Investment Service (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) in October 2020 in relation to the repayment of
certain loans and interest accrued thereon. Pursuant to the Writ, (i) Mr.
Zheng was demanded for the repayment of an aggregate amount of
RMB16,306,300 (“Claimed Amount”), alleging to be the principal and
interest accrued thereon pursuant for a loan agreement in 2019; (ii)
Ms. Guo, the Company, two PRC subsidiaries of the Company and a
number of PRC companies independent to the Group were alleged
to be guarantors of the Claimed Amount under an guarantee in
2019 in favour of the claimant under the Writ to secure the Claimed
Amount. As of the date of this annual report, no judgement has been
concluded in respect of the writ. The Directors, taken advices from the
Group's PRC legal counsels, it is probable that the Group has to bear
the Claimed Amount accordingly, a provision loss of RMB16,306,300
has been provided for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As stated in the Company’s announcements dated 8 December 2020
and 26 March 2021, Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo, and three employees of the
Group have been held in custody since the evening of 7 December
2020 by the Nanshan Branch of the Shenzhen Public Security Bureau
(the “Bureau”) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") pending
investigation regarding certain suspected illegal absorption of public
deposits (collectively, the “Custodies”). The Custodies are related to
certain unsettled repayment funds (the "Unsettled Repayment Funds”)
in relation to the online financing intermediary business conducted by
a PRC subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet
Financial Services Corporation (“SZ Flying Internet Financial”), the
operation of which has already been ceased in the fourth quarter of
2019. As of the date of this annual report, the investigations regarding
suspected illegal absorption of public deposits by the Bureau is still
ongoing (the “Investigation”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED (&)

LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
(CONTINUED)

@

(Continued)

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2021,
certain assets of the Group had been seized by the Bureau during
the year ended 31 December 2020, including the Group’s investment
properties of approximately RMB47,870,000, unlisted equity securities
classified as financial assets at FVOCI of approximately RMB54,129,000
and the equity interests of the Group in certain property development
projects through limited partnerships in which the Group’s
investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
RMB128,838,000 (collectively, the “Seized Assets”). The Seized Assets
owned by several PRC subsidiaries of the Company which are subject
to certain guarantees (the “Guarantee Documents”) provided by these
PRC subsidiaries of the Company for the Unsettled Repayment Funds.
As mentioned in the same announcement, the Seized Assets were
pledged pursuant to the Guarantee Documents for the settlement of
the Unsettled Repayment Funds in November 2019.

Based on current information available and advices from the Group’s
PRC legal counsels, the Directors are view that the potential claims
might arise from the Unsettled Repayment Funds would be limited
to the Seized Assets under Guarantee Documents and assets owned
by SZ Flying Internet Financial mainly included (i) one of the Seized
Assets; (ii) amount due from group companies of approximately
RMB1,990,000 and (iii) and other assets of approximately RMB426,000
as at 31 December 2020. As the Investigation is still in progress and no
decision has been made by the court or Bureau, the Directors, taken
advices from the Group’s PRC legal counsels, are of the view that the
amount of the claims cannot be measured with sufficient reliability..

THE GROUP’S RESPONSE TO THE BASIS OF

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion”in the independent auditors’ report contained on
pages 106 to 111 of this annual report, the auditors of the Company (the
"Auditors”) did not express an audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 as a result of

certain matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED (&)

THE GROUP’S RESPONSE TO THE BASIS OF
DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

The following paragraphs set out the Group'’s response to the basis of
disclaimer of opinion:

(i)

(ii)

Scope limitation - valuation of investments in
limited partnerships

In the absence of the relevant supporting documents, including the
correspondences with and the financial information of the limited
partnerships, which formed the basis for the preparation of the
discounted cash flow in measuring the fair value of investments in
the limited partnerships as at 31 December 2020, the Auditors are of
the view that they have not been provided with sufficient evidence to
satisfy themselves as to the reasonableness of the Directors’estimation
of the fair value of the Group's investments in the limited partnerships.

The Group had obtained sufficient information from the limited
partnerships and the project companies to estimate the fair value of
investments in limited partnership. However, the Group was unable to
provide sufficient supporting document and information to prove to
the Auditors that the relevant information was provided by the limited
partnerships and the project companies.

The Group would proactively require the relevant party/(ies) to
provide proof of authorization for the correspondence.

Scope limitation - valuation of assets-backed
securities

The Auditors are of the view that they have not been provided
sufficient evidence, including the correspondences with and the
financial information of the assets-backed securities, to satisfy
themselves as to the reasonableness of the Directors’estimation of the
fair value of the Group’s investment in the assets-backed securities.

The Group had obtained sufficient information from the trust
company to estimate the fair value of the investment in the assets-
backed securities. However, the Group was unable to provide
sufficient supporting document and information to prove to the
Auditors that the relevant information was provided by the trust
company.

The Group would proactively require the relevant party/(ies) to
provide proof of authorization for the correspondence.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEF WD (&)

(iii)

(iv)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Scope limitation — PRC bank related balances, PRC
loans and accounts receivables, PRC other payable
and disclosure

In absence of the relevant PRC companies’ seals which were taken
into custody of the Bureau for the confirmation purpose, the Auditors
are of the view that, with no alternative audit procedures, they were
unable to determine whether the information relating to the Group’s
PRC bank balances, borrowings, entrusted loans, pledged assets and
guarantee documents issued in favor of the PRC banks, if any, loans
and accounts receivables and other payables held by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 have been properly accounted
for and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group had endeavoured to negotiate with the Bureau to provide
stamping on the relevant confirmations during the course of audit but
in vain. The Group, together with its legal counsel, would continue
to communicate with the Bureau for the release of the seals of the
relevant PRC companies of the Group so as to facilitate the stamping
of the relevant confirmations as required by the Auditors.

Scope limitation relating to going concern

The Group was unable to provide the Auditors with information that
they consider sufficient to evaluate whether the below mentioned
plans and measures are feasible.

The financial technical service platform, FEEERH , and other platform
services of the Group continue to generate steady income which
could help to ongoing operation of the Group.

The Group is negotiating with the potential investors in regarding the
fund rising plans. The Group would proactively to approach relevant
parties to achieve the fund rising plans.

In relation to the bank loans of RMB15,735,000, the Group is actively
negotiating with the banks for the debt restructure exercise so as to
increase the liquidity of the Group.

The Group is negotiating with a shareholder of the Company for

extension of his relevant borrowing so that no action will be taken by
that shareholder to demand immediate repayment of the borrowing.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS AND EXPECTED SOURCES OF
FUNDING

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31
December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For the contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020, please
refer to point 2 of the “LITIGATION, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES” section in
Management Discussion And Analysis (2019: nil).

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB47.9 million (2019:
RMB49.1 million) were pledged for a bank borrowing.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant capital commitments
(2019: nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of HKS against RMB as its
certain bank balances are denominated in HKS which is not the functional
currency of the relevant group entities. The Group has not made other
arrangement to hedge against the exchange rate risk. However, the Directors
and the management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider utilising applicable derivatives to hedge out the
exchange risk when necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWED (&)

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
evaluation of the financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Directors closely monitor the Group's liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can
meet its funding requirements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 90 staff (2019: 158). Total
staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB25.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB48.8 million).
Remuneration is determined with reference to market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employee. Year-
end bonus based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions. Other benefits include
share option scheme, and contributions to statutory mandatory provident
fund schemes and social insurance together with housing provident funds
to its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group, the Group's
operating results and comparable market statistics.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 17
June 2021 to Wednesday, 23 June 2021, both dates inclusive, during which

no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to ascertain shareholders’

eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers documents
accompanied by the relevant Shares certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 16 June 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERB ZBRFE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Weijing (ZB18 I 5 4 ), aged 48, the co-founder of the Group,
was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Zheng has been the Vice
President of the Company since September 2008 and was appointed as an
executive Director on 4 May 2011 and re-designated as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer on 4 November 2014. He was responsible for strategic
planning and overseeing the overall operation, general management and
risk control of the Group.

Mr. Zheng has completed his study and obtained a certificate of Executive
Master of Business Administration from Peking University HSBC School
in June 2017, and has finished the professional postgraduate course in
Finance from Finance faculty of Graduate School of The Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences in May 2007. In the three years preceding the date of
this annual report, Mr. Zheng did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Zheng was the chairman
of the nomination committee of the Board. He was also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Zheng had resigned as the Chairman, executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and had also ceased to act as the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board, with effect from 26
March 2021.

Mr. Zheng is a director of Ming Cheng Investments Limited, which is
interested in the shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Mr. Zhang Gongjun (& A 8 % 4 ), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2011 and re-
designated to an executive Director on 15 July 2015. Mr. Zhang was re-
designated as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 26 March 2021. Mr. Zhang obtained the certificate of master’s degree in
business administration from the Peking University in July 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEB 2 BEFE &)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Prior to being re-designated as an executive Director, Mr. Zhang was the
managing director of Shenzhen Sino-investment Management Company
Limited, responsible for overall operational management. From August
2008 to January 2012, Mr. Zhang served as a non-executive director of Sino
Grandness Food Industry Group Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Singapore whose shares are listed on the main board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited with stock code T4B. Mr.
Zhang currently is also an independent director of SZZT Electronics Co,, Ltd,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002197) with
the appointment date of 21 June 2019. Save as disclosed herein, in the three
years preceding the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr.
Zhang is a member of the remuneration committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang
was appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board
on 26 March 2021.

Ms. Guo Chanjiao (881§ Z 1), aged 41, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 June 2015. Ms. Guo graduated with a master's degree in
business administration from the New York Institute of Technology in May
2012, and a bachelor's degree in international trading in Nankai University in
2003.

Ms. Guo was the assistant to chairman of the board and corporate
development director of China Fortune Land Development Co. Ltd. from
2006 to 2008. She was the assistant to chairman of the board of Shenzhen
Efung Capital Fund Management Co. Ltd. from 2009 to 2010. From 2011 to
2013, Ms. Guo was the corporate development director of Sino Singapore
Tianjin Eco-City. Currently, Ms. Guo is the Chief Operating Officer and
Vice President of the Company. In the three years preceding the date of
this annual report, Ms Guo did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in Hong Kong or overseas. Ms. Guo is a member of the
nomination committee of the Board.

The Board has resolved, among other matters, to temporarily suspend
the executive and/or administrative duties and powers of Ms. Guo as an
executive Director, a member of the nomination committee of the Board,
and all of her other positions in the Group, as permitted by law with effect
from 26 March 2021. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 26 March 2021 for further details.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEBBEFE (&)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Dr. Vincent Cheng (8 5 & 18 £ ), aged 58, FCPA (Aust), FCPA (HK), FCIS,
FT1 (HK), CTA HK was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 20 December 2011. Dr. Cheng obtained a doctor degree in business
administration from European University, a master degree in business
administration from Deakin University in Australia, and a bachelor of arts
degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng was
admitted as a fellow of CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He was also recognised by the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong as a certified Tax adviser (CTA HK).

From December 1987 to September 2000, Dr. Cheng was employed by
a financial planning firm and the last post was finance director. During
October 2000 and February 2002, he worked as a project manager to assist
a company to seek its listing status in Hong Kong. From May 2003 to July
2010, he joined a listed company in Hong Kong and acted as a qualified
accountant and company secretary.

From 10 August 2013 to 22 October 2018, Dr. Cheng was an independent
non-executive director of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited* (g
R ERA KK ARZAR]), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3332). On 16 November 2018, Dr. Cheng was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Tontine
Wines Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 389). He is an independent non-executive Director
who has the qualifications and experience (as mentioned above) to meet the
requirements under Rules 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
herein, in the three years preceding the date of this annual report, Dr. Cheng
did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in Hong Kong
or overseas. Dr. Cheng is the chairman of the audit committee of the Board
and a member of the nomination committee of the Board.

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Miao Bo (E /18 £ ), aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 15 July 2015. Dr. Miao graduated with a bachelor of
laws from the China University of Political Science and Law in 2000, a master
of laws in Tsinghua University in 2003 and a doctor of philosophy in laws
from the Macquarie University in 2007.

From 2008 to present, Dr. Miao is an assistant professor in the Department
of Asian and International Studies from the City University of Hong Kong. In
the three years preceding the date of this report, Dr. Miao did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in Hong Kong or overseas. Dr.
Miao is a member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Hsu Tawei () KX & 5% 4 ), aged 63, obtained a bachelor degree in
science from National Taiwan University in 1981 and a master degree in
business administration from University of Bridgeport in 1992. From 1993 to
2006, he was the vice-president of President Securities Corporation (Taipei).
From 2006 to 2017, he was the executive director and responsible officer
of President Securities (HK) Limited. From 2017 to 2018, he was the director
of DA Capital (HK) Limited. Since 2018, he is the responsible officer of GSI
Finance Group Limited.

Mr. Hsu was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee of
the Board and a member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Board on 1 March 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Chi Wing (/8 & 8 % %), aged 43, was appointed as the
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 16 July
2015. With effect from 31 October 2020, Mr. Chow resigned as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Following the resignation, Mr. Chow was
engaged to act as the Company Secretary and an authorized person of the
Company as an external service provider with effect from 1 November 2020.

Mr. Chow is not an employee of the Group and Mr. Zhang Gongjun, the
executive Director, is the person whom Mr. Chow can contact for the
purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Zhang Gongjun, an executive Director of the Company, was appointed
as the compliance officer on 26 March 2021 to replace the vacancy by the
resignation of Mr. Zheng Weijing. Please refer to biography of Mr. Zhang above
for details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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ERERWME

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board in providing
effective leadership and direction to the Group’s business, and ensuring
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's business.

The Company has applied and complied with the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code")
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2020 save as the deviations as mentioned in the sections headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Board Composition” in this
report.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices
in order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with
the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders and investors.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED STANDARD
OF DEALINGS IN SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquires, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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THE BOARD

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies
and directions for the Group's activities with a view to developing its
business and enhancing shareholder value.

The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zheng Weijing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Guo Chanjiao
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Vincent Cheng
Mr. Leung Po Hon
(resigned on 19 November 2020)
Dr. Miao Bo
Mr. Hsu Tawei
(appointed on 1 March 2021)

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report. The composition of the
Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise
and extensive corporate and strategic planning experiences that can
contribute to the business of the Group.

As disclosed the announcement of the Company dated 19 November
2020, Mr. Leung Po Hon resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He also ceased to act as the chairman of
the remuneration committee, and the member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Board with effect
from 19 November 2020. Following the resignation of Mr. Leung, the
Company failed to comply with Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules
as its number of independent non-executive Directors fell below
three; Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules as the audit committee of the
Board had less than three members; and Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the remuneration committee of the Board was not chaired
by an independent non-executive Director and did not comprise a
majority of independent non-executive Directors as members.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Board composition (Continued)

Following the resignation of Mr. Leung, the Company deviated from
A.5.1 of the Code as the nomination committee of the Board did
not comprise a majority of independent non-executive Directors as
members.

On 1 March 2021, the Company appointed Mr. Hsu Tawei as
an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
remuneration committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Board. The Company
then re-complied with the requirements under Rules 5.05(1), 5.28, 5.34
and A.5.1 of the Code.

Except for the matters mentioned above, during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2)
and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing more
than one-third of the Board and at least one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors also
meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has received an annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and
promoting the success of the Company. This is achieved by setting up
corporate and strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring
and evaluations of operating activities and financial performance of
the Company.

All the Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and
acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relation(s) among members of the Board
and between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Formal service agreements and letters of appointment have been
entered into with the executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors respectively setting out the key terms and
conditions of their respective appointments.

The insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Company’s
Directors and senior officers is covered by the existing Directors &
Officers Liability Insurance Policy of the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year ended
31 December 2020, Mr. Zheng Weijing acted as both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and since 26 March
2021, Mr. Zhang Gongjun has acted as both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. As of the date of this
annual report, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are not separate and both are performed by
Mr. Zhang Gongjun. The Company is in the process of identifying a
suitable person to act as the Chief Executive Officer and shall make
announcement as and when appropriate. Since the Directors meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Company, the Directors consider that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Directors and the
management of the Company and believe that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
efficiently.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
the management of the Group. The Board reserves for its decision
on all major matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) and senior management of the Company,
with a view to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures
and all applicable laws and regulations. Any Director may request
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon reasonable request being made to the
Board. The day-to-day management, administration and operations
of the Company are delegated to the executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to these officers for the implementation of the Board
decisions. The Board periodically reviews the delegated functions
and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the
aforesaid officers have to obtain the Board's approval.

No corporate governance committee has been established by the
Company and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties, which included:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group;

(2)  toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(3)  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and

employees; and

(5)  to review the Company's compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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A. THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

A.6 Appointment, re-election and removal of directors

Each of Mr. Zheng Weijing, Mr. Zhang Gongjun and Ms. Guo Chanjiao,
being executive Directors, have renewed his/her service contract
8,15 July 2018 and 26 June 2018,
respectively, for a term of three years. The aforementioned service
contracts with the Company for each of the executive Directors shall
be terminated by not less than three months’notice in writing served
by either party.

with the Company on 1 January 201

Each of Dr. Vincent Cheng, Dr. Miao Bo and Mr. Hsu Tawei, being the
independent non-executive Directors, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 20 December 2020, 15 July 2020 and 1 March 2021, respectively.
The aforementioned appointment letters with the Company for each
of the independent non-executive Directors shall be automatically
renewed and extended for successive term of one year and may be
terminated either after the initial term by either party by giving at least
three months' notice in writing or be terminated after one year of the
initial term.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. According to the Company's
articles of association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office at each annual general meeting, provided that each
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.
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A. THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board convened a
total of nine board meetings and one general meeting was held. The
following is the Directors’ attendance record of meetings held by the
Board and general meeting:

E=g (8
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PO E N h ) Gk
Number of Number of
attendance/number attendance/number
of board meetings of general meeting

HERE HERE
EEgERYE BREXEHE
Mr. Zheng Weijing BRER A&

(resigned on 26 March 2021) (E/\_y_*ﬁ A=+ XHEE) 8/9 1/1
Mr. Zhang Gongjun NEEE 9/9 /1
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (duties suspended ;Bﬁﬁgﬁi (RZE=Z—%F

on 26 March 2021) ZAZ+RNBEERK) 8/9 11
Dr. Vincent Cheng B EEL 9/9 /1
Mr. Leung Po Hon REELAE

(resigned on 19 November 2020) (RZZZZF+—A+NBET) 7/7 1
Dr. Miao Bo HRIEL 9/9 1/1

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely EFgRHEKERETE BE  REHN

information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. AR UAFESeRERARENRITE
BE -

Schedules for annual Board meetings and draft agenda of each Board FEESEeEaRERREEETTEEN

meeting are sent to all Directors in advance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given for a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are dispatched
to all Directors at least three days before each regular Board meeting
to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review the related
documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final versions are open to Directors for inspection.
The Company’s articles of association contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Continuous professional development

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended 31 December
2020, each of the Directors (namely, Mr. Zheng Weijing, Mr. Zhang
Gongjun, Ms. Guo Chanjiao, Dr. Vincent Cheng and Dr. Miao Bo)
has been given relevant guideline materials to ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
requirements in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh
their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and GEM Listing Rules' requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding listing rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness
of best corporate governance practices.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and compliance with the Code, reviewed and
monitored the continuous professional development of the Directors
and reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements during the year as
well as the disclosures in this report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference, which
are available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange, to assist them in the efficient implementation of their
functions. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the above
committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 20 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Code. The terms of reference
were last updated on 1 January 2019 and maintained on both the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function, compliance officer or external auditors
before submission to the Board; (ii) review the relationship with the
external auditors by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditors; and (jii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee has two members
comprising Dr. Vincent Cheng (Chairman) and Dr. Miao Bo, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Hsu Tawei
was appointed as a member of Audit Committee on 1 March 2021.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
had reviewed the annual results and report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019, the interim results and report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and first and third
quarterly results and reports of the Company for the periods ended 31
March 2020 and 30 September 2020 respectively. Subsequent to 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report, all members of the
Audit Committee attended a meeting to review the Group’s internal
control, risk management and the Structured Agreements (as set out
in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report) for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group’s final results and the
annual results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2020
and this annual report had been reviewed by the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing
Rules and that adequate disclosure have been made.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, six meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance of each member of the
Audit Committee is contained in the following table:
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“ﬂ%ﬁz_?—ﬂiﬂ—_ﬂer—Eti

ENFEEERRE BE_T-ZFX
ﬂ:+5i/\1.ﬂm¢ﬂﬂ%é§&#&%%&
ARARBE_Z_TF=A=+t—HEZ
%:%inﬂz—kaﬁﬁﬂﬁmfﬁ—?ﬁéﬁi
—FEEENRRE -BERC TF
TZA=tT—HEXRRELR - %ﬁa
SrBERENLEERRTASEREC
%:%Eﬂ—*ﬂ:ﬂ—*ﬂtif‘%é’mﬁ%ﬁ%
CERREIR R RBEE (HNAFRIE
gWE| ) AEBBE_T_ZTF
TZA=+T—BUEFENRBEEREF
FENTHAFREECEZEGERER
TRREZERGESL -BFRETEGKER
REEZEXETEHEB LR - GEM
FHRAIEEEHFE S BEE -

BE-2-SFT-A=t-ALFE
EREARBRNNEH  FERERY

REMHFEBRARR TR

Number of attendance/

number of meetings

HERE EEBE

Dr. Vincent Cheng ?B??E@i 6/6
Mr. Leung Po Hon REENRE (RZZEZTF

(resigned on 19 November 2020) +—A+BEE) 6/6

Dr. Miao Bo HKEL 6/6
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B2 REZEE

B. BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

B.2 Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 20
December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code. The terms of reference were last updated on 1 January
2019 and maintained on both the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
mainly to (i) review the Board composition; (i) develop and formulate
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors;
(ii) identify qualified individuals to become members of the Board; (iv)
monitor the appointment and succession planning of directors; and
(v) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination policy aims to set out the relevant selection criteria
and nomination procedures.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the following
factors would be used as reference by the Nomination Committee,
including but not limited to:

(a)  ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company;

(b)  reputation for integrity and accomplishment and experience in
the relevant industry(ies);

(0 commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(d)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background and ethnicity; and

(e) effectiveness in carrying out the responsibilities of the
Board, such as participating in Board meetings to bring
an independent judgement, scrutinising the Company'’s
performance and monitoring the reporting of performance,
etc..
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B.2

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) B. EESETHZEE (&)
Nomination Committee (Continued) B2 REZEE (&)
For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make REZEGAMEMBRERAEZTGIR
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For Lz fEEFZERIE BIRER
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the BAZNMREAGER REELZEFAM
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its EEERE HEFSZERMEE - AR
consideration and recommendation. A circular setting out information AlE MR DIREEERE  RAIRER
as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations ERETEFREAERBER - B
of the proposed candidates will be sent to the shareholders. The BAZMBRASEERNMEHEBEEER
Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its BEEERERE ©
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.
As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee has four BHE-Z-ZF+-_HA=+—H &%
members comprising of two executive Directors, Mr. Zheng Weijing BemEAKEEN  BERNERITES -
(Chairman) and Ms. Guo Chanjiao and two independent non- BB R R (EF) R BB Z T AKRM
executive Directors, Dr. Vincent Cheng and Dr. Miao Bo. Mr. Hsu HEUIENITES M ERELIRER
Tawei was appointed as a member of Nomination Committee on 1 Bt RRELEENR_ZT_—F=H—H
March 2021. During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings BEERERZEGKE - BE_ZT_F
of the Nomination Committee was held to review the structure FH+-A=Z1+—HILEFE REZEZEEEEH
and composition of the Board and assess the independence of FMAEERTESRERAKNU KT
the independent non-executive Directors. The attendance of each MBI TESTNE LN - BRIEREB
member of the Nomination Committee is contained in the following GREMTEBERENTE
table:
Number of attendance/
number of meeting
HERE E3HA
Mr. Zheng Weijing BEREE
(resigned on 26 March 2021) (RZZEZ—F=ZAZ=+/NHET) 1
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (duties suspended Iy h et
on 26 March 2021) (R=Z=—F= A=+ BEEH®) 11
Dr. Vincent Cheng EzEEt /1
Mr. Leung Po Hon REELEE
(resigned on 19 November 2020) (RZZ2=ZEF+—A+NBET) 1/1
Dr. Miao Bo ERE L 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board adopted on 29 August 2013 a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and the Nomination Committee had made
recommendations to the Board on the measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy. The Board recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of
the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The measurable
objectives recommended by the Nomination Committee and
adopted by the Board include the following:

(i) Atleast 33% of the members of the Board shall be non-
executive Directors or independent non-executive Directors;

(i) At least 80% of the members of the Board shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(i) At least 33% of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(iv)  Atleast 33% of the members of the Board shall have more than
seven years of experience in the industry he/she is specialised

in; and

(v) At least 33% of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.
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B.2

EEEETHERS (B)

REZEE (H)

BEenN _T—=—FN\A-t+LHEMNE
e nttBR(EEFSTEBER]) -
REZEERERESE L TLEERNT]
EEERNEESRLEZ -EETEARN
RRESFgNE ] RERQFREE
ERAHERR  ARARBMBAZE%ZIE
HX BEETRAMR - Fik - bRk
HEES Bk ZELH HEE-0#
LB FEEREFEE I - REEE
FREIMESERMAVAIGTEEZ2RFEN
T

iy ZEILBUNEZ=SKEERIERNTE
ERBUIEMITES

(i) ZELOUMEESGKEEFTEELN
A _E BT

(il ELBUNEZ=SKEEFE TN
HhHEEK

vy ZEL3BuMES=eKEEBAEGLFU
EREETELR R

v EL3BuMEBERERKEEARRD
1R TFES -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

CREARE (R)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 20
December 2011
the Code. The Remuneration Committee adopted the approach under
code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code and the primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i) make recommendations to

with written terms of reference in compliance with

the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; (ii) make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management; and (iii)
review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time.

As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee has two
members comprising one independent non-executive Director, Dr.
Miao Bo, and an executive Director, Mr. Zhang Gongjun. Mr. Hsu Tawei
was appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee on
1 March 2021. The remuneration of the Directors was determined
with reference to their respective experience, responsibilities with
the Group and general market conditions. During the year ended 31
December 2020, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee were
held to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior

EEEETHERES (B)
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management of the Company, and the attendance of each member %@ BHFMEE SR ENLFEBRER
of the Remuneration Committee is contained in the following table: TR
Number of attendance/
number of meetings
HERE EFHA
Mr. Leung Po Hon 2EZEEAE (RZTE_TF
(resigned on 19 November 2020) +—A+AHEE) 11
Mr. Zhang Gongjun RAEEE /1
Dr. Miao Bo HRIEL 1/1
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the senior management are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the number of senior
management other than the Directors who received/was entitled to
receive remuneration falling within the following band is set out as
follows:

SREEENINE

SREEENERFISENAFRIEER
BREEBZREFE] & -

HE-_ZT-TF+-_A=+—HILFE"
B EE S A SMIGER 75 HE UCER A T 46 855 A0 B
THSREEEARNAT

Number of individual

A

Nil to HK$1,000,000

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year and to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The statement by the auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 106 of this annual
report. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the financial
statements. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm
that they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The Board has developed
its systems of internal control and risk management and is also
responsible for reviewing the systems on an annual basis and
maintaining adequate internal control and risk management systems
to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the assets of the
Company.

The internal audit department has performed annual review on the
Group's internal control and risk management systems, policy and
procedures for the year ended 31 December 2020 and reported to the
Audit Committee its findings and recommendations.

The Board, having taken into account the recommendations of the
internal audit department and the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, and considered the risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate. The systems of risk management
and internal control are designed to manage rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
orloss.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

The Board has approved and adopted an Inside Information Disclosure
Policy (the “Policy”) for the Company since 2013 for monitoring
and disclosing inside information to ensure compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information as set
out in the Policy are summarised below:

(i

(i)

Handling of Inside Information

(@)

Inside information shall be announced as soon as
reasonably practicable after it becomes known to the
Board and/or is the subject of a decision by the Board. In
cases where a decision by the Board is pending or in cases
of incomplete negotiations, the Group shall implement
the procedures set out in the Policy to maintain the
confidentiality of information. Until an announcement is
made, the Directors and the management should ensure
that such information is kept strictly confidential, and
only the key personnel are informed. If the confidentiality
cannot be maintained, an announcement shall be made
as soon as practicable.

Business units shall keep inside information on
transactions confidential. If there is a leakage of inside
information, they shall inform the Directors immediately
so that remedial actions, including making an inside
information announcement, can be taken at the earliest
opportunity.

The Group's Finance Department shall keep track of
the Group's threshold levels for disclosure pursuant to
the size tests under the GEM Listing Rules, so that an
announcement can be made as soon as practicable
should a notifiable transaction arise.

Dissemination of Inside Information

(@)

(b)

Inside information is announced promptly through the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Interviews and Briefing sessions can be organised for
the analysts and the media after the designated officers
having the approval from the Chairman of the Company.
Presentation materials shall be reviewed in advance
before they are released at the briefing sessions.

E.
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F. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION F. BYZBENHE
The remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the Group for the HE_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—RHLFE "
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as follows: B/ ENAEEZESMOMEnT

Paid/payable

Services rendered RAH R g1 B

RMB'000

ARBTT

Statutory audit services EEER IR 912

Total CEl 912

G. COMPANY SECRETARY G. ARIWE
Mr. Chow Chi Wing (“Mr. Chow") was appointed as the Company BAEEEE((AEE)R=_E—R1F LA
Secretary on 16 July 2015. According to the requirements of Rule 5.15 THRBEZERAAWE - RIFEGEM £
of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Chow has taken no less than 15 hours MBIESISIERTE  ARERBE_TZ
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December TFF+ A=+ —HIEFEEZT LIRS
2020. (EANE: R E S Il
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company has established various channels of communication
with its shareholders and the public to ensure that they are kept
abreast of the Company’s latest news and development. Information
relating to the Company’s financial details, property projects and
major events are available through publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars, press releases and on the
Company's website.

The Board believes that effective investor relations can help lower
financing cost, improve market liquidity of the Company’s shares,
and build a more stable shareholder base. Therefore, the Company
is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate transparency
and follow a policy of disclosing relevant information to shareholders,
investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner.

Shareholders and investors may also write directly to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 1309, 13/F, Mirror
Tower, 61 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email
to "info@flyingfinancial.hk” for any inquiries. Inquiries are dealt with in
an informative and timely manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide
an important channel for shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen and/or other
members of the Board committees will endeavor to be available at the
meetings to answer any questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors. A designated senior management and investor
relations team maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors
and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s developments.

H.
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I.  SHAREHOLDERS'RIGHTS . BRER#ER
Shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) shall follow the BBRARERBAUFEAGZIEATE A
following procedures as prescribed in Article 64 of the articles of AR ([RER]) 2R BRAR QAR R
association of the Company to convene an extraordinary general AR ((REENARE ) BEFATEF

meeting of the Company (the "EGM"):

(1) One or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the M
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) shall have the right, by written requisition
(the "Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified therein.

(2)  The Requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the )
Company Secretary of the Company at both of the following
addresses:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
Address: Room 1309, 13/F

Mirror Tower

61 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Registered office of the Company

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

(3)  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of (3)
the Requisition.

(4)  If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM within (4)
twenty-one (21) days of deposit of the Requisition, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED) I

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong (the “Branch
Share Registrar”), Tricor Investor Services Limited, details of which are
as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel: (852) 2980 1333
Fax: (852) 28108185

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company at the following designated contacts, correspondence
address, email address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Address: Room 1309, 13/F
Mirror Tower
61 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: info@flyingfinancial.hk
Tel: (852) 2152 9937
Fax: (852) 21529927

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from the
Company.

IRERER ()
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meeting

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
Shareholder(s) should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal (the
"Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong as specified above.

The Proposal will be verified by the Branch Share Registrar in Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the Proposal is proper and in
order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda
for the general meeting. Whether a proposal will be put to a general
meeting will be decided by the Board in its discretion, unless the
proposal put forward by a Shareholder is (i) pursuant to a requisition
by a Shareholder to convene an EGM or (i) as special business to be
considered at an annual general meeting as described in Article 67(A)
of the article of association of the Company.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s) concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(@)  not less than twenty-one (21) days’ notice and not less than
twenty (20) clear business days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of any resolution of the Company in its
annual general meeting;

(b)  not less than twenty-one (21) days’ notice and not less than ten
(10) clear business days'notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in the
EGM; or

(0 not less than fourteen (14) days' notice and not less than ten
(10) clear business days'notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of any resolution of the Company other than
those specified in paragraphs (a) and (b) above.
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EERERE (&)

J. NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING J. TP
Details on the compliance of the non-competition undertaking by the HE_ZT-_ZEF+-_A=+—RHLFE "
substantial Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set FERRET IR I AR 2T BRRREF
out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” of the WEEEWRE] O THEFAR] & -

section headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

K. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS K. ERXH
The Board confirm that there is no change in the Company’s BEEGRR ARr2ERXHHEEY -
constitutional documents. The Company’s memorandum and articles AN AR B E AR KA Ko 40 Bl AT PR B 22 AT AR
of association is available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange AP AN HEE I
and the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are investment in property development
projects, operation of a financial services platform, provision of entrusted
loan and other loan services, financial consultation services, and finance lease
services in the PRC.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an indication of
the likely future developments in the Group's business and the Company’s
environmental, social and corporate responsibility, can be found in the
section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis”of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this report of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group'’s operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC
while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group's
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with all PRC laws
and applicable laws in the jurisdictions where it has operations. During the
year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 8 December 2020, Mr.
Zheng Weijing ("Mr. Zheng"), the chairman, chief executive officer and
an executive director of the Company, Ms. Guo Chanjiao ("Ms. Guo”), an
executive director of the Company, and three employees of the Group
have been held in custody since the evening of 7 December 2020 by the
Nanshan Branch of the Shenzhen Public Security Bureau (the “Bureau”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") pending investigation regarding
certain suspected illegal absorption of public deposits (collectively, the
“Custodies”). The Custodies are related to certain unsettled repayment
funds (the “Unsettled Repayment Funds”) in relation to the online financing
intermediary business conducted by a PRC subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet Financial Services Corporation (“SZ Flying
Internet Financial”), the operation of which has already been ceased in
the fourth quarter of 2019. As of the date of this report, the investigations
regarding suspected illegal absorption of public deposits by the Bureau is
still ongoing (the “Investigation”).

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any laws and
regulations which are industry specific, and have material implication or
impact on the business and operation of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are valuable assets and regards the
personal development of its employees as highly important. The Group
wants to continue to be an attractive employer for committed employees.
During the year under review, there was no dispute on salary payments
and all accrued remunerations, in all kinds, were settled on or before their
respective due dates, as stipulated under individual employee’s employment
contract. The Group also ensures that all the employees are reasonably
remunerated by regular review and the policies on salary increment,
promotion, bonus, allowances and all other related benefits are updated
from time to time. Being people-oriented, the Group is committed to
providing a safe and healthy workplace for its employees and encourages
them to have a work-life balance.

The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term
business goals. The Group values the feedback from its customers through
communication to address their concerns in a timely manner. For suppliers,
the Group assures the quality of their delivered services and products.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, there is no circumstance
of any event between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers
which will have a significant impact on the Group’s business and on which
the Group's success depends.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 254.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy aims to set out the approach to target dividend payout
ratio of the Company.

The Company targets to distribute to its shareholders a dividend amount as
determined by the Board at its sole and absolute discretion, but subject to:

a. the requirements of the Company’s constitutional documents;
b.  the solvency requirements of the laws of the Cayman Islands;

C. there being sufficient amount of retained profits and share premium
of the Company for the dividend payment;

d. any financial covenants and other restrictions that exist with respect
to certain of the Company’s financing arrangements and other
agreements by which the Company is bound from time to time;

e. the earnings, financial position, results of operation, expansion plans,
working capital requirements, and anticipated cash needs of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

f. the payment by subsidiaries of cash dividends to the Company; and

g. other factors which the Board may deem appropriate.

With respect to restriction (e) above, if any of the subsidiaries incurs debt
on its own behalf in the future, the instruments governing the debt, such
as the indenture governing any notes/bonds, may restrict its ability to pay
dividends or make other payments to the Company, and the corporate
laws applicable to the subsidiaries also impose requirements that these
subsidiaries must meet before they may pay dividends to the Company.

The form and frequency of dividend declaration and payment shall be at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Board and the dividend policy does not
constitute a legally binding commitment in respect of the future dividends.

The Board will monitor the implementation of the dividend policy and will
review the dividend policy, as appropriate, to ensure the compliance of the
dividend policy and discuss and approve any revision as and when require.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out in the financial summary on page 255 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, there is no reserves available for distributions to
equity holders of the Company comprising share premium account less
accumulated losses. (2019: nil).

MAJOR COUNTERPARTIES

The Group's customer base is diversified. Revenue of the Group includes
the revenue earned from counterparties which are the limited partnerships
in the investment in property development projects segment. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the percentage of revenue attributable to the
Group’s major counterparties is set out below:
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MAJOR COUNTERPARTIES (CONTINUED)

17.2%
54.0%

- The largest counterparty
- The total of the five largest counterparties

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors nor their close
associates nor any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
five largest customers of the Group.

Due to the business nature of the Group, the Group primarily relies on its
employee for the conduct of its principal business activities and only retain a
minimal number of suppliers for ancillary administrative support services. As
such, the Group considers that it does not have any major suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. Zheng Weijing (resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (duties suspended on 26 March 2021)

Dr. Vincent Cheng
Mr. Leung Po Hon (resigned on 19 November 2020)
Dr. Miao Bo

Pursuant to Article 105(A) of the Company’s articles of association (the
"Articles of Association”), at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

By virtue of Articles 105(A) and 105(B) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Zhang Gongjun and Dr. Vincent Cheng will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Mr. Zhang Gongjun and Dr. Vincent
Cheng, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

By virtue of Article 109 of the Articles of Association, any person appointed by
the Directors to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the meeting. Mr. Hsu Tawei, who was appointed
by the board of Directors of the Company as independent non-executive
Director pursuant to board resolution with effect from 1 March 2021, will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Hsu
Tawei, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years unless and until (i) terminated by either
party thereto giving not less than three months' prior written notice; or (ii)
the executive Director not being re-elected as a Director or being removed
by Shareholders at general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed for an initial
term of two years (as set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report) and shall be subject to retirement, re-election
and removal in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Director being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’INFORMATION

(1) Mr. Leung Po Hon resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He also ceased to act as the chairman of
the remuneration committee, and the member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Board with effect
from 19 November 2020. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 19 November 2020 for further details.

(2)  Mr. Hsu Tawei was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of each of the audit committee and nomination committee
of the Board with effect from 1 March 2021. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 1 March 2021 for further
details.

(3)  Mr. Zheng Weijing resigned as the Chairman, executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and also ceased to act as the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board, with effect from
26 March 2021. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 26 March 2021 for further details.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(4)  Mr. Zhang Gongjun was appointed as the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer, compliance officer, the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company on 26 March 2021. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 26 March 2021 for further
details.

(5)  The executive and/or administrative duties and powers of Ms. Guo
Chanjiao as an executive Director and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company had been suspended with effect from 26
March 2021. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
26 March 2021 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, there were no changes to the Directors’information
since the date of the 2017 third quarterly report of the Company required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all
three independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the interests of Mr. Zheng Weijing in JE R IE & HE R MH AR A7)
(Guangdong Huijin Pawn Stock Company Limited*) (“Guangdong Huijin"),
being a party to the transactions as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Non-
exempt Continuing Connected Transactions” and the paragraph headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” below, no Directors or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

*  For identification purposes only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with the
highest emoluments are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal
and provincial government authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions at the rate of approximately 14% of the
eligible employees’ salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for
the required contributions which are remitted to the respective local
government authorities when the contributions become due. The local
government authorities are responsible for the pension obligations
payable to the retired employees covered under the Schemes. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees' relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, substantial shareholders and controlling shareholders
of the Company and their respective close associates (having their meanings
as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
compete or may compete with the business of the Group or any other
conflicts of interest which any person may have with the Group as at 31
December 2020.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2012
("Prospectus”), Ming Cheng Investments Limited and Mr. Zheng Weijing
(collectively, the “Substantial Shareholders”), among others, has executed
a deed of non-competition (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) through
which they have irrevocably warranted and undertaken to the Company,
not to, among others, directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any
right or interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business in competition with or likely to be in competition with the business
of the provision of (i) pawn loan services; (i) entrusted loan services; and (iii)
financial consultation services and business ancillary to any of the foregoing
in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction to which the
Group provides such services and/or in which any member of the Group
carries on business mentioned above from time to time.

The Substantial Shareholders have confirmed to the Company in respect of
their compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance
with the Non-competition Undertaking during the financial year ended
31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report based on
information and confirmation provided by or obtained from the Substantial
Shareholders, and were satisfied that the Substantial Shareholders have duly
complied with the Non-competition Undertaking.

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS AS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, as a provider of pawn loan services to
the customers, Guangdong Huijin is subject to the requirements of the
Measures for the Administration of Pawning (B8 B2 ##%) (the “Pawning
Measures”). The Pawning Measures prescribe certain thresholds which pawn
loan providers have to comply with in respect of the pawn loans advanced
to customers and they also govern the rate of interest and total fees that may
be charged by a pawn loan provider.

The Pawning Measures provide that the rate of interest charged on a loan
provided in respect of pawned property must not exceed the interest rate for
a six-month loan as published by the People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC") as
discounted by the pawn loan period. It further provides that the combined
monthly total fees (excluding the consultation fee and the amount of
loan repayment) (being administration fee in the business) payable by
the pledgor must not exceed 4.2% of the loan amount in respect of loans
secured by pledged movable property, 2.7% of the loan amount in respect
of loans secured by mortgaged real estate and 2.4% of the loan amount in
respect of loans secured by pledged property rights.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS AS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS
(CONTINUED)

As regards the other thresholds, the Pawning Measures provide that the
maximum outstanding amount owing on property pledged or mortgaged
by any one legal person or natural person to a pawn loan provider must not
exceed 25% of the registered capital of the pawn loan provider; and that
the total outstanding amount owing in respect of property right pledged
by customers must not exceed 50% of the registered capital of a pawn loan
provider. It is also provided in the Pawning Measures that, if the registered
capital of a pawn loan provider is more than RMB10 million, the maximum
loan amount that may be provided for a single real estate backed loan must
not exceed 10% of the registered capital of the pawn loan provider.

For the two years ended 31 December 2011, there were nine incidents
where the loans granted by Guangdong Huijin were not in compliance with
the relevant thresholds prescribed by the Pawning Measures. According to
the PRC legal adviser of the Company, Guangdong Huijin may be subject to
administrative penalty as a result of its past non-compliance; the maximum
potential penalty that may be imposed by the relevant government
authorities on the Group for such non-compliance would be an order to
correct the non-compliance and a fine of up to RMB30,000 for each non-
compliant transaction. As administrative penalty for illegal acts shall be
imposed within two years from the date such illegal act is committed, no
administrative penalty for the nine incidents of non-compliant transactions
occurred during the two years ended 31 December 2011 shall be imposed
after June 2013. As advised by the PRC legal adviser of the Company,
customers of the non-compliant transactions are entitled to claim against
Guangdong Huijin for overcharged interests and administrations fees within
two years commencing from the full repayment of the pawn loans. All of
the customers have signed confirmation letters and agree, among other
things, not to take any action against Guangdong Huijin for their rights and
entitlements in regard to the non-compliant loans granted by Guangdong
Huijin.

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors confirm that the Group had
not received any order to correct the non-compliance nor any notice of fine
from the relevant PRC government authorities. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this annual report, the Group had not received
any claims against Guangdong Huijin from its customers for overcharged
interests and administration fees in respect of the past non-compliance.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS AS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS
(CONTINUED)

Since November 2010, to ensure ongoing compliance with the Pawning
Measures and other relevant laws and regulations, the Group has
implemented the following measures:

(i) in the loan approval process, the business team will fill in details
of each loan application, including the party, amount, rate of
administration fees and interest of each loan application, in order
to ensure all loan applications are in compliance with the Pawning
Measures;

(i) the risk management team, with the assistance of the legal and
compliance team, will cross-check the loan application, in particular
the loan amount and the rate of interest and administration fees to be
charged, to ensure compliance with the Pawning Measures;

(i) the legal and compliance team will keep themselves aware of
any changes to the official rate prescribed by the PBOC and notify
the management if there may be any risk of breach of any of the
threshold(s) prescribed by the Pawning Measures; and they will obtain
updates on relevant laws and regulations from time to time and check
whether the existing practice is in compliance with these updates and
if not, conduct remedial measures; and

(iv)  the Group will consult the external legal advisers and seek their advice
on compliance matters as and when required.

For further details of the past non-compliance and ongoing compliance
measures with the Pawning Measures, please refer to pages 147 to 152 of the
Prospectus.

As at the date of this annual report, based on information and confirmation
provided by or obtained from the Group, the independent non-executive
Directors were satisfied that the Group have duly complied with the
prescribed thresholds under the Pawning Measures for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the "SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or were required pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Interestsinthe Shares

EERTETHRAERKSG - 1HE
BROREZ2EER KR

RZZBE-_TF+_A=+—H XRFAEFK
FTETBRABRAARILERBER (FERE
BEDIESN BB HFEREER ([EHrRHEK
BI1) EXVER) 2 Bty - AR REHFPHER R
BEFHFRIAEGEANEXVIE7 RSHBAG AR
NE| R B Az s (BRI E S RS &P
ERGXEFEIRREA 2R MORR) + R
1538 5 & BB AR DI 58 352 1547 T 7B " $RAE % IR PAT
a7 &M s - AR GEM E AR RIS 546
EE 567 RATIAR G AR F M FT 2 #E s 0
T

(i) ARG z#E=E

Number of Shares held (Note 1)
HERGEE (1)

Approximate

Interest of percentage
Beneficial Interest of controlled of shareholding
Name of Director interest spouse corporation Total in the Company
RARTF
BROMLS
EEpg ERER [T STREEER wst BAL
(%)
Mr. Zheng Weijing 40,630,202 - 367,739,567 408,369,769 2359
BEREL (Note 2)
(M3E2)
Notes: B 5E
1. These represent the Director’s long position in the Shares. 1. REEZERRDFOEE -
2. These Shares are held in the name of Ming Cheng Investments Limited, a 2. ZERDAARKREBRAAEZERFA (—

company wholly-owned by Mr. Zheng Weijing.

FHBEREEZEHBFOAR) °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Interests in the underlying Shares

EERTETHRAERKS - HE
BROREZ BRI KR (&)

(i) REBERG zER

Approximate
percentage

Capacity/ of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest Number of underlying Shares  in the Company
RARQT
FREBA
EEpE B EEME HERO#E Bk
Long position  Short position (%)
RA KR
(Note)
GES
Mr. Zheng Weijing Beneficial owner 2,020,000 - 0.12
BREREE EREAA
Mr. Zhang Gongjun Beneficial owner 10,400,000 - 0.60
RAERE EREaA
Ms. Guo Chanjiao Beneficial owner 10,400,000 - 0.60
MEB/LL EHEAA
Dr. Vincent Cheng Beneficial owner 860,000 - 0.05
BrEEL EmERA
Dr. Miao Bo Beneficial owner 860,000 - 0.05
HRE L EREAA

Notes: Being unlisted physically settled share options to acquire ordinary Shares,
further details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”below.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

(iii) Interests in associated corporation - Guangdong

EERTETHRAERKRS - 1HE

BROREZ 2 EER KR (&)

(i) RAEBZE-BERES &R

Huijin

Approximate

Equity interest percentage

Name of Director Nature of interest (Long position) of equity interest
EEnE REREME E#E(FR) EEMOEI
(%)

Mr. Zheng Weijing Interest of controlled corporation (Note) RMB71,240,000 70.53

BEREE Ry rE s ()

Note: Such registered capital was contributed by FEH & & & I2 4 FR A &) (Huilian
Assets Management Company Limited*®) ("Huilian Assets Management”).
YT &% B 75 59 IR A A (Shenzhen Zhihui Investment Consulting
Company Limited®) ("Shenzhen Zhihui") was interested in 72% of the entire
equity interest of Huilian Assets Management. Shenzhen Zhihui was owned
as to 45% by Mr. Zheng Weijing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
was required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

e For identification purposes only

AR #5 71,240,000 7T

Wit ZEadMEA N HEREETEARAR
(EMEEEIR])IE - RYTEEREL
MAERAR (TFRINEE]) BEEREEDE
BIERM72% RN EERBEREEHS
45% )RR ©

Br PR EEN R E-THF+ A
=t+t—H ARFESRETBITHRASHR
BRI A R EA AR EE (TR EFFH
MEREEHIEXVER) Z D - HERHD &
EHR A BREE S KA E 5558 xv 5D
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEeRE (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRREMALTRERG R EE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN ROFPHERE XS

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the following RZZEZZEF+A=+—H BEEMA T
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had AT (RRBEEREETHRABRIN R
an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded DRABRGO P HEELERARAREE S
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the REBGAIE B BRREAFENT MR
SFO: FKE -

(i) Interests in the Shares (i) RO zkE=R

Number of Shares held (Note 1)
BERGEE (1)

Interest of
Beneficial Interest of Security controlled Approximate
Name of Shareholder Interest spouse interest corporation Total percentage
RREA ERED EEER BRES SEEEER @y BREIH
(%)
Ming Cheng Investments Limited 367,739,567 - - - 367,739,567 21.24
BRBEERARAA (Note 2)
GEY)
Ms. Zhang Chushan - 408,369,769 - - 408,369,769 2359
REH LT (Note 3)
GEE)
Sino-Africa Resources Holdings Limited 255,676,042 - - - 255,676,042 1477
REERERAR AT (Note 4)
(Bzx4)
Peace Bloom Limited 145,429,087 - - - 145,429,087 840
BEFRAE (Note 5)
GiES)
Upsoar Limited 155,518,650 - - - 155,518,650 898
ARBRAF (Note 6)
(MEe)
Mr. Huang Xiguang = . - 255,676,042 255,676,042 14.77
Efppita (Note 4)
(Hiz4)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interests in the Shares (Continued)

FERREHEMATRRS R EEA
RGP ER AR (R)

(i)

Rz (&)

Number of Shares held (Note 1)
BERGEE (1)

Interest of
Beneficial Interest of Security controlled Approximate
Name of Shareholder Interest spouse interest corporation Total percentage
BREHEE ERER fiBER ERERZ ZEIBER @it BREsk
(%)
Mr. Hu Jinxi 22,200,000 - - 145,429,087 167,629,087 968
HeELE (Note 5)
(B3ES)
Ms. Fu Shanping - - - 155,518,650 155,518,650 898
BEFLL (Note 6)
(Ktzxe)
Kimberland Credit Limited - - 408,369,769 - 408,369,769 2359
TAREEBRAR (Note 7)
(FizE7)
Mr. Shi Andong - - - 408,369,769 408,369,769 2359
MEREE (Note 7)
GEY)

Notes: B3

1. These represent the corporation’s/person’s long position in the Shares. 1. REZEE ATHRBROROETE -

2. Ming Cheng Investments Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Zheng 2. AREEERAGESBEREEDERES -
Weijing.

3. Ms. Zhang Chushan is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Weijing. By virtue of the 3. REMAZ L AEEREENES - REES
provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Zhang Chushan is deemed to be K ERE &5 S8 XV EBEMESRTE - SR 22+
interested in all the interests in which Mr. Zheng Weijing is interested or WRARSEREEREERIWRAES
deemed to be interested in. R TE R G ER

4, Sino-Africa Resources Holdings Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. 4. FIEERIERBRARIBEES L LETER
Huang Xiguang. =i

5. Peace Bloom Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Jinxi. 5. REARAFAMESEELERS -

6. Upsoar Limited is a company wholly-owned by Ms. Fu Shanping. 6. MAERARABETLL2EHS -

e Based on the notices of disclosure of interests filed by each of Kimberland 7. BRELAREEERAARMLERAEEE

Credit Limited and Mr. Shi Andong on 23 January 2020, these long positions
in the Shares are held by Kimberland Credit Limited which is directly wholly-
owned by Mr. Shi Andong. Under the SFO, Mr. Shi Andong is deemed to
be interested in these long positions in Shares held by Kimberland Credit
Limited.

EHSBRBZERERLA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’' AND OTHER
PERSONS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Interests in the underlying Shares

FERREHEMATRRS R EEA
RGP ER AR (R)

(i) REBERG zER

Approximate

percentage of

Capacity/ shareholding in

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Number of underlying Shares the Company

MRER %A 5 EEME HEARGDEE RARQT

Long position  Short position BRH

HaE KRR =R

(%)

Ms. Zhang Chushan Interest of spouse 2,020,000 - 0.12
sRIE M2+ foiBrEss (Note)
(BftaE)

Notes: Ms. Zhang Chushan is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Weijing. By virtue of the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Zhang Chushan is deemed to be
interested in all the interests or short positions in which Mr. Zheng Weijing is
interested or deemed to be interested in.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there was no person
who had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company on 20 December 2011 for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to the eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and/or
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest, and any other party having contribution to the development
of the Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme and percentage to the
issued share capital as at the date of this report
173,143,250 shares (approximately 10% of the total issued share
capital as at the date of this annual report).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under
the Share Option Scheme
Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

5. The period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option
A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to
the grantee thereof.

8 B 3
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3. REBERETETMHBITZRAE
BRERAFEAHERITREAZ
BOtE
173,143,250 (& 15 (FEE RN AN F 3Rk H HiE 8
TTRRAABEEA) 10%) o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

6.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an
option before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which
payments or calls must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or before the
date of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the
date of offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest
of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

C the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 20 December 2011 (being the date of adoption of
the Share Option Scheme).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 17 December 2015, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 76,000,000
shares of the Company have been granted by the Company to the existing
Directors, employees and advisors of the Group under the Share Option
Scheme; 30% of share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2016 to
19 December 2021 (“2015 Share Option 1”); 30% of share options have an
exercise period from 1 June 2017 to 19 December 2021 (“2015 Share Option
2"); and the remaining share options have an exercise period from 1 June
2018 to 19 December 2021 (“2015 Share Option 3”). All share options are
subject to the fulfillment of relevant profit targets by the Company, as set
out below, and share options shall not be vested if any of the profit targets is
failed to be met.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

BT 8 ()
R-Z—RE+-A+LH FAARBER

B2 AEEREESE - EELBERRLE
f& 4 - A] & KR AR 7] 76,000,000 E iR 15 - H
F30% ERENITERAZT—
—E-—F+-At+hB( = —AFERE
1) 30%BEREMNTTERAE T —+tF/A—H
EE-—F+-A+hhB=ZZE—0FER
BN RHBTERENTERE-Z—N\FAX
A—Bz-_Z-_—4%+_-_A+hB(=ZZE—H
FREREIND) - FTAEREAEGARTENEH
B BRI NXEH) B AR

NEARA—RZE

- AR BEE

REBRNER BRETETUNRS -

FrE BRI BRI T -

Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
tb=E FEAH i e SEEE
HKS
BT
2015 Share 17 December 2015 31 May 2016 1June 2016 to 1046 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment
Option 1 —E-RE ZE-RF 19 December 2021 expenses) according to the audited consolidated financial
“E-nfF +ZA+tA TA=T-B ZE-R"EXA-RAZ statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December
BiRE “E--E+ZA+tAA 2015:

BERARRABE-T-RF+_A=t-HLFEN
RECEAMBRE  BASH (BRMBROMR
FIS0) RO M -

- Equal to or more than RMB35 million, 100% of 2015
Share Option 1 shall be vested;
BERASRARKSEEL ERE_%
— DR I47100% :

- Equal to or more than RMB25 million but less than
RMB35 million, 50% of 2015 Share Option 1 shall be
vested; and
EERALRARE S BETEIRARE S
BET NERBE-Z—DERREIH50%:;
K

- Less than RMB25 million, no 2015 Share Option 1
shall be vested.
PRARBSEERL ABEGEE_2—1%
Bk -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued)

Date of grant

RHA%

Vesting date Exercise period

FEAH red

BT & (&)

FrERBIBRESRBOT : (&)

Exercise
price
5E
HKS
B

Vesting conditions

BRI

2015 Share
Option 2 “T-R%

—T-1%
Bz

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

17 December 2015

+=A+tH

1 June 2017 to
19 December 2021

31 May 2017
“E—tF
TA=+-AH

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

“F-t5/ A-HE
“E-—-#+-A1+NA

1.046

Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment
expenses) according to the audited consolidated financial
statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December

BEARTBE-_T—"FT-A=t-BLFEN
RECHEAMBARR  BAEHR (BRMBRRH M5
SO OB M -

Equal to or more than RMB65 million, 100% of 2015
Share Option 2 shall be vested;
BHERIENARRBET BEREE_F
— R RARIEI#100% :

Equal to or more than RMB50 million but less than
RMB65 million, 50% of 2015 Share Option 2 shall be
vested; and
BERFERARESOAETEIRARK S
BB BAGB T HFRBIREI50%
i

Less than RMBS50 million, no 2015 Share Option 2
shall be vested.

SRARBOEET NHERE_Z-1F
BRRRAEN -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued)

fBRRERTE (&)

RrERBBRESBOT - (&)

Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
REAH FEAH i e HERL
HKS
BT
2015 Share 17 December 2015 31 May 2018 1June 20180 1046 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment
Option 3 “ET-1F —E-N\E 19 December 2021 expenses) according to the audited consolidated financial
—2-nF TZAT+A BA=t—-A ZE-\fXA-BZ statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December
BREN “E--5+t-AthA 2017:

On 15 January 2018, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 98,000,000
shares of the Company have been granted by the Company to the existing
directors, employees and advisors of the Group under the Share Option
Scheme; 10% of share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2018
to 14 January 2023 (“2018 Share Option 1”); 20% of share options have an
exercise period from 1 June 2019 to 14 January 2023 (“2018 Share Option 2");
30% of share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2020 to 14 January
2023 ("2018 Share Option 3"); and the remaining share options have an
exercise period from 1 June 2021 to 14 January 2023 (“2018 Share Option 4").

BEARABE-T—tF+ A=t HLEEN
RELEAMBERE  BASH (BRMBRDH
FIS0) R -

- Equal to or more than RMB100 million, 100% of 2015
Share Option 3 shall be vested;
BERIZRARKI0BET  JEAGE-
T RFRBARENA100% :

- Equal to or more than RMB8O million but less than
RMB100 million, 50% of 2015 Share Option 3 shall
be vested; and
BERAZRARBOBETELRARE
10EET IEEBE_S-LFBREIN
50% R

- Less than RMB80 million, no 2015 Share Option 3
shall be vested.
IRARKOEEL ABEEE_T-0F
BAEN -

R-ZE—NFE—ATHB  ARTREERE
EMASEBERAES BEERBERREER
W A] A R AR 598,000,000 & R 15 o H A
0% BRENTERA-E-N\EXA-BE-
T_ZF-ATHB(ZZ—N\FERE])
20% B ENITERAE S NFA—HEZ
Eo=F-A+tHB(ZE—\FEREI])
30% R ENITERA S -_EFA—HBE-
Eo=F-A+mWBE( - N\FEERZEID K
BTHERENTERA-_S-_—FA—HBEZ
Eo=F—-A+tmE (- N\FBRENV]) -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

All share options are subject to the fulfillment of relevant profit targets by the
Company, as set out below, and share options shall not be vested if any of
the profit targets is failed to be met.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

BT & (&)

FrEBREASRARENABENEE (0T
R 4 IR R BEER R BRI B
BRETETUBE -

FrERRBI B IBENT

Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
REAH FERS id e HERG
HKS
BT
2018 Share 15 January 2018 31 May 2018 1June 2018to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment
Option 1 —T-N\& —2-N\% 14 January 2023 expenses) according to the audited consolidated financial
—E-N\& —A+AA ARA=t-B ZE-\FXA-H statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December
BE F-Z-=£-AtWA 2017:

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

BEARRAEE-F—tE+-A=+-HLEEN
AELEAMBRE  BASH (BRMBRRD M5
FIs0) (R -

- Equal to or more than RMB100 million, 100% of 2018
Share Option 1 shall be vested;
BERIFRARKI0BET  AEGE_
T— \FRRHEIH100% :

- Equal to or more than RMB8O million but less than
RMB100 million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 1 shall
be vested; and
HERISRARKOBETELIRARE
I0EET HEGB - — \FEREN
50% :

- Less than RMB80 million, no 2018 Share Option 1
shall be vested.
PRAREOEET ABERE_T-\F
BRI
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) fBRRERT & (&)
Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
REAH FEAS i e HERE
HKS
BT
2018 Share 15 January 2018 31 May 2019 1June 2019to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment
Option 2 —T-N\F ZE-NE 14 January 2023 expenses) according to the audited consolidated financial
—F-N\% —AT+hA EA=t-A ZE-N&~A-8 statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December
BRE E-ER--F-AtRA 2018;

BEARABE-T-\F+_A=+-HLFEN
RELEAMBRE  BAGH (BRMBRDH
FS0) (R -

- Equal to or more than RMB150 million, 100% of 2018
Share Option 2 shall be vested;
BERIFRARK10BET  AEARE-
T \FRIRIEN80100% :

- Equal to or more than RMB100 million but less than
RMB150 million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 2 shall
be vested; and
BERIAZRAREI0EETEIRARS
10BEET NEARE_Z—\FBREIN
50% R

- Less than RMB100 million, no 2018 Share Option 2
shall be vested.
PRARKI0EET  MIBREBE_T-N
FRRE-

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period

REAM

FEAH TR

BT & (&)

Exercise
price
5E
HKS
B

Vesting conditions

BRHEHE

2018 Share 15 January 2018 31 May 2020 1 June 2020 to

Option 3 —T-N\E
“E-)N\F —A+&A BRA=+t-B Z—Z-ZE F-8
E-E-=F-A1@EA

BN

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ZTCZ%E 14 January 2023

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

0.842

Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment
expenses) according to the audited consolidated financial
statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019:
BEARREZ-_Z-NFT-A=+-RILFEN
RERGEAMBERE  RAGH (ERNBRH R
RIS RER -

- Equal to or more than RMB200 million, 100% of 2018
Share Option 3 shall be vested;
RERAERARB 0088 AIERE=
T \ERBRAEN#100% :

- Equal to or more than RMB150 million but less than
RMB200 million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 3 shall
be vested; and
BERIEZRARBI0EETEIRARE
WEET AERB-Z-N\FERENN
50% : J

- Less than RMB150 million, no 2018 Share Option 3
shall be vested.
SRARBI0EEL WBRAGEB-T—/\
FRREN -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BT E (&)
Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
BiiBH RS i e BERH
HKS
B
2018 Share 15 January 2018 31 May 2021 1June 2021 to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment
Option 4 —E-N\E s 4 January 2023 expenses) according to the audited consolidated financial
—T-N\E —ATHA BRA=t—-H ZE--51"AF-H statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December
BREV F-Z--F-AtMA 2020:
REFARABE_Z_ZFT_A=T-ALEREN

On 31 May 2016, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 22,800,000 Shares,
being 100% of 2015 Share Option 1, have been vested to the grantees
of the options. On 31 May 2017, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
19,350,000 Shares of 2015 Share Option 2 have been vested to the grantees
of the options. On 31 May 2018, options to subscribe for an aggregated of
23,200,000 Shares and 9,800,000 Shares of 2015 Share Option 3 and 2018
Share Option 1, respectively have been vested to the grantees of the options.
On 31 May 2019, options to subscribe for an aggregated of 6,840,000 Shares
of 2018 Share Option 2 have been vested to the grantees of the options. On
31 May 2020, none of 2018 Share Option 3 have been vested to the grantees
of the options.

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of securities available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme pursuant to its terms was 74,340,000 Shares,
representing in aggregate approximately 4.3% of the Company’s issued
share capital.

AELEAMBRE  BASH (BRMBRRD M5
RIS RER -

- Equal to or more than RMB250 million, 100% of 2018
Share Option 4 shall be vested;
BERIERARK0BEL AEGEZ
T \ERMRE VA 100%

- Equal to or more than RMB200 million but less than
RMB250 million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 4 shall
be vested; and
BEREZRARE0EETEIRARE
BOEET AERE_ZT—\FBREVH
50% : ]

- Less than RMB200 million, no 2018 Share Option 4
shall be vested.

PRARE200BET BEARB-S—

FHRREY -
W:;*ﬁ¢£ﬂ2+*ﬂ AJ 320 22,800,000
& B 10 B B IR (5 = ﬁﬁ%h%ﬂﬂmw

ﬁ%%%m%%A?“ TR ZE—+FH
H:+_E| u/uE% ﬁf'EE%HXTg”D/\

w&wm%hf%%kﬁam%h%mﬁﬁA
BE-N_ZT—N\FEA=+—8 5HRE=
E—ﬁi%k%m&%%_ﬁ NEEREE
+ 23,200,000 A% X2 9,800,000 f% & 17 #9 B8 A% 4 B [
%k%%%%A?T CHRTE—NAFRA=F—
B RE_ZF— N\FHEREIS 6840000 % %
DHERECERENERARE R-ZT=
EFERFAZ+T—HB T \FERENTES
BT EREREA -

R-T-FF+-A=+—0 - REBRETE

1G5R - HIE T Al = 31T A8 25 2 85 74,340,000
fERiE1D - & AR BB BEITRR AL 43% °

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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BT & (&)

BE_Z_ZHFF_A=+—HLFE REB
Hx%ﬁr%ﬂi‘xﬂjE’Jﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁ’]“%ﬁﬁl LN

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of movements of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Number of share options
Outstanding as at Grantedduring  Exercised during Lapsedduring  Outstanding as at
Name Date of grant 1 January 2020 the year the year theyear  31December 2020
R-B_%% A\ZB-%F
-A-H +ZB=1-H
#e RHAE e FREH ER{TE FREH R AT R
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Zheng Weijing
(esigned on 26 March 2021) 17 December 2015 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
PEREE “T-RETZATHHE
(RZB-_—F=A-tRA 15 January 2018
B Z-/\§—-A+hA 1,530,000 - - (510,000) 1,020,000
Mr. Zhang Gongjun 17 December 2015 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
FARRE SE REL-RHLR
15 January 2018
- )\5—A+1A 3,600,000 - - (1,200,000) 2,400,000
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (duties suspended
LBon 26 March 2021) 17 December 2015 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
Fi &
(R=ZE-—-F=F=+H
TERT) “E-RETCATLH
15 January 2018
2 \§-A+hA 3,600,000 - - (1,200,000) 2,400,000
Independent non-executive
Directors
BUFHTES
Dr.Vincent Cheng 17 December 2015 500,000 - - - 500,000
LIEA T “Z-RETZATHAE
15 January 2018
- )\5—A+1A 540,000 - - (180,000) 360,000
Mr. Leung Po Hon 17 December 2015
(resigned on 19 November 2020) 500,000 - - (500,000) -
28 %% ZE-RE+ZATtH
(RZZZZF+—A+NE 15 knuay 2018
) —Z-/\5-A+HA 540,000 - - (540,000) -
Dr. Miao Bo 17 December 2015 500,000 - - - 500,000
ERET “E2-RE+-AT+A
15 January 2018
—E2-\§-A+hA 540,000 - - (180,000) 360,000
Sub-total
gt 28850,000 - - (4310000 24,540,000
Employees in aggregate 17 December 2015 25,000,000 - - (4,000,000) 21,000,000
&t “E2-Rf+-A++A
15 January 2018
Z-\§-A+hH 35,730,000 - - (17,610,000) 18,120000
Sub-total
N 60,730,000 - - (21,610,000) 39,120,000
Adwsors in aggregate 17 December 2015 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
|“I:In :g ﬂ@ﬂ‘_ﬂ‘ftﬁ
15 January 2018
—Z-/\-A+hA 7,020,000 - - (2,340,000) 4,680,000
Sub-total
It 13,020,000 - - (2340,000) 10,680,000
Total
by 102,600,000 - - (28,260,000) 74,340,000
ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

No options were cancelled during the year. Further details of the share
options are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, any of
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to hold any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company and/or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

'

The Company has arranged for insurance cover for Directors’ and officers
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior officers
arising out of corporate activities. During the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this annual report, save that (i) pursuant to the service
contract of each of the executive Directors, the Company shall indemnify
such Directors against, to the extent permitted by laws, all losses, claims,
compensations, liabilities or expenses incurred as a result of such Directors
performing his/her duties and responsibilities under such contracts,
including but not limited to any legal proceedings against such Directors
and except for wilful default or negligence; and (i) pursuant to the Articles
of Association, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as
they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty, no other
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors'Report) Regulation (Cap. 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was or
is being in force for the benefit of any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company (if
made by the Company).

fBRRERTE (&)

FRIETHBANE - BREZFBHNGREH
TERAR ML 28 ©

EEREROIES ZER

bR EXFTREEEIN - AR HAEMNEB AR
HAREER - KR RE A A s R A R
RAFELET VAL  BEAARESY
Igf:fﬁlk,%\ﬁ/\\\m j&/&ﬁ*ﬁ awf.(ﬂi%f‘%
ﬁi%&%ﬂ%%zkfim%kﬁiﬁ%¢
BEEESEIORE -

EETFREERX

ARRCHREXRDASIBHEEET RSB
BHPERTHPEERSABENEETRR &
ECEEFSA_A=+t-HULEFERHEER
FHREH  BKOARRRBENTEZTORBES
)RR AEHEA %%%%%@FﬁﬁA
HWRITEBE REEMSIBWERER - REE

F%~“L&%§I@%@T@Fﬁﬁﬁé$k
HEPERFAR - BT EREE RO 2RT AT
SIME)VERZBESN  RREERMA - &
EARARARZEERSRE REERFEFE
A=A WRENERF A —REBRITANE
EEEASUAEREESB ZBUNZEN
BEFMELEMTR REXBEIAENT
HBGR BB M A EELERRIMEF
ACRABRABR BEMEX - AERRE
RRBREMBET  ELBETSREEER
EZHFHTHETRAMELEXRINIEE (W
B) > BEEME A RE AR e EERFE R E
(EERBBEOE2DERRE (EEHE) BRI
£ BREIMNES (BEmpARRIIEMAL
fE) kB2 R AMEMESE (WA AR FEL)
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Structure contracts

Arrangement under the Structured Agreements

The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic benefits
from Guangdong Huijin to Flying Investment Services (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Flying Investment”) stipulated under the Exclusivity Agreement (as
defined in the Prospectus and set out below), the Equity Pledge Agreement
(as defined in the Prospectus and set out below), the Exclusive Option and
Equity Custodian Agreement (as defined in the Prospectus and set out
below), the Power of Attorney (as defined in the Prospectus and set out
below) and the Supplemental Agreement (as defined in the Prospectus)
(collectively, the “Structured Agreements”):

(1) Power of attorney to exercise all shareholders’ right in Guangdong
Huijin

(2)  Exclusive option to acquire all or part of the equity interest in
Guangdong Huijin

(3)  Flying investment as custodian to manage the entire equity interest in
Guangdong Huijin

(4)  First priority security interest over the entire equity interest in
Guangdong Huijin

Flying Investment

EBRE

Management and
consultation service

I8 N B RTS \:/

Guangdong Huijin

BERES

" denotes direct legal and beneficial ownerships in the equity
interest and “- - - - >"denotes contractual relationship.
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Management and
consultation fees

EIENERE

TRERARSERERS

RAFEER - AEBGHETT TIAEEBTGEM EH
MAIFE 0B HE  FEEH A5 LBILBRL
ERENFERERS -

REEN

REME R

ATOEERTREBEBER M (EELERER
NRERTX)  BEERBE(EEZLBRER
MERTX)  BREREEBRESEHZ
%ﬁ?ﬁ“%%&&%ﬁEATﬁl) E#EE(EERH
RERLENTX) RExHE (EERBRE
%:z)( TSI RERZE]) MRTERESHNLE
%'Jﬁn//lL]\[H’y‘HXﬁﬁE%( ﬁ")ﬁﬁﬁ T(FEH@‘%
BE])RBIE

(1) TEEZEERRRNERESHENNRES

2 WBERESZHMIEBRAERNER
B R

Q) EMREERTEAETERRESNHZE
A 2h

@ RERESZIMAZENE —ELERA
=

Original
Shareholders

RERE

[ JERBENERAEREGHBER
[---->EAKNIE -
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Structured Agreements

In accordance with the Structured Agreements, the Original Shareholders
(as defined in the Prospectus), being immediate shareholders who are
interested in, in aggregate, the entire equity interest in Guangdong Huijin,
have granted an exclusive and irrevocable option to Flying Investment or its
nominee(s) to acquire all or part of the equity interest in Guangdong Huijin
held by the Original Shareholders as permitted by the then PRC laws and
regulations. The Group has the intention to acquire Guangdong Huijin or
the pawn business it is carrying on when PRC laws and regulations allow
the operation of such business by foreign invested enterprises. When Flying
Investment or its nominee(s) exercise the option and acquire all of the equity
interest in Guangdong Huijin, the Structured Agreements will be terminated.
The PRC legal adviser of the Company confirmed that it is sufficient for
all immediate shareholders of Guangdong Huijin (but not tracing to the
ultimate beneficial owners of the corporate shareholders of Guangdong
Huijin) to enter into the Structured Agreements. Subject to compliance with
the PRC laws, Flying Investment or its nominee(s) may exercise the option
mentioned above at any time and in any manner at their sole discretion.

The Structured Agreements, taken as a whole, enable the financial results
of Guangdong Huijin and the economic benefits of its business to flow
onto Flying Investment. In addition, all the directors, general manager and
senior management staff of Guangdong Huijin (except those elected by
the employee representatives) are to be nominated by Flying Investment.
Through its control over and supervision of the directors, general manager
and senior management of Guangdong Huijin, Flying Investment is able
to effectively manage the business, financial and operating activities
of Guangdong Huijin so as to obtain benefits from its activities and to
ensure due implementation of the Structured Agreements. The Structured
Agreements also enable Flying Investment to, if and when permitted by
PRC law, acquire the equity interests in Guangdong Huijin in accordance
with PRC law. The Directors are of the view that the Structured Agreements
enable the Group to be managed coherently with the power to govern
the business, financial and operating activities of Guangdong Huijin for the
benefit of the Group as a whole. Based on the Structured Agreements, taken
as a whole, the Directors consider that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership in Guangdong Huijin, our Group controls Guangdong Huijin
in substance. On this basis, the Group is regarded as a continuing entity
resulting from these Structured Agreements such that the financial position
and operating results of Guangdong Huijin are included in the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.

TRERBARSERER S (&)

BB RE

RIERBEHZ  RER(EELARER AR
ERESHEMEAEETARXFTEEANE
BEERR) EREBRERERSARL —BBR
RAF R B - AEE R BEDER AR
AAMBEATEERERRERESHANE
AR AR D AR - AREABWEERES K
HIEHEREPBIZRERERTFFINEREMKE
EHHEE R - NEBRERERBATTERRKR
R UE B RE € A BAER - REHZAKE
RIE - ARARENERERCHER  BERESH
EEERR (BYREPEERESEERR
MRRBESEE AN BRILRBERE - RESTH
BUZEMBRT  ERREIERAAR2ER
1B BERS R AR AR 5 SV 1T 8 Lt RS R -

RighE (GABRMS) tHAERESNMBE
AREXBHEBER S RAEBIE - 1o - &
RES2RES  ALEKSREEERE (A
BEARIEZALTHRINGHERITERS
BREHEERESES ARELRSREEREN
BHIREE EMRENARERERESHE
% MBREERSY  ABEERESHERF =
RIEREEBITRBE G - £ TBURERFNIB
T - BBt R TME E BT & R AR R P BRI
BERESHERAED EFAR  RBWHHES
AEEGUER—BNEE UHEEERERE
SEB  UBREEZDHNESN  UNAREH
MEENZD - REREHE  EFRE - BE
T OBEYLEERESRAEDHMEE BX
SEEE LIHIERESOFRR - HULEE - K
SEREAZEREHIELNSEER ME
RESHUBRAREEERBCHALEEN
RAMB]mE -
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Structured

Agreements:

(1)  Exclusivity Agreement
Flying Investment and Guangdong Huijin entered into the Exclusivity
Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) on 1
August 2011, pursuant to which, among other matters:

Guangdong Huijin agreed to engage Flying Investment
on an exclusive basis irrevocably to provide management
and consultation services in connection with its operations,
including but not limited to assisting in formulating the
company management mode and operation plans, assisting
in formulating market development plans, providing market
information and customer source information, being appointed
to conduct specific market research and investigation,
providing staff training, assisting in establishing sales channel,
providing management, financial or other services in relation
to Guangdong Huijin's operations, assisting in locating suitable
fund-raising channels for Guangdong Huijin's operational
capital needs, assisting in provision of customer maintenance
and management and assisting in provision to the clients
of Guangdong Huijin of feasible fund-raising solutions and
procuring the implementation of such solutions;

unless Flying Investment consents in writing in advance,
Guangdong Huijin shall not accept management and
consultation services provided by any third party;

the board of directors of Guangdong Huijin shall be
nominated by Flying Investment, and such board of directors
shall determine the corporate management and business
development and expansion strategy of Guangdong Huijing
according to the actual circumstances of its operations;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

TRERBARSERER S (&)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

(1)

2)

Exclusivity Agreement (Continued)

- Flying Investment shall be solely responsible for selection of
Guangdong Huijin's senior management and employees, its
finance, management and daily operations, and Guangdong
Huijin shall comply with all directions and opinions from Flying
Investment; and

- Guangdong Huijin shall pay to Flying Investment on a monthly
basis (or other methods agreed by both parties), management
and consultation fees equivalent to the total revenue less all
the related costs, expenses and taxes payable by Guangdong
Huijin. Flying Investment shall be entitled to appoint its
employees or external auditors to inspect the financial
conditions of Guangdong Huijin to audit the exact amount of
the management and consultation fees.

The Exclusivity Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) commenced from 1 August 2011 and will expire on
the date on which all the equity interests in Guangdong Huijin are
transferred to Flying Investment or its nominee(s) and such transfers
are registered.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Flying Investment, Guangdong Huijin and the Original Shareholders
entered into the Equity Pledge Agreement (as supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement) on 1 August 2011, pursuant to which,
among other matters:

- the Original Shareholders agreed to grant to Flying Investment
a first priority security interest over all their respective direct
equity interest in Guangdong Huijin and all related rights and
revenue for guaranteeing the performance of obligations of
the Original Shareholders and Guangdong Huijin under the
Exclusivity Agreement and the Exclusive Option and Equity
Custodian Agreement, such obligations include, among
others, payment of management and consultation fees for the
management and consultation service, interests, compensation
etc,;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)
(2) Equity Pledge Agreement (Continued)

TREARKFERER S (&)
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- during the term of the pledge, Flying Investment shall be
entitled to all dividends or distribution in any other forms
derived from the pledged equity interests and to exercise its
right to deal with the pledged equity interest in a manner
permitted by the relevant PRC laws if Guangdong Huijin and/or
the Original Shareholders cannot fully perform their respective
obligations under the Exclusivity Agreement and/or the
Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement; and

- during the term of the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Original
Shareholders shall not transfer, create or permit the existence
of other security interest over the pledged equity interests
in Guangdong Huijin without prior written consent of Flying
Investment.

The Equity Pledge Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) is effective from the date on which it has been executed
by the parties thereto while the pledge created thereunder shall
become effective upon such pledge having been duly registered
in Guangdong Huijin's register of members and having been
duly registered with the relevant Administration for Industry
and Commerce of the PRC, and it will remain effective until the
termination of either the Exclusivity Agreement (as supplemented
by the Supplemental Agreement) or the Exclusive Option and Equity
Custodian Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement), whichever is later. The pledges under the Equity Pledge
Agreement were duly registered on 5 August 2011 with Sa J& 1 L&
FTBUE 2 B (Heyuan Administration for Industry and Commerce
Bureau).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)
(3) Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement

Flying Investment, Guangdong Huijin and the Original Shareholders
entered into the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) on 1 August

2011, pursuant to which, among other matters:
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the Original Shareholders granted, at nil consideration, an
exclusive and irrevocable option to Flying Investment or
its nominee(s) to acquire all or part of the equity interest
in Guangdong Huijin held by the Original Shareholders as
permitted by the then PRC laws and regulations during the term
of the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement at
nil consideration or the minimum amount as permitted by the
applicable PRC laws. The Original Shareholders further covenant
that if such minimum amount is required to be paid by Flying
Investment or its nominee(s) to the Original Shareholders
as consideration for the acquisition of the equity interest of
Guangdong Huijin, such amount would be waived by the
Original Shareholders subject to compliance with the then PRC
laws and hence there should not be any cash outflow or adverse
financial impact on our Group. If such option is exercised in
full by Flying Investment or its nominee(s), our Group will be
interested in the entire equity interest of Guangdong Huijin;

subject to compliance with the PRC laws, Flying Investment or
its nominee(s) may exercise the option mentioned above at any
time and in any manner at their sole discretion;

pending the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Guangdong Huijin by Flying Investment or its nominee(s), the
Original Shareholders shall not, among other matters, transfer,
pledge or grant a custodian right over such equity interest in
Guangdong Huijin to any third parties without prior written
consent of Flying Investment and Guangdong Huijin;

the Original Shareholders, jointly and severally, irrevocably
granted, at nil consideration, a right to Flying Investment or its
nominee(s) to manage the entire equity interest in Guangdong
Huijin as custodian during the term of the Exclusive Option and
Equity Custodian Agreement;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)
(3) Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement (Continued)
- the Original Shareholders and Guangdong Huijin covenanted
that, among others:

(@)  Flying Investment or its nominee(s) shall exercise all
shareholders’ right of the Original Shareholders in
Guangdong Huijin, further details are set out in the
paragraph headed “Power of Attorney”below; and

(b)  Flying Investment shall have the exclusive right to
nominate directors, general manager and other senior
management staff of Guangdong Huijin, and the Original
Shareholders shall appoint such nominees as directors,
general manager and other senior management staff of
Guangdong Huijin;

- during the term of the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian
Agreement, the Original Shareholders and Guangdong Huijin
shall not engage in any transactions which will materially
affect the assets, business, rights, operation or management
of Guangdong Huijin without prior consent from Flying
Investment, including but not limited to the following:

(@ to amend the constitutional documents of Guangdong
Huijin;

(b) to increase or reduce the registered capital of
Guangdong Huijin; and

() during the term of the Exclusive Option and Equity
Custodian Agreement, the Original Shareholders and/or
Guangdong Huijin shall not transfer, mortgage, pledge or
otherwise deal with the assets of Guangdong Huijin; and

- in case of liquidation or dissolution of Guangdong Huijin, Flying
Investment or its nominee(s) shall have the right to appoint
a liquidator to manage the assets of Guangdong Huijin as
permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.

The Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement (as
supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) is effective from
1 August 2011 and will expire on the date on which all the equity
interests in Guangdong Huijin are transferred to Flying Investment or
its nominee(s) and such transfers are registered.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

(4)

Power of Attorney

Flying Investment and each of the Original Shareholders entered
into the Power of Attorney (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) on 1 August 2011, pursuant to which, among other
matters, Flying Investment or its nominee(s), including its directors
(and their successors) were authorised by each of the Original
Shareholders to exercise their respective shareholders’ right in
Guangdong Huijin including the rights to elect and change the
directors and supervisors who are not elected by the employee
representatives, the rights to decide the increase or reduction of the
registered capital and the rights to receive or decline the dividends or
other distribution on behalf of the Original Shareholders.

The Power of Attorney (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) is effective from 1 August 2011 and will expire on the
date on which all the equity interests in Guangdong Huijin are
transferred to Flying Investment or its nominee(s) and such transfers
are registered.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Flying Investment was
not entitled to any management and consultation fees (2019:
RMB454,000) from Guangdong Huijin in a manner as prescribed in
the Exclusivity Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) on 1 August 2011. The management and consultation
fees are equivalent to the total revenue less all the related costs,
expenses and taxes payable by Guangdong Huijin as extracted from
the audited financial statements of Guangdong Huijin for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (“Audited Financial Statements of Huijin").
According to the Audited Financial Statements of Huijin, no dividend
or other distribution had been made for the year ended 31 December
2020 by Guangdong Huijin.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

4

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Power of Attorney (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Structured Agreements and confirmed that: (i) the transactions carried
out during the year ended 31 December 2020 have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Structured
Agreements, have been operated so that any revenue generated by
Guangdong Huijin would have been substantially retained by Flying
Investment; (i) no dividends or other distributions have been made
by Guangdong Huijin to the holders of its equity interests which are
not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group;
(iii) the Structured Agreements, any new contracts entered into,
renewed or reproduced between the Group and Guangdong Huijin
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are fair and reasonable, or
advantageous, so far as the Group is concerned and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole; (iv) the Structured Agreements have
been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; and (v) the Structured Agreements have been entered into on
normal commercial terms or better.

The Company’s auditors has carried out procedures on the
management fee charged for the year pursuant to the Structured
Agreements and reported its conclusion to the Board, confirming
that the transactions have received the approval of the Directors,
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant Structured
Agreements and that no dividends or other distributions have
been made by Guangdong Huijin to the registered shareholders of
Guangdong Huijin which are not otherwise subsequently assigned/
transferred to the Group. The Board confirmed that the Company’s
auditors have confirmed that none of the matters set out in Rule 20.54
of the GEM Listing Rules has come to the auditors’attention.

For the purposes of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, and in
particular the definition of “Connected Person’, Guangdong Huijin has
been treated as the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, but at the
same time, the directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders
of Guangdong Huijin and their respective associates have been
treated as the Company’s “Connected Persons” and transactions
between these Connected Persons and the Group other than those
under the Structured Agreements shall comply with Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Guangdong Huijin and each of the Original Shareholders have
undertaken that, for so long as the Shares are listed on GEM,
Guangdong Huijin and each of the Original Shareholders will provide
the Group’s management and the Company’s auditors with full access
to its relevant records for the purpose of the Company’s auditors’
review of the connected transactions.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions disclosed under “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions’, details of the material related party transactions
entered into by the Group are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements which do not constitute notifiable or connected transactions
under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements (if any) in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2020.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 20 December 2011.
The role, function and composition of the Audit Committee are set out in the
paragraph headed "Audit Committee” of the Corporate Governance Report
of this annual report.

The Group's consolidated results and the results announcement for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Board is of opinion that the preparation of such financial information
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules and any other applicable legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEHE)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company maintained the amount of public float
as required under GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and a
resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting. There has been no change in
auditors of the Group in any of the preceding 3 years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhang Gongjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HERER®E

ABOUT THIS REPORT

We are pleased to present this Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”"), as set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The information stated in this
report covers the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“reporting period”) which aligns with the financial year as the 2020 annual
report of the Group.

CORE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

In the period under review, the Group’s main activities are investment in
property development projects, operation of financial services platform,
provision of entrusted loan, pawn loan and other loan services, financial
consultation services, and finance lease services mainly in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC" or “China”).

ESG APPROACH

This Report demonstrates Flying Financial Service Holdings Ltd.'s (hereinafter

referred to as “Flying Financial’, the “Company”) and its subsidiaries’

(the "Group”) policy, approach and performance in terms of sustainable
development for the financial year ended on 31 December 2020.

The scope of this ESG report mainly includes the data and activities of the
Hong Kong and Shenzhen offices which are the major operating locations of
the Group.

In view of the nature of the business of the Group, the Group does not
pose significant environmental risks in its operation as compared to other
engineering or manufacturing focused companies. As such, the scope of
this report focuses mainly on the Group’s management approach in the
areas of labour practices, employee benefits, supply chain management,
product responsibility, anti-corruption and anti-money laundering activity
and community investment.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

Our approach to stakeholder engagement is designed to ensure that our
stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations are fully understood to help
define our current and future sustainability strategies.

The Group believes that the interests of all stakeholders must be taken
in account in order to strengthen relationship with our shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, government authorities and the society as
awhole.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HERER®HE(E)

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

(CONTINUED)

The Group proactively engaged with the key stakeholder groups in a variety

of ways to ensure effective communication of our objective and progress in

relation to the following areas of concern.

FHENSEAREEZN (A)

AEBEBEBSETABTIEZRNERRBREE
TREEAE - ARERAIBEIA T RDE R B IR N R
TEXER

Major Stakeholder Major Communication Channels Major Concerns
TERFOE TEBBRE FTEBEH
Shareholders and Investors Press release, Corporate Proﬂtab|||ty
BRERKREE Announcements and Circulars B
FER - AR AERBEK Financial Stability
Annual and Interim Reports W BIRE
FMBEPERE Development opportunity
Annual General Meetings BREKS
BRERBFRE
Employees Trammgs and Team Building Activities Compensation & Benefits
=] Hal M B RRR & fH1E LA
Busmess Meetings and Briefings Health & Safety Work Environment
R YA BEREZE2HIIERE
Performance Appraisals Career path
7B AT BRI
Suppliers Procurement Meetings Quality of products and service
g KEez EmMiRGEEE
Phone Calls, Wechat, Emails, Site Visit Integrity
Bid o ME - EFEA - BHIRE EAE
Customers Customer Complaint Hotlines Quality of Products and services
EF B R AR EmikREEE
Meetings and Correspondences Privacy Protection
g MoEA LR &
Public Community Charitable and Volunteering Activities Corporate Social Responsibilities
AHUE RENERERD rEHTEER
Community Interactions Community Investment and Charitable
@ 5 &) Activities
HREREREELY
Government and Supervisory MaJor I\/leetlng and Policy Consultation Compliance Operation
Institutions FEEEENMBRER SR
BRREEHKE Information Disclosures Environmental Protection
=B EE RIERE
Institutional Visits Corporate responsibility
e an REME

In the year, through a wide range of communication channels, we found that
ESG compliance and how the Group benefits the community are the major
concerns of our stakeholders. Important aspects vary from environmental

emissions to privacy protection and community involvement.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HERER®HE(E)

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

As far as environmental management is concerned, though
businesses of the Group in property development investment and the
provision of financial services does not pose significant environmental
risks, the Group has actively paid attention to reduce the use of
natural resources in operations, and implement environmental control
measures wherever practicable towards to minimise its impact on the
environment.

In order to seek long-term sustainability of the environment, the
Group is prudent in controlling its emissions, and complies with
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong and China
during its daily operations.

Given the nature of the business of the Group, the largest contributor
of the Group’s carbon footprint is the Indirect Greenhouse Gas
("GHG") emissions. The Group's GHG emissions are mainly due to
electricity consumption during the operation at the workplace and
the consumption of fuel for transportation by employees.

In order to achieve energy conservation and reduce GHG emissions,
the Group has established the “Energy Conservation Management
Policy” and adopted a number of energy conservation measures to
ensure the most efficient use of electricity, reduce emission of GHG
and demonstrate our determination to protect our environment,
including but not limited to the below:

Choose energy-efficient appliances and opt for low wattage
lights;

Maximise the use of natural light and limit the use of artificial
lighting to the dark areas in the workplace that are out of the
sun’s reach;

Advise employees to put their computers in hibernation mode
and turn off all other office equipment when not in use;

Switch off air conditioning systems and lighting after office
hours;

Keeping all the doors and windows closed when the air
conditioners are running; and

Teleconference and internet-meeting practices are also
encouraged to avoid unnecessary business travel.

A.
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BRI HERER®HE(E)

A1

A.2

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group will continue to improve the efficiency of resource
utilisation and gradually establish the quantitative targets for future
electricity consumption based on the use of resource in the current
year.

As far as waste management is concerned, due to our business nature,
no significant hazardous waste was generated from our operations
during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Group has complied with
relevant laws and regulations regarding the use of natural resources
in operation and has not received any notice of violation from
government authorities.

Use of Resources

The main resources consumed by the Group are electricity, water and
paper. The water consumption of the Group is minimal and there has
been no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, while electricity
is consumed during daily business operations in our offices through
the use of indoor lighting, air-conditioning, functioning of office
equipment, function of equipment related to repair and maintenance
etc. As mentioned in Section A.1, the Group has established energy
conservation procedures to help reduce the use of resources.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

A.

A1

A.2
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE  HERERBE(E)

A. ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continued)
In order to enhance environment protection, the Group has also
followed a number of energy saving and efficiency measures
stipulated in the “Energy Conservation Management Policy” to
promote paperless office and minimize the use of water, including but
not limited to the below:

Water Conservation Measures:
Cultivate the concept of saving for employees;

Look for water leaks in fittings and use a water meter or flow
restrictor where possible;

Report leaking taps, toilets and showers;
Install rainwater tanks and water-saving devices where possible;
and
Consider re-using or recycling water where possible.
Paper Conservation Measures:

Use printers that can print on both sides of the paper; try to look
into this option when replacing old printers;

Recycled paper is used for intra-group informal documents and
draft papers;

Send electronic greetings over email or other forms of
electronic applications, such as WhatsApp or WeChat, rather

than faxing or writing; and

Engage third parties for collection and handling of waste paper.

A.

A.2
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRI HERER®HE(E)

A. ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED) A. BIERE(EH)

A.3 Environment and natural resources A3 BEKBAER

ARAEEY BEYERFEANERE
BMREE HEETERR LR 3
s o

This aspect is not applicable to the Group's operations, as the Group’s
environmental impact and use of natural resources is minimal.

—ECREHRANER

2020 Key Performance Indicators

These tables present a quantitative overview of our 2020 TREY —ZFEZEFRBEVRANTE
Environmental aspect performance. B -
Percentage
Increase (+)
A.1. Emission - GHG Units 2019 2020 or Decrease (-)
0 (+) =
WA ()
Al BER—REREE By —E-NEF —ECEF Bt
Total GHG emission tonnes 197.18 72.97 -62.99%
BERBANE L7
Total GHG emission per floor area tonnes/m? 0.09 0.03 -62.99%
BIrAREEEBEREREBATENE g, oK
GHG emission for air travel per tonnes/no. of air travel 0.28 0.17 -3829%
number of air travel
BAMERITEAZE REBHENE WA, 22 = R
Indirect emission
B HER
Electricity tonnes 97.13 64.09 -34.02%
&7 48
Air travel tonnes 96.22 3.98 -95.86%
fin Z= Z ik U7
Paper consumption tonnes 3.83 4.90 28.11%
R A
ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HERER®HE(E)

A. ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

A.3 Environment and natural resources (Continued)

2020 Key Performance Indicators (Continued)

RERE (&)

A.3 I&iﬁ,& E /n\ﬁ/ﬁ IIE)

—ECEFRERANER (R

Percentage
Increase (+)
A.2. Use of resources Units 2019 2020 or Decrease (-)
0 (+) =
‘ﬁz/j\
A2.EREA By —E-NEF —ECEF Eﬁ}tl:
Total energy consumption kWh 108,447.00 73,160.00 -32.54%
BERBEREEE T LB
Total energy consumption per floor area kWh/m? 49.50 33.39 -32.54%
BYRREHEERREFEES FEE,FHK
Total paper consumption kilograms 769.00 996.00 29.52%
Raes T
Total paper consumption per floor area kilograms/m? 0.36 0.47 28.11%
BYFREEEERRES FrFHK
Total water consumption Gallons 963.00 493.00 -47.34%
ks e
Total water consumption per floor area Gallons/m? 047 0.25 -47.34%
BYFREEEERKES me,/ FHAK
Note to KPI: EZEdpvecteliEaE
1. The above KPI are calculated based on the Hong Kong and Shenzhen offices’ 1. FRERERIEEARNEENEELE M
data which are the key operation sites of the Group. BB RYPRENEBRAEWTE -
2. The indirect greenhouse gas, carbon dioxide is calculated based on Hong 2. AR ERE ZSLRDIBIBRE S KRB

Kong and Shenzhen offices’ electricity usage and business travel. Figures
are calculated based on the offices’ electricity usage, the flying distance and
frequency of business travels of all staff in Hong Kong and Shenzhen offices.

3 Water usage of Hong Kong office is not included as the water supply is

shared with other tenants in the building.

During the year, the GHG emissions were 73 tonnes with an intensity
of 0.0333 per square foot. This figure represents a decrease of
approximately 124 tonnes, or 62.99%, compared to the total GHG
emissions in 2019. The Group will continue to control greenhouse
gas emissions and closely monitor other environmental data annually
for comparison purpose in the future. The Group is keen to achieve

emission reduction targets.

Due to our business nature, the Group does not produce any final
products nor does it have any industrial facilities. Thus, it does not
use any significant amount of packaging materials during its daily

operations.
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B.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SOCIAL COMMITMENT

The group always treat the Employees as the most valuable asset
to the Group. Through providing employees with competitive
remuneration, welfare and career path to encourage them not only
reach their own career goal but also company’s. The Group complies
with labour laws and regulations to protect the rights of employees
and to keep good relationship with them.

Employment and Labour Practices

As demonstrated in Group Policy, the Group is an equal opportunity
employer. The group celebrate diversity and is committed to creating
an inclusive environment for all employees.

Any form of discrimination against our potential or current employees
on the ground of nationality, age, gender, sexual orientation, gender
identity, ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, political inclination is strongly
prohibited. The Group also forbid unlawful harassment, harassment
and victimisation of any type at workplace.

The Group has formulated “Staff Handbook’, “"Human Resource Policy”

and Compensation and Benefits Management Policy” as guidelines
for employment, termination, business conduct, social security funds,
compensation, employee benefits, leave benefits, working hours/
overtime and performance benefits to ensure all the process complies
with the Labour Law of the PRC and the Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRI HERER®HE(E)

B.1

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

The Group provides a wide range of incentives, including competitive
remuneration and benefits packages, which are based on individual
performances and qualifications of employees and benchmarked
against our industry peers on an annual basis. Benefits to full-
time employees include social insurance (endowment insurance,
medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment
insurance, childbirth insurance), housing provident fund and annual
leave benefits. In addition, the Group also provides additional
supplementary benefits to employees, including but not limited to the
below:

1. Festive occasion benefit (monetary benefits for all statutory
holiday, birthday, marriage, childbirth);

2. Medical care benefits (employees who have worked for the
company for more than a year are entitled to have a free annual
body check package and certain monetary benefits);

3. Incentive bonus (incentive activities are organized regularly to
praise well performed employees); and

4, Other benefits (training, compassionate leave and allowance).

The Group distributed year-end bonus to employees based on
individual performance in recognition of their contributions.

During the Year, the Group implemented different measures to
reduce employee turnover rate, such as expanding communication
channel between employee and management, so that applicants
communicate more effectively and efficiently with management
regard their working stuff. The Group also strengthen the staff
trainings system to meet the career development requirement of
employees at all levels; focus on the work pressure of employees,
expand the development prospects of the group so that competitive
career platform can be provided to the employees.

During the year under review, the Group did not involve in any cases
of illegality related to employment during the year.

B.1
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B.2

B.3

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Health and Safety
The Group concerns about the health and safety of its employees and
is committed to reduce the occurrence of dangerous accidents.

The Group has established "Employee Code of Conduct” and
"Occupational Safety Policy”, requiring all employees to strictly abide
by all safety rules and regulations during their work in the office. In
addition, the Group provides employees with comprehensive set of
insurance, including both medical and non-medial insurances as well
as child benefits.

During the year under review, the Group did not notice any violations
of Hong Kong health and safety laws and regulations.

Development and Training

The development of employee professional skills is one of the Group's
priorities. The Group has established the “Training Management
Policy” to ensure all employees receive an adequate level of training.
Different levels of internal trainings are provided to employees to
enhance their professional skills.

New Hires are provided with orientation programmes to be
familiarized with the culture and structure of the Group and relevant
department(s). For front-line employees, technical trainings are
provided with the aims to achieve operational excellence and to
enrich the employees’ knowledge in relation to the businesses
and services of the Group. Our annual training plan requires each
employee to attend at least 12 hours of training every year.

Specifically, the Group provides trainings to employees based on
departmental or functional needs. For instance, employees from the
finance team are provided training in corporate governance and new
accounting standards.

The Group evaluates the training objectives, training arrangements,
training content according to the business needs each year and
make changes when necessary. The results of the training and the
performance of each individual will also be assessed annually to
ensure that all employees benefit from the training.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRI HERER®HE(E)

B.4

B.5

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Labour Standards

In line with the local employment laws and relevant provisions
of the International Labour Organisation, the Group prohibits the
employment of child labour or any other form of forced and illegal
labour.

According to the recruitment procedure, the Group requires all
candidates to provide identification documents to determine if their
age meets the legal age requirements. The Group strictly abides by
the relevant labour regulations in China and Hong Kong regarding
working hours and holidays to ensure the physical and mental health
of all employees.

Employees are not encouraged to work beyond working hours.
Overtime hours, if necessary, must not exceed legal time and overtime
pay will be paid in accordance with the relevant standards.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on employment and labour practices, or occupational health and
safety.

Supply Chain Management

Due to the nature of the business, the Group has only a handful of
suppliers and does not have high reliance on its suppliers. The Group
has selected a list of suppliers for office and computer equipment,
stationary and promotion activities gifts. With a comprehensive
“Purchasing Policy’, the Group is able to select and evaluate suppliers
or service providers based on their reputation and performance
records to ensure that the goods or services purchased are in
compliance with national standards.

In relation to the risk management of the internet financial service
platform, the Group's responsible team screens and monitors the
lenders and borrowers who use the platform. It also performs Know-
Your Customer ("KYC") procedure to access the background and
sources of fund of both lenders and borrowers, ensuring the best
match between the lenders and borrowers. During the reporting
period, the platform did not experience any delinquency, attributed
to constant risk management screening, monitoring and the
maintenance of high quality and reliable users within the platform.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Investment in Property Development Projects

The Group provides tailor-made financial services to customers of real
estate developers and has entered into strategic partnerships with a
number of well-known real estate developers.

The Group recognises the importance working with its business
partners, especially real estate developers who have a significant
impact to the society. Before deciding to work with the potential
business partners, the Group has taken rigorous procedures to assess
their reputation and ethics.

The Group is committed to working with environmentally conscious
companies; and make efforts to reduce energy use, waste and
pollution. The Group seeks socially responsible companies that work
with high-quality suppliers who have high ethical standards, are able
to exceed customers’ expectation, interact with the government
and regulators with integrity, make sound operational decisions to
maximise positive impacts while minimising negative impacts on
community. The Group evaluates these companies and focuses on
their transparency and accountability, corporate governance and their
performance in environmental, social and worker rights.

Financial Services

The Group provides customers with convenient and quick access
to short-term finance as well as financial consultation services to
meet the customer’s financial needs. We have put in place specific
procedures in ensuring the quality of the services and products
provided. The financial services or products provided to customers
are tailored to their financial background, trading experience and risk
tolerant level after performing the KYC procedures and assessment.
The Group is committed to provide clear information to customers
including product details, terms and conditions (such as loan
repayment period, administration fee, interest rate, etc.) and any
associated risks are communicated to enable customers to make
an informed decision. Moreover, the Group has set standards for
advertising and sales literature which require information contained
in all advertising and sales literature to be true and prohibit the
use of false, misleading or inaccurate statements in any form of our
communication.
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BRI HERER®HE(E)

B.6

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Protection of Customer’s Data

The Group handles a large amount of personal data and credit
information of its customers and regards the maintenance of
customer privacy as an important area for maintaining good corporate
governance. To protect the confidentiality of customer data, the
Group has implemented rigorous policy and procedures ensure a
high degree of alertness among staff members in protecting customer
data.

The Group has established “Customer’s Data Confidential Policy” as a
guideline of handing customer’s data. As specified in the “Staff Hand
Book’, the Group's employees are required to sign a “Confidentiality
Agreement” acknowledging their rights and obligations under data
protection and to provide employees with an understanding of
confidentiality and clear guidelines regarding handling of confidential
information.

In addition, access to confidential information or documents is
restricted and granted on a need-to-know basis. During the reporting
period, the Group did not receive any complaints from customers
regarding the confidentiality of personal information.
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B.6

B.7

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Handling of Complaints

The Group has established policies and procedures for the handling
complaints. The Group'’s Customer Service Department is responsible
for reviewing all complaints, collecting evidence and providing advice
and comments on general complaints.

Specific or complex complaints will the forwarded to the responsible
person of the relevant department for special treatment. The Group
provides an initial response upon the receipt of all complaints and the
follow up accordingly.

During the reporting period, the Group has not been notified of any
violation of law regarding product or services responsibility.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering
The Group stands against any form of bribery, extortion, fraud, and has
a zero-tolerance policy towards misconduct.

To achieve this, the Group has established the "Anti-Fraud
Management Policy”, "Anti-Money Laundering Internal Control
Policy”and “Whistle-blowing Policy” in accordance with the relevant
regulatory laws and standards to promote anti-fraud principles and
consistent organisational behaviours by providing guidelines and
assigning responsibility for the development of controls and conduct
of investigations.

The Group’s risk management department also gathers information
on our existing customer’s use of proceeds, the source of funding
for repayment, the operating condition of our customers, from time
to time in obtaining their updated status and promptly reports any
abnormal situation for the purpose of risk management.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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B.7

B.8

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering
(Continued)

A whistle blowing channel has been in place for our employees
to raise any concerns in good faith if they have their concerns
and address in proper manner without any fear of receiving any
negative impacts. Employees are also required to sign a statement
of acknowledgement and agreement to their obligation and
responsibility regarding to anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
polices to ensure that all staff have been notified that no bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering would be tolerated. The Group
encourages the reporting of suspected business irregularities and
provides clear channels specifically for this purpose. The Company
is committed to creating a corporate culture of integrity and justice
by accepting internal complaints and whistleblowing. All employees
may directly contact the Human Resources Department and the
senior management in charge of such matters for lodging a complaint
or whistleblowing. The current whistleblowing procedures of the
Company include direct mails to the senior management of the
Company for reporting any misconduct or dishonest activities such
as suspected corruption, fraud and other forms of crime. The Group is
committed to adhering to the highest integrity and ethical standards.

The Group did not involve in any cases of violations related to
corruption in this year, nor was involved in ant corruption litigation
cases related to the Group and the employees.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to exert available resources to support our
community and encourage our employees to participate in various
charitable and voluntary activities.

The Group will continue to uphold the principle of being responsible
for its shareholders and investors, employees, suppliers, customers,
public community and will seek further development opportunities to
maintain a harmonious relationship with its stakeholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B 2 REN R E

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
|

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FETHEP1115
JKLHI2558

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FLYING FINANCIAL SERVICE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Flying
Financial Services Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 254, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020 and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the “Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

A) Scope limitation on the valuation of investments in limited

partnerships

As disclosed in note 17(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group invested in certain limited partnerships (the “LPs") in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") and acted as a limited partner.
These LPs are engaged in investment in property development
project companies in the PRC. The investments in the LPs are unlisted
equity securities and accounted for as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") with fair value of RMB231,351,000 as at
31 December 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBERE (&)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

A)

Scope limitation on the valuation of investments in limited
partnerships (Continued)

The directors of the Company estimated the fair value of investments
in LPs as at 31 December 2020 using the discounted cash flow
technique based on the information obtained from the LPs. By
applying the discounted cash flow technique, the directors of
the Company estimated the fair value of investments in LPs to
approximately RMB231,351,000 as at 31 December 2020 and
recognised a fair value loss of RMB215,026,000 in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

During the course of our audit, the directors of the Company have not
provided us with the relevant documents or information, including
the correspondences with and the financial information of the LPs
to support the cash flow estimation in measuring the fair value of
investments in LPs as at 31 December 2020. There were no alternative
audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the fair value of the Group’s investments in the LPs as at 31
December 2020 was reasonably estimated.

Any adjustments to the fair value of the investments in LPs as at

1 December 2020 found necessary would affect (i) the fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL of as at 31 December 2020; (ii) the fair
value changes in FVTPL for the year ended 31 December 2020; (iii)
the presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2020; and (iv) the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

B)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Scope limitation on the valuation of assets-backed securities
As disclosed in note 17(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
on 29 December 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party to subscribe for assets-backed securities
("ABS") in the PRC for a consideration of approximately RMB40 million.
The units subscribed by the Group represented 10.5% of the entire
units of the ABS. The investment in ABS is unlisted debt securities
and accounted for as financial assets at FVTPL with fair value of
RMB31,808,000 as at 31 December 2020.

The directors of the Company estimated the fair value of the
investment in ABS as at 31 December 2020 by using the discounted
cash flow technique based on the information of the ABS obtained
from the trust company. By applying the discounted cash flow
technique, the directors of the Company estimated the fair value of
the Group's investments in ABS to approximately RMB31,808,000 as at
31 December 2020 and recognised a fair value loss of RMB2,832,000 in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

During the course of our audit, the directors of the Company have not
provided us with the relevant documents or information, including
the correspondences with and the financial information of the ABS
prepared by the trust company, to support the cash flow estimation
used in measuring the fair value of ABS as at 31 December 2020. There
were no alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the fair value of the Group's investments in the
ABS as at 31 December 2020 was reasonably estimated.

Any adjustments to the fair value of investments in ABS as at 31
December 2020 found necessary would affect (i) the fair value of
FVTPL as at 31 December 2020; (i) the fair value changes in financial
assets at FVTPL for the year ended 31 December 2020; (iii) the
presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2020; and (iv) the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBERE (&)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

Q)

Scope limitation on PRC bank related balances, PRC loans and
accounts receivables, PRC other payables and disclosures

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries had bank
balances of approximately RMB6,960,000 placed in various PRC banks
and segregated clients’ accounts of approximately RMB3,755,000,
bank borrowings of approximately RMB15,735,000 from PRC banks,
bank facilities of RMB3,000,000 as detailed in notes 21 and 24,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries had loans and accounts receivables and
other payables of approximately RMB9,237,000 and RMB20,364,000
respectively as at 31 December 2020.

During our audit of the Company's consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020, we were unable to send
confirmation requests to the banks and other counterparties of
the above-mentioned items to confirm the existence and balances
of the various bank balances and the other accounts since the
confirmation requests need to be authorised by the PRC subsidiaries
evidenced by applying company seals. As detailed in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company seals of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries were taken into custody by the Nanshan Branch of
the Shenzhen Public Security Bureau in the PRC.

Given this limitation of our audit work and there was no alternative
audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to the
existence, completeness and accuracy in respect of the information
relating to the Group’s bank balances, borrowings, entrusted loans,
pledged assets and guarantee documents issued in favour of the
PRC banks, if any, loans and accounts receivables and other payables
held by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020, we
were unable to determine whether the above mentioned financial
statement items have been properly accounted for and/or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. Any adjustments to the
balances and disclosures relating to the above mentioned financial
statement items that might have been found necessary may have a
consequential impact on the Group's consolidated financial position
as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated financial performance and
the presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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D)
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Scope Limitation relating to going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred a
net loss of RMB470,347,000 and had a net operating cash outflow
of RMB7,118,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMB69,967,000 while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB7,324,000 only. As at 31 December 2020, bank
borrowings of RMB15,735,000 were immediately repayable. In
addition, the Group is involved in various litigations or claims as
detailed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statement.

The above-mentioned circumstances indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The directors have prepared
a cash flow forecast which takes into account of certain assumptions
as set out in note 3(c) to the consolidated financial statements. Based
on the directors’ assessment, the Group is able to continue as a going
concern and it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The appropriateness of the consolidated financial statements
prepared on a going concern basis largely depends on whether
those plans and measures as detailed in note 3(c) can be successfully
implemented.

However, in respect of the following plans and measures (i) negotiated
with banks for a debt restructuring; (i) negotiated with a shareholder
of the Company for extension of his lending; and (iii) obtain new
financing to enhance the Group's liquidity, the directors of the
Company have not provided us with information that we consider
sufficient to evaluate whether the above mentioned plans and
measures are feasible.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBERE (&)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

D) Scope Limitation relating to going concern (Continued)
Due to the limitations on our scope of work as stated above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to determine
whether the directors’ conclusion that the Group is able to continue as
a going concern and the consolidated financial statements prepared
on a going concern basis is appropriate.

Should the Group fail to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the
Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
as current assets. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping
Practising Certificate Number P05412
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%}'—/\ :.\/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z—

Hft 2 H W %z

—EE+ A=+ —RALFE

2020 2019
gt i —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Ff 5 ARMT ARBTT
Revenue Weas 7 19,721 104,390
Other income/(expenses), net Hipg A (FAX) FE 8 12,675 (3,022)
Employee benefit expenses EERARAX (25,322) (48,847)
Other administrative expenses HMITHAX (28,552) (53,101)
Provision loss B IR (16,306) -
Fair value changes in financial assets at BAFEFAEE ((RATE
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") SFABZHNEmEE
NFEH 37 (362,272) (522,747)
Impairment loss on goodwill MEREER - (48,316)
Impairment loss on intangible asset mREEREERE - (19,810)
Loss allowance on financial assets TREEBERE (89,535) (108,272)
Equity-settled share-based payments NS EE WD BER 2T 28 - 2,169
Finance costs B T K AR 9 (1,184) (7,330)
Loss before income tax expense BrET1S B S A E 1R 10 (490,775) (704,886)
Income tax credit PSR 12 20,428 5,624
Loss for the year FEBR (470,347) (699,262)
Other comprehensive income Htt2EBA
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & E#H D EEIBHMIER .
— Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ — IR AFEFAEMEE
at fair value through other W ([ A FERA
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") HEM2mizs]) s
REHDFEE 13,829 (10,648)
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  Ef&AJEEF DB E B
profit or loss: HA -
-~ Exchange differences on translating —BINEBRENEL Z5E
foreign operations 965 (4,083)
Other comprehensive income for theyear E£EHM2EUA 14,794 (14,731)
Total comprehensive income fortheyear FE2H KA (455,553) (713,993)
Loss for the year attributable to: ELEFEEEE :
Owners of the Company VN/NECTE SN (468,725) (673,713)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R 2 (1,622) (25,549)
(470,347) (699,262)
Total comprehensive income for the EEEEZEBAHLLE:
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZS DN (455,972) (688,444)
Non-controlling interests TR ER 419 (25,549)
(455,553) (713,993)
Loss per share BREE 13
— Basic (RMB cents) —EXR(AR%ED) (27.07) (38.91)
- Diluted (RMB cents) —#E(AR%ES) (27.07) (38.91)
EHSRREZERERAT —ECEFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e P BRI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 A —Z—Z4&+_-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo e ARETx ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R 15 1,270 7442
Investment properties "EYE 16 47,870 49,140
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFAERD
TREE 17 263,159 625431
Financial assets at FVOC| BEAFEFSAEMEE RS
H) & Bl & B 17 54,129 40,300
Loans and accounts receivables B ERERR 18 5,242 6,269
371,670 728,582
Current assets REBEE
Loans and accounts receivables B EWER TR 18 10,055 53,747
Deposits paid, prepayments and other Bi&e - BRRER
receivables H b Uk 318 19 5,615 55,475
Amount due from a non-controlling interest JFE U FEVE AR M 2 5K IE 20 1 1
Tax recoverable A Y B IR - 38
Cash and cash equivalents RehReFHEER 21 7,324 16,973
22,995 126,234
Current liabilities RBAE
Receipts in advance, accruals and TEWGRIE - BETERA R
other payables E h &~ 3R1E 22 50,651 30,985
Contract liabilities AHEE 23 3,712 2,466
Amount due to a shareholder FE % 3R FR 1A 20 11,506 13,442
Dividend payable FERT IR B 106 113
Bank borrowings RITIEN 24 15,735 2,154
Lease liabilities HEARE 26 155 5,176
Current tax liabilities BB IR & E 11,097 29,676
92,962 84,012
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (86 EEFE (69,967) 42,222
Total assets less current liabilities EELERABEE 301,703 770,804
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank borrowings RITIENR 24 . 12,206
Lease liabilities HEAR 26 - 1,369
- 13,575
NET ASSETS EERE 301,703 757,229
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

REPBRR K (E)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 A =ZE—ZF&+—-_A=+—H

2020 2019
e —ENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5t ARET R ARBTT
EQUITY iz
Equity attributable to owners NATEBE AELES
of the Company
Share capital A& A 27 142,004 142,004
Reserves fFE 30(a) 147,475 603,447
289,479 745451
Non-controlling interests R ER 32 12,224 11,778
TOTAL EQUITY R 301,703 757,229
On behalf of the board of directors RREEFE
Zhang Gongjun Vincent Cheng
[N BEE
Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director
HiTEE BB ITEE
EHSRREZERERAT —ECEFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEEZEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z - F&+ - =+—HItFE

Non-cortroling

Atrbutzb to omnersofthe Company interests Total
KAAREARS bt 4 8
Fairvlue through
ather comprefensie
Sharecaptl Share pemium Mergerresene Sttutory resene Bichangeresene  Shareoption resene incomeresene  Retained eamings Total
LB
i k&R i fifd i EifE BRERE EhREMaRE REEH 8
(note 30} (note 30l (note 300 (note 30(cH) (note J0(ci)
FEoom  (Ewom)  (Boom)  ENow (W)
RUBO00 RMB[)OO RMBO RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO0O RABO00 RBO00 RBO00 RB000 RUBO00
ABBTR ABBTR ABRTR ABRTT ARRTT ARBTR ARBTR AEBTR AE#TR AE#TR AE#TR
Badancet 31 December 018 RZF-NETZR=1-BER 14004 17853 116859 5119 6815 009 # Ll 1436064 310 1473185
Losfortheyear EEER - - - - - - @373 3713 (5549 (659262)
Fainale ossonfrencalasts tOC RATEHALGRENANSRERNOTERE - - - (105 - (10649 - (10649
Bictange dffenceson tansing oignocention BN ERENER 28 - - - - 4083 - - - 408 - 08
Teneroffivalue rough ot comprehensive HERTRRATEA L2 AUGNERTA
incomeresene upon dsposal ofnvestment RERESRATES \Eb2ENERR
inequiyinstuments designated asat FVOC - - - - - - o0 (600)
Totelcompreensheincome forheyer ERAENREE - - - - 4089 (1004) (674313) (668244) 5549 71399
Diposd ofa subsidy e KB - - - - - % %
oyttt shre-bsed transectons rote 2§ JEREERTBER 5 () - - - - - 0189 - - 0169 - 0189
Shreoptonsbpsed rote 28 BAMEBRE (Hiks) - - - - - (1857) - 187 - - -
Bdenceat 31 December 019 RE-AEt-Rzr-BER 0 b5 116659 59 m 803 ] 196655 7541 W i
Non-controling
Attributable to owners of he Company interests Total
FARAARG i a8
Fairvaluethrough  Retained earings/
othercomprehensive (accumulated
Share capital Share premium Mergerreserve y Exch Share opti i losses) Total
ROTEIA R/
Bz Rtk Bk i] i EXGE BRESE ERREVEER (68 a8
(note30(c) (note 30(cil) (note 30(c)ii) (note30(c)iv) (note30(c)v) (note 30(cvii)
(Baaom)  (Wasow)  (Rasoo)  (Rasoom)  (Ksoen)  (HE30iil)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARMTR AEHTR ARHTR ARETT
Banceat 1 fnuay 200 HoF-§E-F-AkH 142004 1785 116659 51,199 pY63) 28013 (9664 196,655 785451 11778 75729
Lossfortheyear ERER - - - - - - (468,725) (468,725) (1622) (470347)
Fairvale i onfrencil assets &t VOC ROTEALBRENENEREEND TG - - - - - - 11788 - 11788 2041 13829
Birengedifeencesontandeing oignopertin. - BN ERRENE 28 - - - - 95 - - - %5 - 95
Totalcomprehensiveincome forthe year EERTLENE - - - - 965 11,788 (468,725) (455,972) 49 (455,553)
Diposd ofa uhsidy HE-RHELT - - - - - - - - - b b
Shareopionslased e 28 BAMERE (Hiks) - - - - - (o1 - i - -
Baanceat31 December 210 REBCBETCAzT-BER 10004 17853 116659 51199 3697 2586 14 (269343) 19479 4 30,703
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

IIV_\/E\ IE, ﬁ:ﬁi %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 §E —Z-ZF&+ - =+—HItFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBFT
Cash flows from operating activities REKETBHNRERE
Loss before income tax expense BrET1S B S A E 1R (490,775) (704,886)
Adjustments for: T ZEAE
Bank interest income IRITF B YA (29) (1,073)
Interest income from financial assets measured at REEKAFTENSREE
amortised cost BB A - @2n
Dividend income from equity investments at FVOC| BAFEFAHEMEERER
RRIREREWA - (2,600)
Interest expenses F B 1,184 7,330
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - -BELREZBNE 3,660 7,130
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BELRBERENKE (3,138) (757)
Written off of property, plant and equipment MsE Y2 - BB R R A 783 -
Written off of deposits paid, prepayments and WHEEIZES - BIREBEREM
other receivables JEUR FRIR 1,533 -
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EH - 2476
Impairment loss on goodwill BB EEE - 48,316
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEREBE - 19,810
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment W - BRERZERERSRE 248 319
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets CREEENRERSE - 2,110
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties REMELNFEBE, (W) 1,270 (840)
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL EAFEFABENEREE
N EEH 362,272 522,747
Loss allowance on financial assets TREEBERE 89,535 108,272
(Gain)/loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEMBARR
(WKzs) /B8 (47) 249
Bad debts of loans and accounts receivables BN EWEE TR R - 9,478
Recovery of impairment of loans and accounts e [B] LA 1T e 3R 1 & 3k K JE U
receivables and other receivables previously R EEME ERE
recognised (10,118) -
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREERG BEMR 2K - (2,169
Operating cash flows before working capital changes ~ &EE S EBHMLERESRE (43,622) 15,891
Decrease in loans and accounts receivables B R FE AR TR 13,477 19,559
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid, prepayments EffiRe - BRI A A FE YR
and other receivables BB (EN) 123 (29,520)
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance, accruals TEWGRIE - FEET B R REMENRK
and other payables \Eig, Cd) 19,771 (47,257)
Increase in contract liabilities ERBEEM 1,246 2,466
Cash used in operations KETAES (9,005) (38,861)
Income taxes paid ERATSH (4) (12,343)
Income taxes refunded BIREFTER 1,891 1,134
Net cash used in operating activities RETHARESFE (7,118) (50,070)
EHSRREZERERAT —ECEFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
mERERER(E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBFT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETBHNRERE
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIEL & B AR (2) 10
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset at HERBENATTENEMEE
amortised cost Fri8 s 8 - 5,343
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BRERERE (27) (975)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB REZEBFTEHIE
equipment - 3,200
Dividend income from equity investments at FVOC| BEAFEFTAEM 2K ER
ERREREMA - 2,600
Proceeds from disposal of equity investment at FVOCI &R A FEFT A E 2K
MR E SR - 11,400
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL HEEATFEFABRNEH
BEFSHIA - 37,490
Return received from financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABEENEMEE
Fr 5 Bl 3R - 1,841
Interest received SRS 29 21
Net cash from investing activities RETEBHFMBHRSFH - 60,930
Cash flows from financing activities REBMETBHNREESRE
Advance from a shareholder PR R #A K 4,436 8,663
Repayment to a shareholder ElEEEN (5,676) -
Repayment of corporate bond EEAAES - (56,813)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERETE A 6,720 -
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITHENR (5,345) (69,449)
Decrease in restricted bank deposit PR HIERITFE FOR D - 77,000
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities EEHEEEREHS (1,725) (5,031)
Interest paid =EEESS (1,184) (6,010)
Net cash used in financing activities METEHARESFHR (2,774) (51,640)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESESHEBERRD FH (9,892) (40,780)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RENHEESRBESEEIEE
of the year 16,973 61,822
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net EXEE  F8 243 (4,069)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERNESRESZEER 7,324 16,973

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 §E —Z-ZF&+ - =+—HItFE

1.

GENERAL

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 May 2011. The registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Room 1309, 13/F, Mirror Tower Centre, 61 Mody Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares have been listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) since 7 May
2012.

The Group, comprising the Company and its subsidiaries, currently
engages in investment in property development projects, operation
of financial services platform, provision of entrusted loans and other
loan services, financial consultation services and finance lease services
mainly in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company
acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 31.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Ming Cheng
Investments Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 8 December 2020,
Mr. Zheng Weijing (“Mr. Zheng"), the chairman, chief executive officer
and an executive director of the Company, Ms. Guo Chanjiao ("Ms.
Guo”), an executive director of the Company, and three employees
of the Group have been held in custody since the evening of 7
December 2020 by the Nanshan Branch of the Shenzhen Public
Security Bureau (the “Bureau”) in the PRC pending investigation
regarding certain suspected illegal absorption of public deposits
(collectively, the “Custodies”). The Custodies are related to certain
unsettled repayment of funds to the lenders (the “Unsettled
Repayment Funds") in relation to the online financing intermediary
business conducted by a PRC subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen
Flying Financial Internet Financial Services Corporation (“SZ Flying
Internet Financial”), the operation of which has already been ceased
in the fourth quarter of 2019. As of the date of this report, the
investigation regarding suspected illegal absorption of public deposits
by the Bureau is still ongoing (the “Investigation”).

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

GENERAL (CONTINUED)

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2021,
certain assets of the Group had been seized by the Bureau during
the year ended 31 December 2020, including the Group’s investment
properties of carrying amount of approximately RMB47,870,000 as
at 31 December 2020 (note 16), unlisted equity securities classified
as financial assets at FVOCI of carrying amount of approximately
RMB54,129,000 as at 31 December 2020 (note 17) and the equity
interests of the Group in certain property development projects
through limited partnerships in which the Group's investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL of carrying amount of
approximately RMB128,838,000 as at 31 December 2020 (note 17)
(collectively, the “Seized Assets”). The Seized Assets are owned by
several PRC subsidiaries of the Company which have provided
certain guarantees (the “Guarantee Documents”) for the Unsettled
Repayment Funds. As mentioned in the same announcement, Mr.
Zheng has agreed in November 2019 with the relevant government
authorities that the Seized Assets be pledged pursuant to the
Guarantee Documents as security for the settlement of the Unsettled
Repayment Funds.

In addition, the Company seals of the Group's PRC subsidiaries were
taken into custody by the Bureau.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2020

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
material

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the new revised HKFRSs and amendment to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's accounting policies.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's consolidated financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*

Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause*

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use’

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

B

MRmEEA ([ FEY

&H =
HERA ) (&

i it

(b) EEMERRERMNIET K

CHEN LR ]

THAT R AR EARA I HIRE B
BEE] SR BBV IS HRE AT
BB ARER  MAE@EMIFERS
B o Kﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂ IR EEB A
B2 BERME

EREHENR IR 2T BENERRDARD

FRRERH(CR-TE)  MBER/EN-RAREX
BREIHEER NI
)\Z *54

ERGHENR 628 (FREREHLAERE
EREHEARSLET  BEEAH-TRRORA
BRABAREAR IR ot
ERMBASEARINCET  HAERI2T
ERUBREENZ 0RRERS RAZEERELNTAAAN

HEBIE % 2B LR ARHELRAS
ERGENR 0N BEMHR MEEEAE-FIRR

EERZ  BRYBASE

RETH BEMBASENS

SRRERABASERR 63

|

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2'
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments?
lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,

Leases?
Amendments to HKAS 41, Agriculture?

BRABASENS 0K 28T
ERRHRSER _T-N\FE-

ToTREB FRE

ERMBRSEN T N\FE

T-TEEE) RN

e e St

RN FENE

BB EN T N\FE-

ToTRESIFRE

ovD-9EERLES

BRURRLENZ FER
AU ERLEN 2k
HE

ERUBRSENZ LR
TAZBE

BRIERLERE 05A
BRI

BRHENENTREL
B

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
2 Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition

is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
H Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
° The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME(E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FMBEBYBRELEA (FEM
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHEED ) (F])
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification
is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain
that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the
end of the reporting period. The amendments also introduce
a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers
to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision
to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation
to align with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in
conclusion and do not change the existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments and revision in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from
selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the impact
that the application of the amendments will have on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’ Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the impact
that the application of the amendments will have on the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. The
standard outlines a ‘General Model, which is modified for
insurance contracts with direct participation features, described
as the 'Variable Fee Approach’ The General Model is simplified if
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining
coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of this standard in the future will have an impact on
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
instead of the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to
HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope
of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether
at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIO)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. The
amendments also add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. NBEEMBHREED ((EFBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EZER]) (&)

(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture) to
fair value are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors'interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments may have an impact on the financial
statements in future periods should such transaction arise.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the "10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on other’s
behalf are included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME(E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FMBEBYBRELEA (FEM
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHEED ) (F])

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve
any potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives that might arise because of how lease
incentives are illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement
to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019
and relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in which
an entity will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate to
reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge
accounting in which an entity will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes changes required by
the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria;
and (c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform and how it
manages the transition to alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 - Related Rent
Concessions
The amendments to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only all of the following criteria are
satisfied:

(@ the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b)  the reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c)  there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lease applying the practical expedient accounts for change
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 as
if the changes were not lease modification. Forgiveness or
waiver of lease repayments is accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the event
occurs.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the amendment will have no material impact
on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial assets, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred
a net loss of RMB470,347,000 and had a net operating cash
outflow of RMB7,118,000 during the year ended 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB69,967,000 while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB7,324,000 only. In addition,
the Group is involved in various litigations or claims as detailed
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The aforementioned conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern such that it may
not be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of financing
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain measures
have been taken to mitigate the liquidity issues facing the
Group, including, but not limited to, the following:

0] In relation to the bank loans of RMB15,735,000, the
Group is actively negotiating with the banks for debt
restructuring exercises including payment terms, interest
rate and collaterals so as to increase the liquidity of the
Group;

(i) The Group is negotiating with a shareholder of the
Company for extension of his relevant borrowing, and
such that no action will be taken by that shareholder to
demand immediate repayment of the borrowing under
negotiation;

(i) The Group will implement operation plans to control
costs and to generate adequate cash flows from
operations; and

(iv)  The Group is also negotiating with various financial
institutions and identifying various options for financing
the Group's working capital in the foreseeable future,
including identification of potential investors to invest in
various projects undertaken by the Group.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management that covered a period of not less
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
considered that, taking into account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period, and therefore it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial information
on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

3.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Going concern (Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as
going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group's assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets as current assets.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollar
("HKS"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB”) since most of the companies comprising the
Group are operating in RMB environment and the functional
currency of most of the companies comprising the Group is
RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between companies of the Group
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power over the investee,
(i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee,
and (i) the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost net of expected residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

The shorter of the lease terms
or 20 years

Office buildings

Other buildings leased for Over the lease terms
own use carried at costs
Over the leases term but not

exceeding 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

3yearsto 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised
in profit or loss.

Government grant

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories. The Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The depreciation method used for right-of-use assets is the
same as that used for property, plant and equipment. Right-
of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of
the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right of use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments arising
from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in

assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the
carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments
to make over the revised term, which are discounted using
a revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities
is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the
discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases the
scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease
term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the lease
liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted
by the same amount. With the exception to which the practical
expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies (see
note 2(b)), if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope
of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then further
adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of
the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with
the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted
by the same amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a accounts receivables
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. Account receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Debt investments
at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
orloss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOC! are measured at fair value. Dividend
income are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. All
other equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on loans and accounts receivables,
other receivables, deposit paid, financial asset measured
at amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for financial consultation service income receivables,
platform services income receivables and finance lease
receivables and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past
due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the
loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables, contract liabilities, amount due to a
shareholder, bank borrowings, accruals, lease liabilities,
corporate bond and convertible bonds issued by the
Group are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset
or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)  Consultancy services fee income from limited
partnership
For consultancy services from limited partnership there
are 3 categories of consultancy services:

The 1st category of service is to assist investors
in concluding contracts with the property
developer and setting up the limited partnership
("LP") for investment in property development
project. Revenue is recognised at a point in time
when investor injects capital into the LP, which
represents the acceptance of the setup of LP by the
investor and the investor is obliged to pay for the
satisfied performance obligation ("PO”).

The 2nd category of service is to provide general
financial advisory and support to the LP, with
timely reporting to the investor within contract
period which normally lasts for around 2 years.
Revenue is recognised over time, as the investor
is simultaneously receiving and consuming the
benefits for general financial advisory and support
from the Group and the investor is obliged to pay
for the satisfied PO over time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Consultancy services fee income from limited

partnership (Continued)
The 3rd category of service is to assist the investor
in assisting the LP to withdraw the property
development project. Revenue is recognised at
a point in time when LP successfully withdrawn
from the property development project company,
at which point in time the PO is therefore satisfied
and the LP is obliged to pay.

There is no variable consideration for above consultancy
services. The Group uses the expected cost plus a margin
approach and adjusted market assessment approach to
estimate the stand-alone services price.

Investment income

Investment income is derived from returns in proportion
to the Group’s investment contribution in the LPs, after
deduction of fixed returns of premium level limited
partners and operating expenses of the LPs. The
investment income is recognised at the point of date
when the dividend return is approved by the board of the
LP. The dividend income is recognised when:

the right to receive payment of the dividend is
established;

it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group;

and

the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

Platform services income
For the platform services, there are 2 categories of
services:

The 1st category of the service is to match
borrower’s financing target with investor’s fund.
Service charge is recognised at a point when
matching is successful and the borrower draws
down the loan, which representing the borrower
accepts the service performed by the Group. PO is
satisfied at the point and the borrower is obliged to
pay for the service.

The 2nd category of service is to provide
community finance by monthly instalment plan
(normally 2 years) to the borrower. Service charge
is recognised over time when monthly instalments
are repaid. The borrower simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits for the instalment
services from the Group and the borrower is
obliged to pay for the satisfied PO over time.

There is variable consideration for above platform
services. The Group used the expected cost plus a margin
approach and adjusted market assessment approach to
estimate the stand-alone services price.

Interest income

Interest income (as the case may be, including the
administration fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate) from financing services (including
pawn loan, entrusted loan and other loan services) is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME(E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial lease service income

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Financial consultation service

The financial consultation service is to provide general
financial advisory to the borrower for fund raising.
Revenue will be recognised at a point in time when the
Group provided the funding proposal to the customer.
The borrower has the legal title which indicates that he
has obtained control of the proposal. Thus, the borrower
has obliged to pay for the satisfied PO.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group
completes the services under such services contracts
but not yet billed to the client due to contracted billing
term, if any, or (i) the customers retain retention money
to secure the due performance of the contracts. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to accounts receivables at the point at which
it is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations
(including advances received from customers) exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the output
method then the Group recognises a contract liability for
the difference.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(vii) Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)
However, the Group considers the impact from
recognition of contract assets is immaterial and therefore
no contract assets is recognised during the year.

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted,
the deferred tax amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 £ =~ =%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

()

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Foreign currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”).

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined and are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Foreign currency (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group's presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in
equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plans
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employee’s basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of employees' salaries to the central pension
scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the employee share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each reporting
period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of options
that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all other
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(m)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is also
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees and others providing similar services, the fair value
of goods or services received is recognised in profit or loss
unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled
share based payments, a liability is recognised at the fair value of
the goods or services received.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets);

investments in subsidiaries.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under the HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial

(n)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

assets) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sales, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is
deducted from borrowing cost capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
areincurred.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event and it is probable to result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(M has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(o)

(p)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

The entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Company’s parent.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(M that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of capital are
deducted from capital (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extend they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(p)

(q)

(r)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

4.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are the
same as those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies
(i) Subsidiary

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
carried out by the Group to rationalise the structure of
the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
the Company became the holding company of the
subsidiaries comprising the Group. The contractual
arrangements under the Reorganisation (“Contractual
Arrangements”) enable the Company to exercise control
over Guangdong Huijin Pawn Stock Company Limited
("Guangdong Huijin"), a joint-stock limited company
incorporated in the PRC.

The Contractual Arrangements were entered into
in order for the Group to manage and operate the
business of Guangdong Huijin in the PRC, under which
Flying Investment Services (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Flying Investment”) is exposed, has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with Guangdong
Huijin. Flying Investment, one of the subsidiaries of
the Company, has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over Guangdong Huijin, and the
variable returns are transferred to Flying Investment by
means of management and consultation fees payable
by Guangdong Huijin to Flying Investment. Further
details of the Contractual Arrangements are set out in
the paragraph headed “Structure Agreements” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2012 in
connection with its listing.

Accordingly, Guangdong Huijin is accounted for as
a subsidiary as a consequence of the Contractual
Agreements. Significant judgments have been
exercised by management in assessing and concluding
Guangdong Huijin as a subsidiary of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME(E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Income tax

The Group is subject to income and other taxes in
a number of jurisdictions. Significant judgment is
required in determining the provision for income taxes.
Transactions and calculations may exist for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. In addition,
deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

Determining the lease term of contracts with
renewal and termination options - Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain not
to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases, to
lease the assets for additional terms. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it
to exercise the renewal option. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that are
beyond its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not
to exercise) the option to renew (e.g. a change in business
strategy).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other key sources of uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group adopts the impairment policy to recognise
loss allowances for ECLs on receivables, financial asset
measured at amortised cost and debt investments
measured at FVOCI. ECLs are probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses and the Group has to make
judgement to determine whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition by considering and analysing on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment
including forward-looking information.

Satisfaction of performance obligations of
consultancy services

Certain revenue from consultancy service income is
recognised overtime over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. The revenue recognition
on an uncompleted consultancy service is dependent
on estimating the total performance obligations to be
performed of the consultancy contract, as well as their
completed satisfaction to date. In order to ensure that the
percentage of completion of performance obligations
is accurate and up-to-date, management frequently
reviews and estimates the progress of the consultancy
services rendered based on its past experience and
the nature of the consultancy services provided by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(iii) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets)
Determining whether an item of property, plant and
equipment is impaired requires an estimate of the
recoverable amount of the relevant cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs, which is the higher of
the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or change in facts and
circumstances which results in the downward revision of
future cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation for the
cash-generating units in respect of property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 15.

The impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB248,000 (2019: RMB2,429,000). As at
31 December 2020, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment was approximately RMB1,270,000
(2019: RMB7,442,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv)

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in the lease, and therefore, uses its incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR, therefore, reflects what the Group “would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when they need to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates.

5. BRESHAERMETIRELR
EWEEREF (&)

(b) At TEEMEZNEERR

(%)

(iv)

EHSBRBZERERLA

HE-ArREFERR
AEEEFESEEHEANM
MR Ei - ERREE
ERX(TREBEMNKDFE
MEAE REBENEKALE
ERAUEERES SIS AR
EREEEBEMROICEE
i AR LU 10 ah B AR A A R 45
AFFRETR N ZHEX-
b REEEN KRR T AE
BRI E  BEAE
EHAEE (AL HERT L RE
RPZMBRRIME) HERE
MEETRHBIARMREE 2 &
MR E (A0 A &3 3F AR
BRI ZNEEHETLE) - Al
AEMFIRMEE - ERERE
ABURA] B - AEEERA
BRE ABE (mEHR)
BREEENEYAERET
BB ERMEET -

—ECREER

163



164

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(v) Fair value measurement
The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
assets utilises market observable inputs and data as
far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels based
on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”).

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures investment properties (note
16), equity investments at FVOCI and at FVTPL and
debt investment at FVTPL (note 17) at fair value. For
more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement, please refer to the applicable notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make

strategic decision.

The Group has four (2019: four) reportable and operating segments.

The segments are managed separately as each business offers

different services and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's

reportable segments:

Investment in property
development projects

Operation of financial
services platform

Provision of entrusted loan,

pawn loan, other loan
services, and financial
consultation services

Finance lease services

Investments income and relevant consultation
service income generated from LPs, which
invest in property development projects and
are accounted for as financial assets at FVTPL;

Provision of financial consultation services and
financial services platform;
Provision of short-term and long-term

loans and financial consultation services to
borrowers and financial institutions; and

Provision of long-term finance lease services.
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M ERRB LA BEERS &
Ko B 75 AL AR
%
BEMRE RS RERHRERER
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

Segment information about reportable segments: AI2HHHER
Business segments (a) EBHEB
Provision of
entrusted loan,
pawn loan,
other loan
Investment Operation of services and
in property financial financial
development services consultation Finance lease
projects platform services services Total
REZAER
REER - Hfh
RERMNE Efegn EREER
BRER RETE HEBEEE REREES @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTR ARETTR ARETTR ARETR
For the year ended BE-Z-BET-A=1-A
31 December 2020 LEE
Revenue from external customers RANPEFEME 823 15,410 347 17 19,721
Reportable seqment (loss)/profit IE2HRAP (BR) /&7 (444,384) (16,696) (24,165) 496 (484,749)
ttems included in the measure of AR EBRANDEE
segment profit o loss or FELER
segment assets;
Changein fair value of financial assets ~ RATEHABR 2 2 BEE
at FVTPL AYEEY 362,272 - - - 362,272
Other expenses/(income), net EfRx/ (RN 58 105 (10,244) (949) (1,504) (12,592)
Depreciation of property, plantand ~~ #1% * HE RN E
equipment 239 1,585 1,836 - 3,660
Written off of property, plant and iEnz  BEREE
equipment 86 - 697 - 783
Impairment loss on property, n% - BEREEAEER
plant and equipment 27 - 221 - 248
Gain on disposal of property, MENE - BERSENOIE
plant and equipment (128) (370) (1,191) (1,449) (3,138)
Witten off on deposits paid, HMEENRS  BRFER
prepayments and other receivables  EAIEMFIR 30 1,020 240 243 1,533
Loss allowance on financial assets TREEFRRER 78,409 5,897 4,97 258 89,535
Recovery of impaiment of loansand MBI EF RENEF R
accounts receivables and other At IERE
receivables - (9,27) (847) - (10,118)
Addition of non-current assets REFRYEE - 2,041 27 = 2,068
Salaries and wages BeRIE 1,179 10,177 11,647 53 23,056
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-25+-A=t-H
Reportable segment assets NERAHEE 235,978 61,586 47,954 265 345,783
Reportable seqment iabilties EGHHERE 5,206 18,375 31,095 4,952 59,628
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEPER(E)

Business segments (Continued)

(a) B2 &R ()
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Provision of
entrusted loan,
pawn loan,
otherloan
Investment Operation of services and
in property financial financial
development services consultation Finance lease
projects platform services services Total
REZHER
HEER Ef
RERDZ BfroR ERRBR
BRER R%Te BEERRE BERERE @it
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
For the year ended BE-5-AE+-RA=t-H
31 December 2019 LEFE
Revenue from exteral customers RasfdrralsE 57,163 19495 26961 771 104390
Reportable segment loss PEL:TE (579820) (113862) 764 (1,666) (694,584)
ttems included in the measure of SANBENEERAAHEE 2
segment profit or loss or IR :
segment assets:
Change n fairvalue of financialassets — RAT B ABR 2 2BEE
atFVTPL AYEE 50,747 - - - 52,747
Other (expense)fincome, net HiB%/ (BN 38 (1039) 5877 (160) (270) 4412
Depreciation of property, plantand 1%+ BE RREITE
equipment 4032 470 1793 821 7116
Amortisation of intangible assets BN AEES - 2476 - = 2476
Impairment loss on goodwil BENEER - 48316 - = 48316
Impaiment loss on intangible assets ~ EFEEFEEE - 19810 - - 19810
Impaiment loss on property, plantand ~ #1% + BiE RAEAEEE
equipment - = 319 — 319
Gain on disposal of property, plantand  (NEWE « BERRENE
equipment - — 757 = 757
Gain on disposal of right-of use assets  (HE(F REEENZE - - 106 . 106
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets AL ERERSE - B 1Y) 1368 2110
Loss allowance on financial assets THEERRER 79493 2608 5843 (330) 107614
Addition of non-current assets REFTBEE 40 675 2176 - 2891
Salaries and wages HERIE 21853 13977 10,145 19 46,134
Asat 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+=A=1-H
Reportable seqment assets ERATEE 694,754 66,891 38886 2280 802811
Reportable segment iabilties EHAHEE 41,141 5,761 8857 8799 64558
EMSRREERERAR TBRIREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

revenues, (loss)/profit before income tax

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEPER(E)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) WE2HH EBULE - BRATES F B

XA (BR) - EERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

expenses, assets and liabilities BEZH IR
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBF T
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers R EINERE P R e 19,721 104,390
Loss before income tax expense MRATEHEXAIER
Reportable segment loss A2HoHEE (484,749) (694,584)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of a subsidiary HEW B AR, (EE) 47 (249)
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment BEWMEQNFE(BE) W
properties (1,270) 840
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERRETE
equipment - (14)
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREERN BEMR 2 - 2,169
Unallocated finance costs R BB A AR - (6,156)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROERARFAX (4,803) (6,892)
Consolidated loss before income tax expense & Fr 851 58 2 B4R & &5 18 (490,775) (704,386)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AZ2HRHHEE 345,783 802,811
Investment properties BEME 47,870 49,140
Amount due from a non-controlling interest i Y JE 4% A% # 25 FU0B 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFEEE 931 412
Unallocated corporate assets ROWAREE 80 2,452
Consolidated total assets IREEERTE 394,665 854,816
Liabilities &fE
Reportable segment liabilities AZHRHHEE 59,628 64,558
Amount due to a shareholder PR SR 5RIE 11,506 13,442
Dividend payable FERT AR B 106 113
Bank borrowings IRITIE X 15,735 14,360
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEABRES 5,987 5,114
Consolidated total liabilities maaBen 92,962 97,587

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c)

Geographic information and disaggregation of
revenue from contracts with customers

In the following table, segment revenue of the Group’s
reportable segments are disaggregated by primary
geographical market, major products and service lines and
timing of revenue recognition.

6.

(c)

2EER (&)
EFEHNWENHEEERRD

#

TREIREBEMERETS ETEEM
N BR# R B K MR U ek By B D A Y AR

SERRE D AP H) D B ER o

Provision of entrusted loan,
pawn loans, other loan

Investment in property Operation of services and financial
development projects  financial services platform  consultation services Finance lease services Total
RUZTER REEXR
For the year ended HBETZA=t-H ) B ARARER ) R
31 December LEE RERNERRER ERSRBETA NREBRERE AERERE it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECEFE CE-NF CEBCEZE CE-NF ZBCEE CT-NF ZECEE CTNE ZECEE -TE
RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMB'000 RVMBOOO  RMB'000 RMB0O0O  RMB'000 RMB00O  RMB'000 RMBI000
ARETR ARBTT AR®TR ARETH ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Primary geographical markets IZTHEDS
PRC PE 83 5763 15410 19495 2,648 26074 17 n 18,898 103,503
Hong Kong B - - - - 823 887 - - 83 887
Total 5t 83 5763 15410 19495 3471 26961 17 il 19,721 104390
Revenue h&
Investment income FEWA - 49000 - - - - - - - 49000
Financial consultation senvicesincome ~ Bf S BRI ARSI 823 8163 - - 370 23465 - - 1,193 31628
Platform senvices income TARBRA - - 15410 19495 - - - - 15410 19495
Interest income HEMA - - - - 3101 349 - - 3,101 34%
Finance lease senvice income BEREREMA - - - - - - 17 7 17 m
823 57163 15,410 19495 3471 26961 17 7 19,721 10439
Timing of revenue recognition WABRES
Atapointin time EETRY - 49000 15410 15162 370 3107 - - 15,780 87,63
Transferred over fime EEREY 3 8163 - 433 3101 3860 17 m 3941 1AV}
83 57,163 15,410 19495 3471 26961 17 m 19721 104390

The Group's non-current assets (excluding financial assets) are
predominantly attributable to a single geographical region,
which is the PRC. Therefore, no analysis of non-current assets by
geographical region is presented.

AEENFERBDEE (TEEEHME
—ihE - B -
FHitt - YRR 25 ERBEED

E)IERBRE

A7 o

EHSBRBZERERLA

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEPER(E)
(d) Information about major customers d) FEEFER
The Group's customer base is diversified. Revenue of the Group AEBMREFEREKN - AEBE =
includes the following revenue earned from counterparties with BREE TR S BEAERWE 10%
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue, MR SEFEESHRE  BEKRED
all of which were derived from revenue by the operation of RKEEHZ—_ZE-_FTF+-_A=+—H
financial services platform segment for the year ended 31 IEFERBEESRRGE T & nEBH
December 2020. (2019: Investment in property development W (ZE—NF R EWEMEIE
projects): B):

2020 2019

—EBEF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBFT

Counterparty A RHEFA N/ATEA 21,062

Counterparty B RPEFB N/ATEA 20,092

Counterparty C REEHFC 3,396 N/A T3 A

Counterparty D REEFD 3,366 N/A T3 A
N/A:  The relevant comparative figures for the corresponding period in TEA: —E-TFR-T-NFRHA
2020 and 2019 representing revenue from the relevant customers HEBE & P P15 U 4 1 A B8 LE BB

did not exceed 10% of the Group’s revenue. FABBAREBIWE10% °

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

7.

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the income
from its principal activities. Revenue recognised during the year are as

7.

Wy

Was (MRAAKRENERB) HREHEETE
BB - FARRHOWERIOT

follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREF T
Revenue from contract with customers within & & B SR E ERIZE 15578 E RN

the scope of HKFRS 15: & P& I
Financial consultation services income B 765 R 8 AR A U A 1,193 31,628
Platform services income T & RS YA 15,410 19,495

16,603 51,123
Revenue from other sources: H At SR U A -
Investment income from investments in BRERABIEENYWEEZEREIEE

property development projects through LPs IR E WA (H3E17@)30)

(note 17(a)(i) - 49,000
Interest income F B U A 3,101 3,496
Finance lease service income B E M ERFUA 17 771

3,118 53,267
19,721 104,390

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by the
timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets is disclosed
in note 6(c).

The following table provides information about loans and accounts
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

BPAERRERETSEADNEFE
Wz 2 3 PR BRI R 6(0)

TEATIEMESS D E KR ERER R
StBEER -

2020 2019

—2-FF —FTNEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Loans and accounts receivable E R R - 5,265
Contract liabilities (note 23) ARBEE (FFE23) (3,712) (2,466)

Contract liabilities increased by RMB1,246,000 in 2020 as a result of
the advance consideration received from the customers for financial
consultation services.

The transaction price allocated to the performance obligation that is
unsatisfied, has not been disclosed, as substantially all of the Group’s
contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 have a
duration of one year or less.

A BB S B R RS B B P B KR (E -
EHEER T FEINARKE,246,000
7_T_, °

AR AEERALO TP AL (REBMG
WELENBISHATE) RGBS —FK
AT BARBRBEIRERTKENEE
MR B -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

8. OTHERINCOME/(EXPENSES), NET 8. HawA  (FI%) F&
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M3 AR¥T T ARETF T
Bank interest income IRITF B WA 29 1,073
Interest income on financial asset REHER AT ENEREE
measured at amortised cost FLEUA @) - 21
Dividend income from equity BAFEARMEEKER
investments at FVOC| MEZEERBERA - 2,600
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment BEYERNTE(ER) W
properties 16 (1,270) 840
Gain/(loss) on disposal of a subsidiary I EME A RIS, (E518) 47 (249)
Bad debts of loans and accounts B 3R % FE AR TR BR A 8
receivables - (9,478)
Recovery of impairment on loansand W [E] LA {E FERR &) B 30 I JE I
accounts receivables and other BR 70 & B b G B DR E
receivables previously recognised 18 10,118 -
Gain on disposal of property, plantand & ¥ % - 5 & & U S
equipment 3,138 757
Others Htt 613 1414
12,675 (3,022)
Note: ff3E -
(a) Interest income from investments included interest income from financial () RENBIRABEIREBHEKATENS]E
asset at amortised cost. ERFIEUWA -
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HMEREAE
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR¥T T ARET T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIERF B 24 793 2,364
Effective interest on corporate bond REEHFNERFE 25 - 3,792
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEF A 26 391 1,174
1,184 7,330

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZ - =%

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

F+A=+t—HIFE

10. BRFTEHAXAIE R

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T T ARMBF T
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BUR BN 912 1,265
Depreciation charge EMZ
— Owned property, plant and —BEWE  BERRE
equipment 15 1,153 1,577
— Right-of-use assets included within —FANTSERNFEREEE
- Other buildings leased for — RS BRI EE A &Y
own use carried at cost HEiEgF 15 2,507 5452
— Motor vehicles -8 15 - 101
Short-term leases expenses RHAERY 2,349 665
Legal and professional fees FERBEES 8,321 9,441
Technical service fees Bl BR 7% & 4,745 6,553
Impairment loss on property, Wz BER&EEREEE
plant and equipment 15 248 319
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ~ {# FA1& & &= BB E5 18 15 - 2,110
Written off of property, plant and MEE Y - BB k&G
equipment 15 783 -
Written off of deposits paid, W ETIZ S - BRRER
prepayments and other receivables H fth fE Y /I8 1,533 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE - 2476
Employee benefit expenses including  {EE@FHZ (BIEE=HM)
directors’' remuneration 11 25,322 48,847
Salaries and wages HekIE& 23,438 41,685
Pension scheme contributions RN EIHRK
— defined contribution plans —E R RETE (b) 1,884 7,162
Equity-settled share-based payments ARz 45 B RR (D BERE 2 3K 6) - (2,169)
Note: B 5L -
@) During the year ended 31 December 2019, reversal of equity-settled share- @) HE_ZT—NF+-A=+—HLEFE
based payments was recognised in respect of (1) directors and staff and BmAENRMNERBEETIBAT & HE

(2) advisors under service contracts amounting to RMB1,954,000 and
RMB215,000 respectively, which was recognised in respect of share options
granted to them by the Company. The reversal of expense in relation to
the share options under 2018 Scheme was due to the failure to satisfy the
vesting conditions. Details of transactions are set out in note 28.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security (“MHRSS") issued an announcement
regarding the administration of Chinese social security contributions during
the period of prevention and containment of the spread of COVID-19
(Renshetingmingdian 2020 No. 7, hereinafter referred to as "Announcement
No. 7"), to ensure appropriate measures are stipulated by local Social
Security Bureau (“SSB"). Several local SSBs also released their respective local
practices for the administration of social security contributions in response
to Announcement No. 7. In addition to Announcement No. 7, the Standing
Committee of the State Council met on 18 February 2020 and decided to
reduce or waive employer obligations on social security contributions for a
specified period of time to ease the burden of enterprises during the year

ended 31 December 2020.

RMEEZERET: RQBERSEELOER
HEERE - 8O R AARK1,9540007T KA
R#2150007C c —ZF— \F&t &8 THBERHE
FERAR S VB Y R AR BRI B 5B B 1 o
R G FHBEAHIEE28 -

REBEZEZZT_TF+-A=+—HBIEFE"
ANEBRMLERES ([ANERESRE
) EmA - AR AR IR A EE
HEPELCSRERIOEESE (ALE
AT 2020 75% - THEI75R@BA]) - AR
WHHERER ((HERER]D FTHEE
Bt AT SRERNTERE T
EERMHEREHRIVEREEL AR
KoBR7BMN BEBREBEZESTN
—E-ZTF-_R+N\BBHGH  WREHE
5 7 B A R 8 ok A 0 B X MV AL S {RBE LR

B USFBREERBE—_Z_FTF+_A
=t—HLEFENEE-
EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

M EEFHMEREZESHNEAL

Directors’ remuneration (a) ESHM
The remuneration of each of the directors for the year is set out FANERZREZOMEOT
below:
Salaries Equity-
allowances settled
and benefits share-based Pension
in kind payments scheme
Fees (note a) (noteb) contributions Total
BHR ZERGA
BUREAN EfzAR RikE
ne (HitzEa) (Ht&Eb) sHEIHR @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR®BTR ARBTR AR¥TxR
Yearended 31 December HBZ_-ZT_EfF
2020 TZA=+—-HLEFE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zheng Weijing BEREE - 778 - - 778
Mr. Zhang Gongjun RABRE - 433 - - 433
Ms. Guo Chanjiao HEE LT - 687 - - 687
- 1,898 - - 1,898
Independent non-executive BV IEHTEE :
directors:
Dr. Vincent Cheng B=EET 125 - - - 125
Mr. Leung Po Hon REERE 104 - - - 104
Dr. Miao Bo EHREL 125 - - - 125
354 - - - 354
Total wst 354 1,898 - - 2,252
Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE

M EEFHREEESHME AL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED) (#&)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EEHM (&)
Salaries Equity-
allowances settled
and benefits  share-based Pension
inkind payments scheme
Fees (note a) (noteb)  contributions Total
5 PARE S
ZER HERNOA
EMRMN ERIAR BRe
wne GED) (P3ED) BEGEA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT ARBTRT ARETR
Yearended 31 December HE-Z—NF
2019 tTZA=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zheng Weijing BERLE - 872 (48) - 824
Mr. Zhang Gongjun RAEEE - 459 (110) - 349
Ms. Guo Chanjiao HEEat - 730 (110) - 620
- 2,061 (268) - 1793
Independent non-executive B IHEHTEE -
directors:
Dr. Vincent Cheng B=EEL 128 - (16) - 112
Mr. Leung Po Hon REERYE 128 - (16) - 12
Dr. Miao Bo HEEL 128 - (16) - 112
384 - (48) - 336
Total @t 384 2,061 (316) - 2129
Notes: M5t -

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

(b) These amounts were based on the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
accounting policies for share-based payments as set out in note 4(1)
to the consolidated financial statements.

ERFATRTEEME T EEREE
AR R R KB 15 A8 B AR P
A o ERAAIRBIFRTESEHE
TERBEBEARARNERNREHA
XA e

ZETERREADRBBRAE B
TEEMBRENMGEE -ZEH
Bt ey B EARIRAR & B S HRAR M FE 40)
PR B N ARG TR AT E -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three
(2019: three) directors whose emoluments are included above
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

The analysis of the emoluments of the remaining two (2019:

(%)

(b)

1. EEFMREEEaME AL

FEREMEAL
AEBBE_ZT_TFER_T—NF
+ZA=t+—HIEFERAUGSHE
ATHBE=A(ZE—HE  =61)
B HEZMEEREN 3.

HBMAUZ (ZE—NF W) &=

two) highest paid individuals is as below: 2AT E’J@H/\’Vﬁ LU
2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-nF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind o EZMEEYREA 1,125 1,455
Pension scheme contributions BRIKESFTEIHE R 29 32
1,154 1,487

Their emoluments were within the following band: BEHMEEWT ¢

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-hF
Number of Number of
individual individual
AT &R AT#E
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 78 7T 2 2

(c)  No director or any of the highest paid individuals waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the year (2019: nil). No

emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office for the year (2019: nil).

(d) The emoluments paid or payable to member of senior

(c)

(d)

FRBMEEFRTARSHEAL
BELXRERETAME (ZZ—N

FE) FRAREHRERLNEE
MERREFARSME AL AIER
i< - tFRE A INE A KB A
RENMBAME(CT-NF 8 -

AEREEEKE (EEHRIN Bk

management other than the directors were within the FERTH Zr M E 20T
following band:
2020 2019
gt —E-NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = F 1,000,000 7T 1 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT AND DEFERRED TAX

12. iIEHEEARELEREREE

LIABILITIES

2020 2019
—Z2-%F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBFTT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI S
— Provision in current year —AREEEE - 778
— Over-provision in respect of prior years —BAFEEERE (20,428) (1,686)

Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH

- Current year —ARFE - -
(20,428) (908)
Withholding tax A - 856
Deferred tax R IR - (5572)
(20,428) (5,624)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operated.

Enterprise income tax ("EIT") arising from the PRC for the year was
calculated at 25% (2019: 25%) of the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC during the year. According to the EIT
law, the taxable income of an enterprise shall be the total revenue of
such enterprise, deducted by any non-assessable revenue, exempted
revenue, other deductions and amount of offsetting any accumulated
tax losses.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC were approved as
qualified small and thin-profit enterprise with an annual taxable
income of RMB500,000 or less, and accordingly, they were subject to
a reduced preferential corporate income tax rate of 10% for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. The PRC corporate income tax for
the relevant subsidiaries of the Company filing for this preferential tax
treatment has been provided for at their respective prevailing tax rates
during the year. Upon receipt of notification, the relevant subsidiaries
of the Company will be entitled to corporate income tax rate of 10%
and corresponding tax adjustments will be accounted for.

REBERAEBEE RRRMEER
BUERRAAEL MG  RERE
EHSFAER -

REAMPRECEMEHE ((EEMEH]
RFENIEEE BTN B A maT ER
Fiom I B9 25% (ZF — NLF : 25%) 5T & -
BECEMSRE  CENERHMKAZ
Bz MU R 48R 2 AT FEFE R B K
o B U ES - H AR R & A LA 8
] 2R IBEBBRHFE -

AEBRTENETHBARENLAEE
EE N RER B - FEERBBRAT
Bl AREs500000T AEEZZ=_F
FRZE-NFF+A=F+—HLEFE "
ZEMB AR I0%HNRIEEEDER
BB R - KRR FRNIEEREZE
R EENEBENB AR B REERITH
KRR B EEREE - RE@maE -
AATAEWNERREER 10% 01
BEHME - WHERBENRGEAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT AND DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020 is calculated at 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year, except
for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under
the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For this subsidiary, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in 2019.

Withholding tax was calculated at 5% of the dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by a PRC subsidiary to its intermediate
holding company incorporated in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit and loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

12. FIEHERRIELESEES (&)

TECEFEBNERBHEIIEAT
BT ERFEFM165% (=T — hF
165%) 5T & - REFSHMAFBEE
BARM—EAEEETHE QAR -
MEZMBARME @ &28 88 THERE
i IR 8.25% OB REFL - AT M B R TS
FIE165% M ERB - ZMBRENES
FERBEEZE - — N FHRRAEET
% o

HE_Z - 2R _ZT—HhAF+_A
=+ —HIEFE  ENBERTPERER
B BREL A i A R B8 s A S 2 A R R AR
NAEIE IR B S%ETE °

REEHFERERLTREABRRAME
Hlkas & 82 B AR S A AR S
T -

2020 2019
—E-%F —ENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT
Loss before income tax expense b PT1S T 2 A ES 18 (490,775) (704,836)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of 1% B R B 2 25%
25% (2019: 25%) —ENF  25%) At ERIKRIE (122,694) (176,221)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE Ath FERE R 48 & 1Y
operating in other jurisdictions MEARINREERNTE 592 51
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN AT S ) A% 95,638 132,853
Tax effect of non-taxable income JEFE R T UL A B TR 7S (33) (2,964)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MARERHIBEEENTBZE 26,497 44,996
Over provision in respect of prior years BAFEBERE (20,428) (1,686)
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised AR AERNNIEEE - (3,509)
Withholding tax on distributed profits of I A Al ks FITE L
a PRC subsidiary - 856
Income tax credit FIigtHhiiE e (20,428) (5,624)
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE
As at 1 January m—A—H L 5572
Credit to profit or loss FFAER = (5,572)
As at 31 December ®n+=-—A=+—8H . a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT AND DEFERRED TAX 12. FISHERRELEHEEE (&)

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the PRC subsidiaries’ undistributed
retained earnings for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised is approximately RMB67,662,000 (2019: RMB136,053,000).
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong Kong and the
PRC of approximately RMB16,501,000 (2019: RMB15,744,000) and
RMB373,636,000 (2019: RMB268,410,000) respectively. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. The tax losses can be
carried forward with a maximum period of five years in the PRC while
the tax loss in Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely. In the
opinion of the directors of the Group, there are no other deferred tax
assets which will have a significant impact to the Group.

R-ZE-_TF+_A=+—H @BERHE
RELEHEEBENFRENB R RS IE
REBAMNEEANEREZBAEEOAEA
R¥67662000L (ZE—NF: AR
136,053,000 7C) ° AR A& B 42 3% S MY
BRARKBERE  BZS=NA B
RAKATRERE Bl - WA\ E = EER
REFIERE -

AREBREBRPEASBIEEZFRIER
BHARE16501,0007C (ZE—LF: AR
& 15,744,000 7T) & AR # 373,636,000 7T (=
T—NF : ARBE2684100007T) AR
KA REIETS B S FE SR A0 FI| LAB) AR 2 3P sk
HyBEEHBEE R ERZSER
BREEHBEEE - NP REMTEEIE
RE&EZAFNEE  MREENREESRE
ATEEE AEEEERAE TEH
MIRERTEE EREAEBEESRATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB468,725,000 (2019: loss of RMB673,713,000) and the
weighted average number of approximately 1,731,433,000
(2019: 1,731,433,000) ordinary shares during the year.

Diluted loss per share
The Company has one category of potential ordinary shares:
share options.

The diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the shares issuable
in respect of the outstanding share options have an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share.

14. DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no interim dividend was
declared by the Company to its shareholders (2019: no interim
dividend was declared by the Company to its shareholders).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil for the year ended 31 December 2019).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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13. EREER

(a)

(b)

BREXEIE

FRN FRERNGEBINEAQRE
B AEMREELO AR 468725000
T(ZE—hAhF BEARE
673,713,000 70 ) K & i@ A% o0 4 19
0 #91,731,433,0000% (ZZF — L -
1,731,433,000 %) 5T & -

BREEFEE

RATEE —HEE LB B -

AR M RITEBERE 2 AT 870
HERERGEENREEHE &
E_T_FTFR-_ZF-NF+=A
—t+—BHULIFEZGRBEESBEST
R E A EEAER o

14. RE

S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥  BMERRE

Other
buildings
leased for Furniture,
own use fixtures
Office carried Leasehold and office Motor
building atcost improvements  equipment vehicles Total
REAI8R
REBAN B %E
BogT  HttEF  RERE RELRE RE ag
RMBI000 RVBOOO RVBOOD RVBOO0 RVBOOD RVBOOD
ARBETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 RZE-N%-A—-H 3300 11971 5,649 9329 882 31,131
Additions RE - 1722 4% 549 19 2891
Disposals e (3,300) (2925) - @) - (6.267)
Exchange realignment BERAR - - 5 3 7 15
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+-8 - 10,768 6,080 9,839 1,083 27,770
Additions HE - 2,041 - 27 - 2,068
Disposals e - (12,809) - - (194) (13,003)
Written off iz - - (4,200) - - (4,200)
Exchange realignment 5 HE - - (4) (7) (23) (34)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=1-H - - 1,876 9,859 866 12,601
Accumulated depreciationand ~ REHTERFE :
impairment:
Asat 1 January 2019 RZE-N%—A—-A8 81 - 4238 6889 429 12377
Charge for the year FERX 67 5452 4 987 204 7130
Disposals HE (888) (715) - (19 - (1622)
Impairment (note 10andnote (o))~ JEifE (Fi & 10 B3 (b)) - 2110 319 - - 2429
Exchange realignment BERAZ - - 5 2 7 14
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H - 6,847 4,982 7,859 640 20328
Charge for the year FERX - 2,507 313 737 103 3,660
Disposals e - (9,354) - - (101) (9,455)
Written off fii 8 - - (3:417) - - (3/417)
Impairment (note 10and note (o))~ JBifE (P 3 10 R H3E ) - - - - 248 248
Exchange realignment B 5 HE - - 2) (7) (24) (33)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=1-H - - 1,876 8,589 866 11,331
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+-ZA=1—H - - - 1,270 - 1,270
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NE+ZA=1-A - 391 1098 1,980 443 7442
EHSBREZERERAR —ECEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 £ =~ =%

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FrA=+t—RHIFE

15. Y15 - BB RHRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Notes: MEE -
@) The Group's office building is located in the PRC with lease term expiring in (a) AEENHRLAEFURFRE R-_ZTH—F
2051. HEHEW -
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Other
buildings
leased for
own use
carried Motor
at cost vehicles Total
R A5 R
HEBAB
HipigF RE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019 —hE—A—A 11971 - 11971
Additions ANE 1,722 194 1916
Disposals L& (2,210) - (2,210
Depreciation e (5452) (o1 (5,553)
Impairment (note b) BB (5 b) 2110 - (2,110)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R =T —hF+= E —H
R-E-TG— 3,921 93 4,014
Additions NE 2,041 - 2,041
Disposals & (3,455) (93) (3,548)
Depreciation e (2,507) - (2,507)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZF+_H=1+—8H - - -
()  Theimpairment charges related to property, plant and equipment and right- b YVE BEERXEHECAEEAENHER /Jﬁ
of-use assets amounting to approximately RMB248,000 (2019: RMB319,000) BERD RN A/ARE248000T (ZF—
and nil (2019: RMB2,110,000),respectively, have been recorded in other F: AREE31900070) RE(ZE—NF: /\
administrative expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the R¥2,1100007T) © B AHAITHREA © #
impairment loss mainly attributable to financial services platform segment ET-NFTZA=+—RHIEFE  RBE
as one cash-generating unit ceased operation during the year. BEIEZERARSRRET é ’ﬁﬁ (fER—
EREEEELM) RFREFLES -
Recoverable amount as at 31 December 2019 has been determined by —NFFZA=1+—1 fJkE+E
value-in-use calculations based on cash flow projections from formally DRBEAEEEREFA SR AFHEE
approved budgets by the management of the Group covering a five-year EH 2R REBAREREETEET -
period. Cash flow beyond five-year period were extrapolated using an HIBAF 2 RE R E A G NEFERE
estimated weighted average growth rate which did not exceed the long- (THATHeRREEaRAEERR) RIT
term growth rate for the financial services platform in the PRC, and the B/R (Tﬁﬁﬁl‘?ﬁfﬁi RMEBREEEE
discount rate which was pre-tax and reflected specific risk relating to the IEEERR) HE
relevant cash-generating unit.
For the impairment assessment as at 31 December 2020, Management E‘JEEAf E-EF+ A=+ —BMRENE
of the Group concluded no impairment for furniture, fixtures and office CAEBEEEERR  AEEMNEA -
equipment, and impairment loss should be recognised for the motor vehicle Hﬁ%‘%ﬁ&%ﬂl?&ﬁlﬂmﬁ 1BZEREA
of the Group. BHERRMERSE -
ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWHE

2020 2019
—E-FF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETTT

Fair value NE
At 1 January n—H—H 49,140 48,300
Change in fair value (note 8) N EEE (FiFEs) (1,270) 840
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 47,870 49,140

All the investment properties of the Group are held under long-term
land use right in the PRC.

At 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties with a
carrying value of RMB47,870,000 (2019: RMB49,140,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank borrowing of the Group (note 24).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the investment properties held
by the Group were valued by a qualified valuer namely RHL Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment properties
being valued. The valuation was carried out in accordance with the
International Valuation Standards Council (“IVSC").

As detailed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties were seized by the Bureau and pledged
pursuant to the Guarantee Documents for the settlement of the
Unsettled Repayment Funds.

AEBURTENMERENEAR L
HERERE

RIEBE-_ZTF+_A=+—08 ~A&£EE
HEARBE478700007C (ZZE—LF A
R ¥ 49,14000070) MR EM L THER -
RAERRASEE TRTER(MIE24) -

RZBEZEFRZFE-NFTZA=1+—
A AEERENREYMERAGERGE
Bl N 38 S 5 R Bl 2K R TREERE B A R
NAEEITHE  FHREERY AR EE
B BN EHIREYENM T RIER
ETHENER - [HEREREGEER
ZB& ([IvsCl) #7T o

AEBNREVECES RIIH - TER
BERXMETAER - BIEENKBEE
T HBEREAMBHRME -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME(E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16. REWE (E)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the valuation was determined
by adoption of direct comparison method which was based on the
principle of substitution, where comparisons were made based on
prices realised on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable
property. Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature, character

and location were analysed and carefully weighed against all the

respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in order to
arrive at a fair comparison of market value. The significant input into
this valuation approach was price per square meter.

Information about fair value measurement using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) is provided below.

RIBE_EFR_FE-—NF+_A=1+—
B HEHNERERINEBEELEAE
T ARAIE R E L BERIEEMER
BRE, SBEEITHE MDA
S ME M REE 2 B LR Y
¥ FEHGESEMESEZ—ESL
BEERAFZMELR - ZEHEENE
B ABUE AT T KER -

EREATTREBHARE (E=6) 1A
FEHEERBIINT -

Relationships of
unobservable inputs

Range of unobservable input
(probability- weighted average)

Description Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs to fair value 2020
FTABRBARENER
FTABERBARE (Wt — AEF3)
gt fEE R EXFTEERAYE HATEZBR ZBCIEE
Investment properties Market approach Price per square meter ('sqm”) using ~ Good orientation will resultin -~ RMB61,194/sgm - RMB64,246/sqm
in the PRC market direct comparable which corresponding higher value
has been adjusted to reflect the
time of transaction, size, location,
amenities
REREME Gikos RRTSUERNENENEE REEAZSIEBEEEL ARY6, 14T/ THRK-ARYE
FEARBZZEE BE - A 642467/ F 7K
EREMRENETHA (TR
K1) B
Relationships of Range of unobservable input
unobservable inputs (probability- weighted average)
Description Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs to fair value 2019
FABRBARBNER
TUBERRAEE (TREME - MAEF )
iR HER EXTTBERABE BATEZHE ZE-hE
Investment properties Market approach Price per square meter (sqm’) using Good orientation will resultin -~ RMB62,599/5qm - RMB66,065/sgm
in the PRC market direct comparable which corresponding higher value
has been adjusted to reflect the
time of transaction, size, location,
amenities
hERENE LiE): FRTSUERNENEVEE REENZSIEBEEL ARY659T/ FAR-ARY
BENRMRSEE - RE 4 F 66065 7T,/ F 7K
ERENREOET R (7
K1) ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

16.

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 or any other level. The Group's policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur. There were no
transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the years.

The fair value measurement was based on the above properties’

highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVOCI

16.

17.

REWE (&)

HE_ZT-_ZEFR_E—NF+=A
=+—RIFEE F=RSEMEME
mA e A E Y REBZBRARH
REE Yy RERERATFEEAR 2 &
BoFRN F— —RIH I EEE o

NEAEDER M EN &S MRE
Mzt BRIRNEERAR -

BRAVFEFABEZNERNEE
%é;ﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬂ&éﬂ’ﬂﬁ

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARBETTT

Financial assets at FVTPL
- unlisted equity securities (note a(i))
- unlisted debt securities (note b)

Financial assets at FVOCI
SRMEE

- unlisted equity securities (note a(ii))

— I LR E 7 (FfeEali)

BAVEFABENEHEE
— I LR 7 (K FEal)
— kLT EHES (HiEDb)

BAVEFAREMBEZEREN

231,351 590,791
31,808 34,640
263,159 625,431
54,129 40,300

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVOCI (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The amounts comprised investments in LPs and equity interests of an
entity in the PRC at amounts of approximately RMB231,351,000 (2019:
RMB590,791,000) and RMB54,129,000 (2019: RMB40,300,000), respectively, as
at 31 December 2020.

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the Group invested in certain LPs in the PRC
and acted as a limited partner with capital contributions at a range
of RMB20 million to RMB60 million (2019: RMB6 million to RMB60
million) for each LP. The contributions represented 1.9% to 42.5%
(2019: 4.0% to 42.9%) of the total contributions of the corresponding
LPs. The Group revoked its voting right on decision making over
these LPs and therefore, the directors are of the opinion that the
Group did not have any control, joint control nor significant influence
over these LPs. These LPs invested in property development project
companies which are engaged in property development projects in
the PRC which are being developed by a property developer in the
PRC (the "PRC Property Developer”). The Group intends to hold these
equity investments for receiving investment income and will sell
them out if the return is not optimal as management expected.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
investment income of nil (note 7) (2019: RMB49 million from 4 of
the LPs). As at 31 December 2020, there was gross carrying amount
of approximately RMB26 million (2019: RMB26 million) investment
income receivables from these LPs (note 18).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVOCI (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

(ii) The Group made an additional capital contribution of RMB30,000,000
to the joint venture entity, Henan Microfinance Limited (“Henan
Microfinance”) (formerly named “Zhongzhou Huilian Internet
Financial Service (Shenzhen) Limited”), due to a restructuring of
this company during the year ended 31 December 2017. Prior
to the capital contribution, the Group invested in 40% of the
equity interests in Henan Microfinance as joint venturer as at 31
December 2016. Upon completion of the capital contribution and
restructuring of Henan Microfinance on 17 May 2017, the Group's
equity interests was diluted to 5%. As the Group no longer acts
as a joint venturer, interest was changed from a joint venture to
financial asset at FVOCI. The fair value gain on the financial asset of
approximately RMB13,829,000 (2019: fair value loss of approximately
RMB10,648,000) was recognised in the other comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value by using
recent transaction approach and classified as Level 2 (2019: Level 3)
fair value measurement.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 10% of the equity interest
of Shanghai Yiliang Technology Co., Ltd. Invested by the Group had
been fully disposed at the consideration of RMB11,400,000.

Certain property development project companies invested by the LPs
and the equity interests of the Group in Henan Microfinance in PRC have
been seized by the Bureau due to the Unsettled Repayment Funds. The
carrying amounts of the Group'’s investments in these LPs amounted to
RMB128,838,000 as at 31 December 2020.

On 29 December 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to subscribe for assets-backed securities ("ABS”) in
the PRC for a consideration of approximately RMB40 million. The subscription
amount represented 10.5% of the entire units of the ABS. According to the
agreement, the Group shall receive a variable return over the agreement
period. The ABS will expire in September 2026 and the Directors had no
intention to dispose of this investment as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
The investment was therefore classified as a non-current asset as at 31
December 2020 and 2019. The ABS is a debt security and stated at fair value
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. Loss in fair value of RMB2,832,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Gain in fair value of RMB3,101,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no return received
by the Group (2019: RMB1,841,000) as reimbursement of the investment
principal.

17. BAFEFABEZNEREE
BRAFEFAEMCEZEKVENE
MEE (8)

e -

(a)

EHSBRBZERERLA

(%)
()

(ii) HE-_Z—+F+-A=+—HILHF
B ARAREMR AEERAEE
BumaTRNEERBRAR([F
BANE ) (RIFE T N PR B B B 4D < Bk
RS ORI BR AR BINEE A
R #30,0000007C c JEE R/ R=ZF
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FEREMRE  AEENRAERE
HEES% c HRAKBTIBREES
EEAABEAREARATETAR
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#513,829,000 LRI & B & = A FEME
(ZZE-—NF : ATFEEBHARK
10,648,000 7T) BN E M 2 E W FERR ©

S ETBARS DER
ATEHERSMASE -
—hE B

5 50
B (=
BEZER)ATEHE-

HE-Z-NWGF+=-A=+—H1t
F g AN & B & & Shanghai Yiliang
Technology Co,, Ltd #) 10% ## z= B & £X
HE - RERARK 11400000 7T ©

ABREBRENETMEMBIER AT R
REERFEEP R NEHRAEZEARE
BESMERANA BEZT_TF+=
A=1+—8 XEERZEEREEHIRE
BRTEE A AR 128,8380007T ©

RZTZ—RE+-A-+hIB  AEFREF
SNE=FEN—HE  AREHARE 40
BETRBETFREEREES (TABS]) - R
B BEIE M ABSENRLM 105% ° RIE R
A £ B8 A 19 & BRI R BUZ B B1 3R © ABS A
ZEZRFENRER MEEFR_ZT=ZTF
RZZ—hF+ZA=+—HEZHEL
BE  -ZBRERAMR=ZZE=ZFR=_ZT—A
F+-_A=+—"HBOHEAIEREIEE - ABS
BEBES WA S -_TFR-_T—NF
FTZA=+—HNAFEIR HEZTZ
TFE+-A=+—HILFE R FEERY
BAR283200T (ZE—NF: AFE
Wi AR#3,101,0007T) - BEZT=ZTF
TZ A=+ —BLEFE AEBEWEKED
W(ZZE—NF: AR 18410007T) ' 1EA
REMIEELRS -

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

18. ERREWAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

approximately RMB11,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB11,000) arranged in the PRC. Customers were obliged to
settle the amounts according to the terms set out in relevant
contracts, with the option to renew the loans granted for a
period up to 183 days. Interest rates offered were based on the
assessment of a number of factors including the borrowers’
creditworthiness and repayment ability, collaterals as well
as the general economic trends. As at 31 December 2020,
the remaining balance of RMB11,000 has been matured in
December 2017. The pawn loans bore effective interest rate at
2.7% per month as at 31 December 2020, and the maturity date
for each loan contract was not more than 183 days.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B3 AR¥T T ARBEF T
Pawn loan receivables FEU 2 B R a 1 1
Entrusted loan receivables JEWEZAER b 1,327 1313
Financial consultation services income & U B/ 74 &8 8 AR 755 Uk A
receivables C 6,956 9,972
Investment income receivables JE IS 4% & WA d 26,000 26,000
Platform services income receivables eI & AR S U A e 3,868 7,763
Finance lease receivables FEUN b & A & IE f 258 1,900
Other loan receivables His R E g 46,362 51,300
84,782 98,259
Less: non-current portion B IEmENIE D
Other loan receivables H W E K g (5,242) (6,269)
79,540 91,990
Less: loss allowance of loans and B BRI EW AR E B R
accounts receivables (note 36) (F5E36) (69,485) (38,243)
Current portion mENER 5 10,055 53,747
Pawn loan receivables represented the short-term loan of a. RIZEZZEF+ZA=+—H Bk

000 TEHER(ZE—NF: AR

HEERERPELENOARE
0
1

1,0007T) - R AREEBE K
Fr& I E (B 5RTE - BFE AlEIEB AT
EEREHZE183H - MR DIREY
ZIEERMFE MRS  ZEERE
BEFANERERERE D - KT
PIA R — RSB - R BT F
+TZA=1+—8 &%BEARE® 11,000
TERZE—+F+ZHEH - K=
T-EFE+-A=Z+—H HEER
BESRAEBMER27%:TE  SBEXRAE
HWE A TZ183H -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

b.

Entrusted loan receivables represent loans to borrowers
through certain banks or other financial institutions in the
PRC. In an entrusted loan arrangement, the Group enters
into a loan agreement with the borrower and a bank or other
financial institution. The borrower repays the loan to the bank
or the other financial institution and then the bank or financial
institution returns the principal and accrued interest to the
Group. While the bank or the other financial institution exercises
supervision over the arrangement and receives repayment
from the borrower, the bank or the other financial institutions
does not assume any risk of default by the borrower. The
effective interest rate on entrusted loan receivables are 0.46%
(2019: 0.46% to 0.67%) per month as at 31 December 2020.
Independent third parties have guaranteed these entrusted
loans with maturity dates between 1 month to 2 years (2019: 1
month to 6 years).

For financial consultation services income receivables, the
credit period is 30 days and customers are obliged to settle
the amounts according to the terms set out in the relevant
contracts.

Investment income receivables represent income from the
investment in LPs as described in note 17(a)(i). The receivables
are typically settled 3 months (2019: 3 months) after the date of
the board meeting of the LPs.

Platform services income receivables represent service income
charged to the platform users who are obliged to pay service
fees to the Group. There is no credit period and customers are
obliged to settle the amount according to the terms set out in
the relevant contracts.

18. ER K EBUW AR (&)

b.

EHSBRBZERERLA

EWETEFTIES BT ENSE TIRIT
FEMEREBERERARENE
Ko EEREERL T - REBHE
FTAR—MERIT Eftb & mgiEs]
Y ERWE o (BERARBITREME
B EEEE  MIRTTH SR E
BEaE RS RIEFTFEHBETAE
B - B ARITRE M S B R L
BETEB R EZERERAER - ER
1Tk H A & R I TR E TR RS
RAEHMSIENRR - RZT=F
F+-_A=Z+—H EREZTERE
B2 046% BB F|E (ZT—h4F
046% = 067%) 5T B - RXE XA B
VE=ZFER HBENTIEAE
WE(ZZE—NF1EAZ6F) -

FE U B 75 R RIS M A Y E E /RS 30
B - BERPAREHEBRE QMEGK

BIEFA -

FE R B WA T8 2R B BT 5E 17)6) Pt
BRENRBREBRANUA < ZEW
FE—RBREREBAFEETEE
ZHBE=EA (ZZE—NF: =@
R &&E -

FEUF & BRI U A SR & F P YR
MBRIBWA - F e BPARAEEX
NREE - AERBLEEEY B
EPARBABA OMBIETIEER
b=

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

f. For finance lease receivables, borrowers are obliged to settle the
amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts
and acquire the leased assets at the end of the lease period. The
interest rate is 9.5% (2019: 9.5% to 12.5%) per annum as at 31
December 2020 with lease periods of less than one year (2019:

less than one year).

The finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019

18. ER K EBUWAR (&)

FLEM A E HE R
RIFRE A QPTE

HmE - BRAE
RFUBERR - X

ARHENERSKEHEHEEE - —

= —=

F+ZA=t—BHNFMNEE

95% (ZZF—F 1 95% = 12.5%) * 18
ERIR—F(ZZE—hF: PR —

RZZEZFTFR=ZZF—-NF+=A

are further analysed as follows: =+—H EWREREREE—F
AT
—EB-EF Minimum lease Interest Present
31 December 2020 +=Z—A=+—8H payments income value
REAEMRRK FE WA RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®BT T ARBT T
Not later than one year TER—F 258 - 258
—E-NEF Minimum lease Interest Present
31 December 2019 +=—A=+—H payments income value
REBERK FEHKA BE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREEF T ARBF T
Not later than one year TERR—F 2,229 (329) 1,900

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

18. ER K EBUW AR (&)

f. (Continued) f. (%)
The present value of future lease income is analysed as: AKREEWANRELHTHET :
2020 2019
—E-FF —ENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBTT
Current assets mENEE 258 1,900
Non-current assets ERBEE - -
258 1,900
Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the FEW R E TR S IE M A SR A AR R
equipment leased and guaranteed from independent third ER IR B 5 = F IR - RNEE
parties. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the NEEAMAREHOERL T GEKT
collateral in the absence of default by the leasees. ) & s AR R o
g.  Other loan receivables represent loans to borrowers including g HttEKREFREMERA (BIEHE

individuals and entities at fixed interest rate ranging from 5% to
15% (2019: 5% to 15%) per annum with loan periods of 1 to 10
years (2019: 1 to 10 years). Included in the other loan receivables
were long-term loan of approximately RMB6,269,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB7,234,000). Such loan bears fixed
interest rate of 6.09% (2019: 6.09%) per annum and will be
repaid over a period of 10 years (2019: 10 years).

Based on the commencement date of the loans as stated in the
relevant contracts, the ageing analysis of the gross carrying amounts

AMATRERS BELHHNER  BESF
FMENF5%E15% (ZF— N6
S%E15%)  EEHA—Z1+F (=
E-NF . —E+F) ZTFF
+TZAZT—HNEHEROAR
¥ 6269000 (ZFE—NF : AR
7,234,0007T) B EMEWER -2 E
FIREFEERNE6.09% (- T — 4 :
6.09%)5HE EEHETF (22—
F4F) o

HRMEBAOHANERHARBEH - I &
2] £ & 3R % B A RR K ) 48 R T B R R e 0

of the Group’s loans and accounts receivables is as follows: W

2020 2019
e i —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBTT
0to 30 days 0£30H - 2,154
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H - 26,988
91 to 180 days 9THZE180H 2,954 9,253
Over 180 days 180 H LA £ 81,828 59,864
84,782 98,259

EHSRBREERERAR “ECBREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 8. ERKREWERR (&)
(CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis of the gross carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and REBRBEBENE R R ERKERLE
accounts receivables, before impairment allowance, is as follows: oM
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZT-hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARBTT
Neither past due nor impaired BT 8 B R SRR (B 20,555 31,994
0 to 30 days past due #HI0ZE 30 H - 1,550
31 to 90 days past due #HI31 =908 2,588 27,953
91 to 180 days past due #HI91 2= 180 H - 3,947
Over 180 days past due #H 180 A A £ 61,639 32,815
84,782 98,259
Impairment losses in respect of loans and accounts receivables are B R EUER AR EEEE A HIEERRL
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied f;lb‘ BRIEAEERB IR EZEE
that recovery of the amounts is remote, in which case the impairment REBRATREBESEERNERLER
losses are written off against loans and accounts receivables directly. BRFUMSE o RIS - B R EURERR
Based on this assessment, the movements in impairment of loans and E’JHTE FERIAE -

accounts receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBFT

Balance at 1 January R—A— AW 38,243 15,885
Loss allowance in loans and accounts receivables E HE 2 & 7k & & UL BR R &5 18 7 1

recognised (note 36) (FfF3E36) 35,979 22,358
Recovery of impairment of loans and accounts U 8] BA 1 3R B B 3K f UK BR 5%

receivables previously recognised (note 36) RAE (5T 36) (4,737) =

Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—HR#&#% 69,485 38,243

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 18. ERREWERR (&)

(CONTINUED)

The Group held collaterals over the finance lease receivables, other
loan receivables and entrusted loan receivables. At the end of each
of the reporting date, the fair value of the pledged assets (for finance
lease receivables) whereby the Group was not permitted to sell or re-
pledge in the absence of default by the borrowers in respect of finance
lease receivables was as follows:

AEBERERBERETE  EbEERE
RARERZFEERFHEAY - REME
BHIR - AR REHEFENERE
E(HMEKBEHRERENS) (KREET
BEBRAREONBR T HELBER)
B RFHERT

2020 2019
e —ENF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®F ARETT

Accounts receivable JE UK BR 3k
(for finance lease receivables) (Bl mEREERE)
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group received guarantee
from independent third parties to secure the balances of gross
carrying amount of other loan receivables and entrusted loan
receivables approximately of RMB6,269,000 (2019: RMB7,232,000) and
RMB1,327,000 (2019: RMB1,313,000), respectively.

6,617 12,044

6,617 12,044

RIBE_EFR-_F-—NF+_A=1+—
B RNEBWBIE=FHISER  AE
ABEMERER R ETENEREREE
HEr o Bl AR 62600007 (ZF— 1
F: AR®7,2320007T) & AR 1,327,000
T(ZE—NF : AR#1,313,00070) B9
o

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

19. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

19. EARE BANREREMEER

RECEIVABLES A
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARET T
Deposits paid (note a) BffiEe (MEa) 905 1,125
Prepayments TET5RIE 1,181 2,033
Other receivables (note b) H e IE (H5Eb) 137,529 138,256
139,615 141,414
Less: other receivables, non-current portion W B EERIE - FEREE S - -
139,615 141,414
Less: loss allowance on other receivables, B HEA R IR R R AR
in aggregate (134,000) (85,939)
Current portion mENE 5,615 55475
Notes: Mz -
(@) As at 31 December 2020, deposits paid comprised rental and various (a) R-ZE-_ZF+_A=+—H" BEf&ks
deposits amounting to RMB905,000 (2019: RMB1,125,000). BEARKEI0500T (ZF—NF : ARH
1,12500070) AR & R F IR T -
(b)  Asat 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of other receivables b)) W-ZE_TF+_A=+—8 EMEWK

mainly comprised (i) the consideration concerning the disposal of
financial assets measured at FVTPL of approximately RMB48.5 million
(2019: RMB48.5 million); (ii) earnest money paid to third parties for the
future acquisition of Chongging Beibu New District Baosheng Small Loan
Co., Ltd of approximately RMB20.4 million (2019: RMB20.4 million); (iii)
loan to independent third party of approximately RMB36.9 million (2019:
RMB35.1 million); iv) sale of loan receivables to factoring companies of
approximately RMB15.6 million (2019: RMB26 million) in relation to the
financial service platform operation; and (v) cash advances to staff in amount
of approximately RMB1.5 million (2019: RMB1.5 million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

FEMERAEFZEEE () HERQATER
AEEHERMEEFBENRENARBE 485
BET(ZZ—NF ARB4ss5858T)
(i) %t B 1% U BE Chongging Beibu New District
Baosheng Small Loan Co, Ltd. X FE=H K
BESHOARKE204F5EBIL(ZE—NF: A
R¥204B8T)  (NBILE=ZFERHA
RE369BEBT(ZZE-NF ARK3IA
g0 (WRRERFAHEESREHE TS
¥BEANERERNARKE 1S6 A8 (=
T-hF: ARB268BE7T) RWETE
ITHRESBZIHNARB IsEET(ZE—N
F:ARBISHEERT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

20.

21.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST/(TO) A SHAREHOLDER

The balances due were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. As at 31 December 2020, the balance amount of
approximately RMB11,506,000 (2019: RMB13,442,000) was due to
Mr. Zheng who is a chairman, executive director and chief executive
officer of the Company.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash in hand and bank
balance. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB amounting to approximately
RMB7,035,000 (2019: RMB16,318,000), and were kept in the PRC. RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.

Segregated clients’ accounts

The Group maintains segregated client’s accounts with independent
online financial centers which are affiliated to licensed banks in the
PRC to hold clients'deposits arising from normal business transactions
in connection with the provision for financing platform business.
As at 31 December 2020, clients’ account not dealt within these
consolidated financial statements amounted to approximately
RMB3,755,000 (2019: RMB8,739,500).

20.

21.

FEWGEIE R (FET) IR

IE

BB AEEE 2B RARERE
B-RZZE-_TF+_A=+—080 &%
PARME11506000TT (ZE—NF : AR
#13,442,0007C) BRI T ARQA B ER ~ 81T
ESRITHBEHEEAE -

BeRREEEEE

Re kRS ESEEBEFHERS RRTTE
Ho-RZEZEFF+-_A=+—H £&E
MRS MBS EEEB UARBHE
D RI# A AR 70350007 (ZF— N4 -
AR¥163180007T)  WFEBRHE - AR
T EmERAHMEN AP EE
& £ B P BIBUT R E KRB ATARER -

BYEFERFP

REBRPEFEETCHBEE LA LS
BPLERBURFES  UEFEBEXRAES
BREBREFEEBNETEBRIZE
FPERXR RZZEZTF+=_H=+—H"
AR EGREVBEREREENEFPRP £
B ABARE3755000L (Z2—HF - A
R#8,739,5007T) °

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

22. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

22. FWFIE - BT ERAREAEM

PAYABLES I
2020 2019
—Z-%F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT ARBTT
Receipts in advance (note a) FE U IE (Fista) 807 787
Accruals fEstE M 5,587 7,598
Other payables (note b) H A (H5Eb) 44,257 22,600
50,651 30,985

Notes: BgsE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

As at 31 December 2020, the receipts in advance comprised mainly
RMB760,000 (2019: RMB760,000) received from LPs as investment income in
advance.

As at 31 December 2020, other payables mainly comprised (i) other payables
for purchasing the leased assets under finance lessees of approximately
RMB1.6 million (2019: RMB2.5 million); (i) deposits received from finance
lessees of approximately RMB570,000 (2019: RMB1,860,000), (iii) the balance
of approximately RMBO0.6 million (2019: RMB2 million) related to the partial
cost of the properties received on behalf of the property developer from
the property buyers as at 31 December 2020, (iv) other tax payables of
approximately RMB4,155,000 (2019: RMB4,440,000), (v) other payables to
various independent third parties for technical service fee of approximately
RMB6,300,000 (2019: RMB372,000) and (vi) the amount of approximately
RMB16,306,300 representing the provision made for the settlement of the
legal action against two PRC subsidiaries of the Company and the Company
(note 39).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

R-Z-_FFE+-A=+—H BWRRET
BEEAEAREEARBERIEERARA
R#7600007C (ZF—N4F : ARM 760,000
JT) e

R-B-_FE+-A=+—08  HibERH
BXFERE(RERAHEETHESREN
Hib RN REHNARB16BET(ZE—A
F:ARB25EET) () BEREMEEWE
MRS HARMES700007T (ZE—HE A
R¥1,8600007T) : (iNAZE=_FF+=A
=t+—H #HBOARBEETL(ZZE
—NE: ARBEET) AREMERER
MYEEFWEREB D WIEER A  (v) EfhfE
NEIEHARE 41550007 (ZB—HE: A
R¥54,440,0007T) 5 (v) SRR MO ARTS B B 2
BN E =R H A FIE A AR 6,300,000 7T
(ZZ—NEF: AR®E3720007T) : K (vi) LR
RN BIMR T BB AR AR R
BITBELRABHZIELN AR 16306300 7T
(Mi5E39) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23. EWEE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—E-FF T—NF
+=ZA=+—8 tZA=+—AH
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Contract liabilities arising from: LTERBEENEHNARE:

Revenue W zs - 610
Receipts in advance TEU SR IE 3,712 1,856
3,712 2,466

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract FESHNARSEN —REREHRT

liabilities are as follows:

A contract liability which arises in respect of the Group’s financial

AEEVBERRBELENGORERRA

consultancy service is recognised as revenue relating to the general B IRME AR R iR 5 — AR BT RS R AR 7S
financial advisory services at the time of the services rendered to the AR A
customers.
Movement in contract liabilities EHNEEEF
2020 2019
—E-FF T—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT
Balance as at 1 January R—A—R#&& 2,466 -
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of SHBERFABARFEITA
recognising revenue during the year that AR ENkEmRL
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (2,466) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of EHBERRATET & Mmgm
billing in advance 3,712 2,466
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+— 3,712 2,466
EHSRREZERERAT —ECEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

24. BANK BORROWINGS 24, RITER

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Secured (note a) BHEIF (MH5Ea) 12,745 14,360
Unsecured and guaranteed (note b) AR A ER(WHeEb) 2,990 -
15,735 14,360

Analysed into: DA
Current BVHA 15,735 2,154
Non-current JEBNHR - 12,206
15,735 14,360

Note a: ffsta -

The Group's bank borrowing of RMB12,745,000 (2019: RMB14,360,000) is secured by
the Group’s investment properties (note 16) and bore interest at the rate of 539 %
(2019: 5.39%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year, in respect of a bank borrowing with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB12,745,000 as at 31 December 2020, the Group breached certain
of the terms of the bank borrowing, which was primarily attributable to the seizure
of pledged investment properties by the Bureau. On discovery of the breach, the
Group has informed the lender and commenced a renegotiation of the terms of
the loan with the relevant banker. As at 31 December 2020, the negotiation had
not been concluded. Since the lender has not agreed to waive its right to demand
immediate payment as at the end of the reporting period, the bank borrowing
has been classified as a current liability as at 31 December 2020. Up to the date of
approval for issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the negotiations are
still in progress. The directors of the Company are confident that their negotiations
with the lender will ultimately reach a successful conclusion.

Note b:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has obtained a new bank
facility of RMB3,000,000 from a PRC bank. This bank facility is unsecured and
guaranteed by Ms. Guo and bore fixed interest rate of 9.45% per annum. The new
bank facility amounting to RMB3,000,000, of which RMB2,990,000 had been utilised
as at 31 December 2020. As Ms. Guo was held in custody by the Bureau as detailed
in note 1, pursuant to the loan agreement, the bank borrowing of RMB2,990,000
became immediately repayable.
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HE-_T-_TF+_A=-+—HLFE A£H
RITERARE127450000 (ZZE—LF : ARKE
14,360,000 7C) B AN BB W3 (M Tk 16) 3 - 1%
FEHME539% (= F—N4F 1 539%) 5F 8 o

ERN - R—ER_ZT-_TFE+_A= + AEmEE
HBANREE 12745000 THISBITERME - AEEE
RERITIE KA E TR Iﬁmﬂhém%§”
N - REEIRE LR ¢Elaﬁﬂ% NI
BHRITRERERERETER - R T _FF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

24,

25.

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The bank borrowings are scheduled to be repaid as follows:

24,

RITEK ()

2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETF T
On demand or within one year BERFR—FR 3,578 2,154
More than one year, but not exceeding two years  — 4 A _E + 1B N 1B MR F 3,719 2,154
More than two years, but not exceeding five years M A - B BB F 6,462 6,462
After five years AFi% 1,976 3,590
15,735 14,360

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates in the loan M - BIERRB HIRIE B Sk Wi Arak TE AT iE 5k B £

agreements. HE o
CORPORATE BOND 25. ARES

On 12 September 2018, the Company issued the 12% corporate
bond with principal amount at HK$64,707,373 (equivalent to
RMB56,813,074) which will mature in 360 days from the issue date.
The corporate bond is secured by share charge of 408,369,769 issued
shares of the Company, which does not consist of any derivative
elements. The Company has the right to early redeem the corporate
bond by giving prior notice to and obtaining written approval from
the corporate bond holder.

The corporate bond was issued for the purpose to raise fund in order
to redeem the convertible bonds during the year. At 31 December
2018, the balance of the principal of the corporate bond was
RMB56,813,000. The amount was fully settled in September 2019.

RZZE-N\FNLATZH ARBEITAS
¥H64,707373 T (HHE R AR 56,813,074
JL) B 12% R EES - AR E1T A B REET
360 H EIER - A BlfE# 2N A 7] 408,369,769
REBITIROBOBR O HAZEERR T2
EAHTERZE - ARRBEMBRESHE
BABLEBHBATVESARBESERS A
MEBMRERIZAEDQRES -

BT RARESEESESESERNF RSB
KEHF RZE—N\F+A=+—8"
NEIEFAS EH A AR 56813,0007T °
THEER_ZE—NFLABELE -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

25.

26.

CORPORATE BOND (CONTINUED) 25. X AfE S (&)
The movements in the corporate bond recognised in the consolidated RERE MR RRERORRES 22
statement of financial position are as follow: /NN
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEMmEAE - 55,506
Face value of the corporate bond issued BERTARMESZEE - -
Effective interest expense (note 9) BERFSHZ (M) - 3,792
Interest paid ERFE - (2/485)
Repayment of corporate bond BEAFES - (56,813)

Carrying amount at 31 December

Interest expense on the corporate bond was calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of
12.36% per annum.

LEASES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as
lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions from
which it operates. In some jurisdictions it is customary for lease
contracts to provide for payments to increase each year by inflation
and in others to be reset periodically to market rental rates.

The Group also leases motor vehicle, which comprise only fixed
payments over the lease terms.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

R+ ZA=+—RZzEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

26. LEASES (CONTINUED) 26. HE (&)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as HEEHHNME (FREABA) (&)
lessee) (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities and the

movement during the year are as follows:

AEEHERERAENRFANEEIAT -

Lease liabilities HEAE
Other
buildings
leased for
own use
carried Motor
at cost vehicle Total
&R A 51 Bk
HEBRAB
Hiigs RE W
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2019 RZFE—hF—H—H 11,971 - 11,971
Additions NE 1,722 194 1,916
Disposals HE (2,316) - (2,316)
Interest expense FEZH 1,156 18 1,174
Lease payments MERR (6,091) (114) (6,205)
Exchange realignment P& 3 2 5 - 5
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—NF+=ZA=+—8
1 January 2020 ;kZ—Z2_FTF—-H—H 6,447 98 6,545
Additions NE 2,041 - 2,041
Disposals HE (6,588) (98) (6,686)
Interest expense FEXH 391 - 391
Lease payments MERK (2,116) - (2,116)
Exchange realignment ME W S (20) - (20)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB_TF+_-_A=+—H 155 - 155
EHSRREZERERAT —ECEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

26. LEASES (CONTINUED)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as

lessee) (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

26. HE (&)
MERDHEE (FREMBAN) (F)

HESE (R
ARERBEENKBIBBEROT

Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
BREESMRK FE BE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020
—E-EHF —E-EZHF —ECEHF
t=ZA=+—H t=ZA=+—H t=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T AR¥EFR
Not later than one year TIBR—4F 159 (4) 155
Later than one year and not BR—FETERWTE
later than two years - - -
Later than two years and not ERMTFETNERAT
later than five years - - -
Later than five years BRASF - - -
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+_A=1+—H 159 (4) 155
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
REBEERRK A2 RE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2019 2019
—E-NF —E-NF —E-hF
+t-A=+—H8 +=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARBT T
Not later than one year PEBR—F 5,660 (484) 5,176
Later than one year and not BR—FETERWE
later than two years 1,314 (91) 1,223
Later than two years and not EBRAMTFETMNERAT
later than five years 168 (22) 146
Later than five years BRASF - - -
At 31 December 2019 R-BE-NAF+-A=+—H 7,142 (597) 6,545

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

26. LEASES (CONTINUED) 26. HE (&)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as HEEHHNME (FREABA) (&)
lessee) (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEE (&)
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: RARBENKBRESNTA
2020 2019
—EB-EF —ZT-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T AREFT
Current liabilities DER=Ri 155 5176
Non-current liabilities FRBARE - 1,369
155 6,545
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. R
2020 2019
— —E-NF
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
ERREA ®8 TERHE T
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
Tk AR%¥Tx Tk AREFT
Authorised: ESE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE BITHERR
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—ARK
+=-A=+—H 5,000,000 407,450 5,000,000 407,450
Issued and fully paid: BRETRHE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREE BT EER
At 1 January and 31 December R—H—BRK
+-A=+—H 1,731,433 142,004 1,731,433 142,004

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all shareholders on
20 December 2011. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The total number
of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group to each grantee in any 12-month period
share shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being. Any further grant of options in excess of the limit is
subject to shareholders’approval in general meeting.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Hong Kong Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

28. IERGEERO/ER 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 17 December 2015, options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 70,000,000 shares of the Company were granted by the
Company to the existing directors and employees of the Group
under the Share Option Scheme (“2015 Scheme”). 30% of
share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2016 to 19
December 2021 (“Share Option 17), 30% of share options have
an exercise period from 1 June 2017 to 19 December 2021
(“Share Option 2"); and the remaining share options have an
exercise period from 1 June 2018 to 19 December 2021 (“Share
Option 3"). All share options are subject to the fulfillment of
relevant profit targets by the Group, and share options shall not
be vested if any of the profit targets is failed to meet.

On 15 January 2018, options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 90,200,000 shares of the Company were granted by the
Company to the existing directors and employees of the Group
under the Share Option Scheme (“2018 Scheme”). 10% of share
options have an exercise period from 1 June 2018 to 14 January
2023 (“Share Option 4"), 20% of share options have an exercise
period from 1 June 2019 to 14 January 2023 (“Share Option 5"),
30% of share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2020
to 14 January 2023 (“Share Option 6") and the remaining share
options (40%) have an exercise period from 1 June 2021 to 14
January 2023 (“Share Option 7). All share options are subject to
the fulfillment of relevant profit targets by the Group, and share
options shall not be vested if any of the profit targets is failed to
meet.

28. LIESRGEERO/ER 2

(&)
(a)

EHSBRBZERERLA

EREEBRESTE
R-Z—RE+=-A++tH &AF
BEBEREFSNAEBRREES
MiEBRTERE  AJ&EREBAR
7]70,000,000 % f% 0 ([ ZZF — A F 5T
B]) - Erh30% B ENITERE =
E-RNENA-BE-ZE-—F+=
B+hB (TR ]) « 30% BEIRER
AERAE-—ZT—+FA—HBE_-ZT
——F+=At+AhBUEREI] -
MBETHBRENTERRA=ZZ—N\F
NA—HEZZ=-—F+=ZA+1H
(TRERRREN]) - FTEIBREAFAE
EiERBBEEF B ZE®RFAIEE i
RELERBBAAETBE  BRETSE
FAGRE -

R_BE—N\F—A+HH AREIR
EEREFEMNASEREESR
BEFRTBERE JAERBEERQ
7)90,200,000 & & 10 ([ =T — N\ F &t
2l]) - Eh10%BRENTFER A
E-NFNA—BEZZE_=F—A#
T+ (TERRENV]) - 20%BERREH
TEHAE-—FT—NFA—HBZE=
T-=F—A+ImH ([EREV])) -
30%BRIENTERASE_TF N
A—BZ-_Zf-=%—A+mA ([
feiEVI]) + R ER T BEARAE (40%) K97 T
A2 - —FA—HzZ-Z2—_=
F—A+HA (EREVN]D B
BEREASASEERBERNER
B AAIEE - fWREEEKBRBETF B
= BRETSTUESE -

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UESEEROABER 2T
(CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (a) EmEEBERETE (&)
(Continued)
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: R R B RERTIB 0T -
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
R AH HEAH T8 e BEKHE
HKS
BT
Share Option 1 17 December 2015 31 May 2016 1 June 2016 to 1046 Profit after income tax (but before share-
Bk —T-1% ZT-RF 19 December 2021 based payment expenses) according to the
+ZA+tH AAZT-H ZE-KF audited consolidated financial statements of
NA—HE the Company for the year ended 31 December
“E-F 2015
TZA+thAE

- Equal to or more than RMB35 million,
100% of Share Option 1 shall be vested;

- Equal to or more than RMB25 million but
less than RMB35 million, 50% of Share
Option 1 shall be vested; and

- Less than RMB25 million, no Share Option
1 shall be vested.

BEARRBE_Z-RFt_A=1—
HUFRNEEREAMBRE  KAE
Bt (EARINBR BRI B ) Kol

- HERSENARESSHEL QA
FEBREIK100%

- HEERIERARESBETEIR
AREISHET  ARBERE
H50% ; B

- PIARBSHEL ABERESR
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UESEEROABER 2T
(CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (a) EREEBERESE (&)
(Continued)
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
REBH BEAH e e BEKHE
HKS
BT
Share Option 2~ 17 December 2015 31 May 2017 1June 2017 to 1.046  Profit after income tax (but before share-
Bk —2-1F S 19 December 2021 based payment expenses) according to the
+-A++tH AA=Z+-H ZE—+F audited consolidated financial statements of
NAE—HZE the Company for the year ended 31 December
ZECF 2016
+ZA+hA

- Equal to or more than RMB65 million,
100% of Share Option 2 shall be vested;

- Equal to or more than RMB50 million but
less than RMB65 million, 50% of Share
Option 2 shall be vested; and

- Less than RMB25 million, no Share Option
2 shall be vested.

BEARBAHE-Z—RF+_A=1—
ALEFENEBEZGARMBRE RIS
W ERIBR RO RAZ) #aH

- BENSERARESEET BB
FBERAEI/100%

- HEEREZRARESOEETEIR
ARESEETL  AIEGBERE
#50% : &

- SRARBLEEL ABERER
Rxigl -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

28. LIERGEERO/ER 2

(CONTINUED) (#&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (a) EmEEBERETE (&)
(Continued)
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
REBH BEAH TEH TRE SBEEY
HKS
BT
Share Option3 17 December 2015 31 May 2018 1June 2018 to 1.046  Profit after income tax (but before share-
BN —E-1F —E-N\F 19 December 2021 based payment expenses) according to the
+ZA+tH AA=+—8 ZB-N\F audited consolidated financial statements of
NRE—HZE the Company for the year ended 31 December
“Z=-F 2017
+ZRA+hB

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

- Equal to or more than RMB100 million,
100% of Share Option 3 shall be vested;

- Equal to or more than RMB80 million but
less than RMB100 million, 50% of Share
Option 3 shall be vested; and

- Less than RMB80 million, no Share Option
3 shall be vested.

RERATHE-F—LF A=t
ALEEOEEREASHER RS
R UBRIBRANREL) A

- BERIZRAREI0EET 8l
B BRI NH1000% :

— HEEREERAREOBETEIR
ARBI00BET  AIAGBERE
1189 500% @ &

- SRAREBEL  NBARER
AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. LEREERO/ER 2T
(CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (a) EREEBERESE (&)
(Continued)
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
REBH BEAH TEH THE SEEY
HKS
BT
Share Option4 15 January 2018 31 May 2018 1 June 2018 to 0842  Profit after income tax (but before share-
BikEy —E-N\F ZE-N\E 14 January 2023 based payment expenses) according to the
—ATHA AA=+—8 ZE-N\% audited consolidated financial statements of
NAE—HZE the Company for the year ended 31 December
“Z-=F 2017
—RA+mA

- Equal to or more than RMB100 million,
100% of Share Option 4 shall be vested;

- Equal to or more than RMB8O million but
less than RMB100 million, 50% of Share
Option 4 shall be vested; and

- Less than RMB80 million, no Share Option
4 shall be vested.

RERATHE-F—LF A=t
ALLEEOEFREASHER RS
R UBRIBRANRED) A

- BEREZAARBI10EET 8
BEBBRIEVE100%

- HEREZRAREOEETEIR
ARBI0BET  AAGBERE
IVEY50% ¢ K&

- SRARBOEET ABEREER
R

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme

(Continued)

Date of grant

BHAH

Vesting date
BEAH

Exercise period

T

28. LIERGEERO/ER 2

(%)

(a) EaEAERRETS (&)

Exercise price
1@

HKS

BT

Vesting conditions

BE&AG

Share Option 5
By

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

15 January 2018
—T-N\F
—AThA

31 May 2019
ZT-NE
ER=+-8H

1June 2019to 14
January 2023

“E-NEF
AA-BE=Z

—=¥—-HA+mA

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

0.842

Profit after income tax (but before share-
based payment expenses) according to the
audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018

- Equal to or more than RMB150 million,
100% of Share Option 5 shall be vested;

- Equal to or more than RMB100 million but
less than RMB150 million, 50% of Share
Option 5 shall be vested; and

- Less than RMB100 million, no Share
Option 5 shall be vested.

BREARRBE_Z-\Ft_A=1—
RIEFENEEREAMBRE  BFE
Bt (EARINBR BRI R ) KA

- HERIZAARE10EE T 8l
B SRBIBIEV A 100% :

- HEREZRARKI0EETED
RARBISOEETL MIARBER
EVEIS0%: &

- SRARKI0BET NEERE
Y o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

28. LIESRGEERO/ER 2

(CONTINUED) (%)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (a) EREEBERESE (&)
(Continued)
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
REBH BEAH TEH THE SEEY
HKS
BT
Share Option6 15 January 2018 31 May 2020 1 June 2020 to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-
BiREV —E-N\F ZZCZ%F 14 January 2023 based payment expenses) according to the
—ATHA AA=+—H ZB=TF audited consolidated financial statements of
NA—BZEZ% the Company for the year ended 31 December
—=¥—-A+mA 2019

EHSBRBZERERLA

- Equal to or more than RMB200 million,
100% of Share Option 6 shall be vested;

- Equal to or more than RMB150 million but
less than RMB200 million, 50% of Share
Option 6 shall be vested; and

- Less than RMB150 million, no Share
Option 6 shall be vested.

RERATHE-F-NFT A=
ALEEOEFREASHER RIS
R UBRIBRANRED) A

- BEREZAARB200EET 8
B 5B EVIH) 100% :

- HEERRZRAREIS0OEETLED
RARE0BET  AEFRBRK
TEVIEIS50% : &

- PRAR®IS0BEETT:
B -

AIBERE

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme

(Continued)

Date of grant

BHAH

Vesting date
BEAH

Exercise period

T

28. LIERGEERO/ER 2

(%)

(a) EaEAERRETS (&)

Exercise price
1@

HKS

BT

Vesting conditions

BE&AG

Share Option 7
BREVI

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

15 January 2018
—T-N\F
—AThA

31 May 2021
g

TA=+—H

1June 2021 to
14 January 2023
—Eo—F
NRE—HZE
—TZ=%F
—A+mA

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

0.842

Profit after income tax (but before share-based
payment expenses) according to the audited
consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ending 31 December
2020

- Equal to or more than RMB250 million,
100% of Share Option 7 shall be vested;

- Equal to or more than RMB200 million but
less than RMB250 million, 50% of Share
Option 7 shall be vested; and

- Less than RMB200 million, no Share
Option 7 shall be vested.

BEARAHE-Z-_TF+-_A=1—
AL FENEERGATERE BB
M ERMBRDAREL) GEF

- BERIZRARES0EET Al
BE BB VI 100% |

- HERRZRARBE00HETED
RARESBETT  AIEGBREK
FEVIIE50% : [

- PRARE0EEL ABERE
BRI



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UEREERODAER IR
(CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (a) EmEEBERETE (&)

(Continued)

Set out below are details of movements of the outstanding
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

TREIHE_Z_EFR=_TN
FHZ A=t B LFEREERE
AR B AR RTTEBRENE S F

1
Number of share options
BREHE

Outstanding

asat
Qutstanding 31 December Outstanding
asat Addition Exercised lapsed 2019 and  Addition  Exercised Lapsed asat
Bxercise T January during during duing  1January during during during 31 December
price 2019 the year the year the year* 2020 the year theyear  theyear* 2020

i

“2-nE
t=A8 i
S =+-BR RC0RE
“ENE et 33 =y
—A-H -B-8 Zt-f

IEE WATE  FARE  FROR  EAK HAGE

FRRE  FRTE RN HATE

2155cheme  ZE-1F

HiE |
Directors EZ HKS1.046 70 18,500,000 - - - 18,500,000 - - (500,000) 18,000,000
Employees EE HKS1.046 7C 27,500,000 - - (2500000/* 25,000,000 - - (4,000,000)* 21,000,000
2185cheme  —E-NE

HE |
Directors % HKSO8Q BT 1 1,500,000 - - (1,150000) 10,350,000 - - (3,810,000 6,540,000
Employees EE HKS0842 T 54400,000 - - (18670000 35,730,000 - - (17,610,000)* 18,120,000
Total et 111,900,000 - - (223200000 89,580,000 - - (25920,000) 63,660,000

*

Lapsed share options were resulted from the resignation of
employees and a failure by the employees to satisfy the vesting
conditions for the respective years.

: HESBRBRIRAENESFENRTEB

G S BRI -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UESEEROABER 2T
(CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (a) EmEEBERETE (&)
(Continued)
Share options and weighted average exercise price are as s BB B AR A R INAE 91T (R (B
follows for the reporting periods presented: 25T
2020 2019
. i —E-hF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
ke g ¥
# A TEE #H 171818
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BREKRITE 89,580,000 0.941 111,900,000 0.926
Granted [ - - - -
Exercised [RESELS - - - -
Lapsed B (25,920,000) 0.877 (22,320,000 0.865
Outstanding at 31 December A+ =HA=+—H
e AR TT 63,660,000 0.967 89,580,000 0.941
Exercisable at the end RERAITHE
of the year 59,796,000 0.996 65,664,000 1.101
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted FREARITEE IR MEFHF
average remaining contractual life of 1.4 years (2019: 2.6 years) BRANHBR A 14F (ZZ—NF 26
and the exercise price of HK$0.967 (2019: HK$0.941). F)  TEBAEGIBIT(ZE—N
F 094 BT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme
(Continued)
2015 Scheme
The total fair value of the share options under 2015 Scheme at
the grant date on 17 December 2015 was HK$43,472,000. The
following information is relevant in the determination of the fair

28. LIESRGEERO/ER 2

(%)

(a) MEmAHEBEREE (8
—E-AFHE
R-F-—RAF+_A+TLRELER
2)  RE-T-AFE BRE

A TABLERE 43,472,000 70 o LA

value of options. AEBRETERENAFENER -
Share Share Share Weighted

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 average

BRI BREN BREN InAEY¥ 13

Option pricing model used o AH B A E ERE Binomial
option pricing

“IHEREEE

Fair value per option at REH BEBREHERE HKSO51787C  HKS057/7T  HKS062/E 7T HKS0.57278 78

grant date ZRTE

Exercise price 1TE1E HK$1.046 78 7T
Contractual life B HVERIR 6 years F
Expected volatility B IR 83%
Expected dividend rate EHREE -
Risk-free interest rate [, B2 71| 2= 1.17%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the last three years. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no share
option expenses was recognised in expense in relation to share
options under 2015 Scheme.

Of the total number of share options outstanding as at 31
December 2020, no share option had not vested and were not
exercisable as at 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

RIERT BB VR R Z 5T B RN
RERRIIREBE=F8ARENSR
AEEAMEERSY - TBREARE

RERHEF A BEE N FEBTEKE
REE -
BE_T_ZER-_FT-NF+_HA

=t—RHIEFE- ﬁﬁ?ﬁ_f hE
RIS B 2 F S RER AR T -

‘_?_$¢+ H +— EIE’Jr‘ﬁE

:E_giﬂ— H —l— Eﬂiﬁéﬁm%

HRETE(ZE-NF:FT) o
EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH



216

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Equity-settled share option scheme
(Continued)

2018 Scheme

The total fair value of the share options under 2018 Scheme
at the grant date on 15 January 2018 was RMB31,850,000. The
following information is relevant in the determination of the fair

28. t;g%é%%ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁZﬁ%k

(a)

EREEBRETS (8)
—E-N\E5E
RZE-NF—A+RBEHH
B) BB \Fit38 - ERE
Z AT EEEE A AR 31,850,000 7T ©

value of options. LT ABRAEEBREN A FENE
B} o
Share Share Share Share Weighted
Option 4 Option 5 Option 6 Option7 average
BREV BREV BREV BREWI mEFH
Option pricing model used ERMOBRETERR Binornial
option pricing
ZHEEE R
Fair value per option at REWLBAGHERE
grant date ZTHE HKS026387C  HKS030/87L  HKS033IL  HKS035/IL  HKS033ATT
Exercise price TR E HKS0.842 78 7T
Contractual life BHER 5 years &
Expected volatility HEKE 59%
Expected dividend rate HEREX 2%
Risk-free interest rate ZRERBFE 167%
The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation RIEFHIRBRIMAIFER Z 5T 2 AR

of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the last three years. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, total share option
expenses of approximately RMB nil (2019: RMB449,000) was
recognised in expense in relation to share options under 2018
Scheme. Total share option expenses of approximately RMB nil
(2019:RMB2,169,000) was reversed from expense in relation to
share options under 2018 Scheme due to the failure to satisfy
the vesting conditions.

Of the total number of share options outstanding as at 31
December 2020, 21,552,000 share options had not vested and
were not exercisable as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 37,716,000
share options).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

BERRVREBE=F8ARENS
AEEAMEERSY - TBRE AR

R H L E) Al se ¥ N P E(E AR E
R 2o
BE-_Z-_ZTHF+_A=+—HItF

ER—F— \F:I 2B BB
BERETHAREZ T(ZE—NF:
AR#44000070) MR AR T - AR
ReemERBIRG  BERERX
PDARBZT(ZZE—NF: AR
2,169,0007C) B B = — \F5T 2K
BRERAT D -

N_E-EF+_A=+—HHHRK
TTEEBBREAEE P - 21,552,00010 88
BENR—_ZT_TF+_A=+—H0Xk
ERBE TRETE(CZE—NFE:
37,716,00017 BE AR &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UREREERDABER IR
(CONTINUED) (&)

(b) Equity-settled service contract (b) URERZEEZHREELR

On 17 December 2015, the Company entered into separate
services contracts with 5 individual advisors (the “2015
Advisors”) to provide advisory services to the Group for six years.
In consideration of the services provided by the 2015 Advisors,
the Company granted in a total of 6,000,000 share options to
them.

Set out below are details of the share options granted to the
2015 Advisors:

(i) All share options are granted with an exercise price of
HK$1.046 per share;

(i) All holders of share options have to follow the vesting
date, vesting conditions and exercise period under 2015
Scheme as mentioned in note 28(a);

(i) There were no exercised or lapsed share options as at 31
December 2020 (2019: nil).

The total fair values of the share options granted to the
2015 Advisors on 17 December 2015 were approximately
RMB3,000,000. These fair values were based on the terms and
conditions stated in the service contracts.

On 15 January 2018, the Company entered into separate
services contracts with 6 individual advisors (the “2018
Advisors”) to provide advisory services to the Group for five
years. In consideration of the services provided by the 2018
Advisors, the Company granted in a total of 7,800,000 share
options to them.

EHSBRBZERERLA

RZE—RAF+-A++tH KAQF
SRR ZEAARB ([ —E—HFRE
MDptmAEBRE SR SFHE
MRS EI LB REE R - ERZE
—AFEBRERSHRE  AQF
|18 & 7% H A 6,000,000 17 BE A& & o

TXEINET - T - hFERNER

B

() FBEEROEBRENITEES
BER104678TT

iy FBEBRESAADXHE
8@ FE — T —AFEER
EBAH BEGENRTEHAR
MR

iy HNZEBE_ZTF+-_A=+—H"
—NnFE)

RZE—RAF+=ZA+tH &F=
T -RFEBNEREN QT ERE
#) 5 AN R H 30000007 ° ZEAFE
TOiRIE RIS & HOFTSER R AGIFRTE -

RZE—/\F—A+HB  ARQAD
BIENZEABRE ([ ZZE— \FE
MDD BmASERESHAFHNE
MRS LB REELN 1EAZE
—N\FEBRERSHRE  AQF
B 18 &% H A 37,800,000 17 BE J& # o

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 £ =~ =%

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

FrA=+t—RHIFE

(%)

(b) Equity-settled service contract (Continued) (b)
Set out below are details of the share options granted to the

2018 Advisors:

(i) All share options are granted with an exercise price of

HK$0.842 per share;

(i) All holders of share options have to follow the vesting
date, vesting conditions and exercise period under 2018

Scheme as mentioned in note 28(a);

(i) 2,340,000 share options were lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 780,000). There were
no exercised share options as at 31 December 2020 and

2019.

The total fair values of the share options granted to the Advisors
15 January 2018 were RMB2,535,000. These fair values
were based on the terms and conditions stated in the service

contracts.

The weighted average exercise price of the share options under
both 2015 Scheme and 2018 Scheme is HK$0.931 per share and
the weighted average remaining contractual life is 1.6 years

(2019: 2.6 years).

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately RMB
nil (2019: RMB62,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020 in
relation to share options granted by the Company to the 2015

Advisors and 2018 Advisors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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28. LIERGEERO/ER 2

LA*EE%E%ZHE%E n’] nlﬁ
TXHEIETF T \FEBNHER

e A

RIS -

() FBEEROEBRENITEEY
BEMR0842ETT

(i) FEBKRERSEABZHE
@FTIE =T — \Ft 8%
EAH BEBGERTERAR
MR

iy BE_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—
B IF F & A 2,340,000 17 B8 % #
I (ZZF— & 1 780,00017) °
RZE_ZEFR-_ZF-NF
+-A=+—8 HEEKE
T o

RZZ—N\F—A+RHB BT&S
BEEMERENATFELEEAARE
2,535,000 7C ° ZE R FETIIBRIERG
ARFTEIER AR E

—E-AFERZZT-N\FFET
R INEFHITEEAER
093178 7T MEFHFIHRE LR A
16F (ZE—NF 1 26%) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 29. XA B B ARR &R

219

COMPANY
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mo ARET AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARRIKE 48,257 48,257
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE Uk B B8~ B 308 134,265 143,671
182,522 191,928
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T A< RRIE B E A JE UK I8 103 15
Cash and cash equivalents ReAkREEEBEEE 120 265
223 280
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FERT 8 PR I H i FE <P 58 7,451 5,100
Amount due to a shareholder JEAS % R T8 12,409 13,552
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI NGIE /S 135,366 139,800
Dividend payable FET IR E 106 113
155,332 158,565
Net current liabilities REBABEFEE (155,109) (158,285)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZFERABEE 27,413 33,643
NET ASSETS EEFH 27,413 33,643
EQUITY =
Share capital f& A< 27 142,004 142,004
Reserves B 30(b) (114,591) (108,361)
TOTAL EQUITY B 27,413 33,643
On behalf of the Board of directors REREFZ
Zhang Gongjun Vincent Cheng
RAOME BEE
Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director
HITEE BUIHITESE
EHSmREERERAR —ECEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

30. RESERVES 30. %
(a) Group (a) XKEHE
Details of the movements on the Group's reserve are as set out AEEREEDNFBIN GBS
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. gEx -
(b) Company (b) &XAF
Share
Share Exchange option Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
REE ERRE BRERR 2HE8R ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ANRETFT ANRETT ARBTT ANRETT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE-A—-H 217853 8846 32,039 (137.277) 121461
Loss for the year EEER - - - (2314 (231,240
Eichange difference translating BNEBBENELZR
foreign operation - 3589 - - 3589
Total comprehensive income FERENGEE
for the year - 3589 - (231240 (207653)
Equity settled share-based transactions WA ER (R AER 2R 5
(note 28) (B3t 28) - - (2169) - (2,169
Share options lapsed (note 28) BRI IE (P13 08) - - (1857) 1857 -
At 31 December 2019 and RZB-NETZA=+-AR
1 January 2020 “E-2F-F-H 217,853 12,435 28,013 (366,662) (108,361)
Loss for the year EEER - - - (7,33) (7,383)
Exchange difference translating NEBRENELER
foreign operation - 1,113 - - 1,113
Total comprehensive income ERREYERE
for the year - 1,113 - (7,383) (6,230)
Share options lapsed (note 28) BRI IE (P13 28) - - (2,727) 2,727 -
At 31 December 2020 RZB-RET-A=+-H 217,853 13,548 25,286 (371,278) (114,591)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. f#f&E (&)

(@

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium account of the Company and Group
represents the excess of the proceeds received over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Reorganisation and represents the difference between
the nominal value of the registered capital and capital
reserve of Guangdong Huijin and the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued pursuant to the
Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the
Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after
tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses) determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve until the
balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity's
registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilized to
offset prior years' losses or to increase capital, provided

(@

(ii)

(iii)

IR 17 % (B

RRARRALE E’JHxﬁ/ﬁf
EEWABFERBL AR
BT EENER -

BOHEE
AEENAHHEFERERNE
£ lEERESEMEARE
AEEOHEERARRREE
MBETHROMEECHENZE
B

EERE

BIEFRBRBNE  ARERA
B 7 1 Y B /B8 A B] 7B B 10%
BREBEFEARSFTRANETEN
FEEERTERF (KHBRT
ﬁ@&i@@%?%i%ﬁ
EEEeABENZEEHE
ﬁ£$WW%R¢ VETE R
RAUKEATFEBSELAR
HE WEATHBNHRELSG

the remaining balance of the statutory reserve is not less DR M E AR E) 25% ©
than 25% of registered capital.
(iv) Exchange reserve (ivi ERFE

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

EHSBRBZERERLA

X HEERMBRREINE
BIMEPREANMMBEN Z5

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

30. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the
directors, employees and advisors over the vesting
period.

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)
The amount represents accumulative net gains and
losses recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve
comprises all gains/losses arising on the revaluation of
financial assets at FVOCI.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

30. & (&)
HENMERBSE (E)

(c)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

BRERSE
BhEREEENREBHRAE
= EEREEEOBRER
fERZ RAtFX »

REHF(REHER)
ZHIAE N B ERN 2T
N B TRF AR

SFAHMEE KRS REEN AT
=1
FRAEMEEEERHENH QT
BEERFERAFEFARGEZE
WaneREESHELNAAN
Bl A -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

31. B A RSB

TZ2MBARNFEEHIIMT

Description of
fully paid up
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered ownership interest’s/
Name establishment  Place of operation and principal activities capitalheld  voting rights/profit share
fisE iy
e/ HrRA/ fiEkRs,/
£ HUBH BEBRRTERE iMEAHE  REE/FAIERAL
Directly Indirectly
ER 3
Limited liability company
AREEQA
Mega Rising Investment Ltd Hong Kong Provision of financial consultation services in Hong 1 share HKS1 - 100%
Kong
RARERRAT Bh EEERUMBERRE 1A
Sunny Sino Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and provision of other loan 1 share HKS1 - 100%
services in Hong Kong
#2EEERAT B REBRREEARM A E TR 1R1BT
Flying Investment The PRC Provision of financial consultation and investment HK$50,000,000 - 100%
income services in the PRC
EBEE HE EhEREHBER A RARS 5000000078 7T
Qianhai Flying Financial PRC Service (Shenzhen) Limited ~ The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC HK$300,000,000 - 100%
AEERE RS (RI)ERAE hE EhE R HRR R 300000000757
Huilian E-Home Internet Financial Services (Shenzhen) The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC - - 90%
(o, Ltd
R 5% ERB S RRH (R ARAR Gl ERBRUNBERRE -
Profit Success Technology Limited The BVI Investment holding company in the BV Uss1 51% -
Profit Success Technology Limited AEARREE ABARRMBNREERAA [E3p
EMSRREERERAR TBRIREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

31. B A AR (&)
TEMBARMREERIIMT - (#)

Description of
fully paid up
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered ownership interest's/
Name establishment  Place of operation and principal activities capitalheld  voting rights/profit share
ERE
e/ g2R%/ ks,
tR HIBY BERSRTEER iMEAHE  REE/ABAIERAM
Directly Indirectly
E# [}
Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet Financial Services The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB50,000,000 - 51%
Corporation
MITEREHESRRHRERAA el ERBRUNBERRE AR 500000007
Shenzhen Huilian Huishenghuo Internet Financial The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC - - 63%
Services Limited
AITEREEEERALBREARAA Gl R ERUIBERRE -
Shenzhen Huilian Huiyoufang Internet Financial The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB7,000,000 - 63%
Services Limited
AIMERESR EHALRREARAA hEl EBRENBRERE AR 70000007
Zhongxi Rongzi Zulin (Shanghai) Limited The PRC Provision of finance lease services in the PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%
hERERE (LE)ARAR Gl EhERfREARERY AR 2000000007
Le Dao Internet Media (Shenzhen) Limited The PRC Provision of finance consultation services in the PRC RMB3,000,000 - 54%
LEERBER (R BRAT HEl EERENBRERS AR 30000007
Shenzhen Huidun Technology Company Ltd. The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB20,000,000 - 89%
AITERNRERAR Gl EhEREHBERRS AR 200000007
Zhongxi Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Limited The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%
hERERA(LE) ARAA Gl BRI BRERE ARH 100000007
Huilian Technology Data Service (Shenzhen) Limited The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB20,000,000 - 90%
EMMREERS (RY) ARAR Giler ErARMHBERRY AR 200000007

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

B B~ Bl RE 15 ()

TZMBARMNFEEHIIMT : (&)

Description of
fully paid up
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered ownership interest’s/
Name establishment  Place of operation and principal activities capitalheld  voting rights/profit share
FiEEE
AREL/ HrRA/ FEERE/
8 HUBH BERSRTEER EMERFEE  REE/ABIRALM
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Huilian Yuanjing Investment Management (Beijing) The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%
Limited
EMERREER (LR ARAR Gl EhEREHBERRS AR 100000007
Shenzhen Qianhai Yuanbo Financial Service Limited The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RIMB5,000,000 - 70%
AImasTaeRRBERAT HEl e BRI BERRE ARHES0000007C
Zhuhai Huilian Zhitou Technology Service Limited The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%
KEEBERNEREFRAR Gl ERERENBERRE AR E 100000007

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

EERARLRAEZARTMBLRE AR
SEAFEXEEEATERHAEEE
EFEZEARD BEFER/MIIHE
B ARZER  HEREBEBNITE -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Profit Success Technology Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Group, has material non-controlling interests (“NCI"). All other NCI of
non-wholly owned subsidiaries are considered as immaterial.

Summarised financial information of Profit Success Group, for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, subsequent to acquisition
and before intra-group eliminations, is presented below on a

32. FERER

S AN A

Profit Success Technology Limited (F 7N &
FES1%EEMMTBAR) A EAIEER
ews ([ ]) -

A&y

PRAEEMIFE RS IR R TEXN -

RKEEEREEARFBR
Profit Success & B & &
—NEF+=A :‘f'* BIEFEMPKER

—EEFRFE

consolidated basis: MEBREEEEZNNMT :
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZT-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTF T
For the year ended 31 December BE+-BA=1+—HLEE
Revenue & - 12,418
Loss for the year FEBE (4,361) (10,203)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEKEETE 9,468 (10,203)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DT IEERER AT (B518) 4,639 (4,999)
Accumulated non-controlling interests REFIE IR 4,382 (257)
For the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=+—HLFE
Cash outflows from operating activities KEEHRESME (4,534) (1,833)
Cash inflows from investing activities KEEZHIESR 3 2,606
Cash inflows from financing activities BEEEIRSRA 4,401 376
As at 31 December R+=HA=+—8H
Current assets mENEE 2,331 3,976
Non-current assets ERBEE 54,227 40,398
Current liabilities mENaE (3,394) (757)
Non-current liabilities E =V - -
Net assets BEFH 53,164 43,617
ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

33. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE 33. BESHE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, BRIZEMBHRREBERIN AEBRE

the Group does not have other material related party transactions EIECEFR-E-NF+A=+—

during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. ALFRITEAMERBERIRS °

Compensation of key management personnel FEEHEEAEBZHE

The emoluments of directors who are also identified as members of REFEE  TEREAEEFTEZEETEENE

key management of the Group during the year are set out in note MESHMSEHRMEE 1) °

11(@).

34. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 34. HEBRERERHTE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (@ EXFBRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash addition to right-of- FR - AEBERRAEFHEENEE
use assets and lease liabilities of approximately RMB2,041,000 ZHMESEAEEENEEAEIE
respectively, in respect of the lease arrangement of the office IR IL L AR 2,041,000 7T ©
buildings
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had non- REZE-_ZE_TF+_HA=+—H
cash disposal to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities with net IEFE AEBEFHEReFERAELEE
amounts of approximately RMB3,138,000 (2019: RMB757,000). PEFBERHAESE FEHNAR

#3,138000L (ZZE—NF : AR¥
757,0007T) °

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

34. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

34. GEBRERERME (&)

i

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) METEMELENEGZYHIER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from

TRHAIAEEE %ﬂﬁ%@)ﬁﬁ?iﬁ’]

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BEZY AEReRIFFESE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which F&Eéé@)ﬁﬁ%iﬂ’]%ﬁZﬂf&*X
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the RenSONAEEREEBRE

EMERALR -

Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

activities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Total
Amount Bank Lease liabilities from
duetoa borrowings Dividends liabilities financing
shareholder (note 24) payable (note 26) activities
REED
BER HESE FEEH
EHBRRSE (Hzt24) ERRS (3t 26) aEas
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT TR ARBTR ARBTT ARETTR
At 1 January 2020 “E-3F-A-H 13,442 14,360 13 6,545 34,460
Changes from cash flows Renes
Advance from a shareholder S 4,436 - - - 4,436
Repayment to a shareholder ENTRE (5,676) - - - (5,676)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTER - (5,345) - - (5:345)
Proceeds from bank borowings RITEFFEE - 6,720 - - 6,720
Lease payment BERT - - - (1,725) (1,725)
Interest paid BfFIE - - - (391) (391)
Payment of interest on bank borowings {7 8B {7 HAIFI & - (793) - - (793)
Total changes from financing cash flows~ BER S REZHEE (1,240) 582 - (2,116) (2,774)
Other changes: EfED
Effective interest expense ERASHY - 793 - 391 1,184
Exchange adjustments LS (696) - (7) (20) (723)
Additions of leases HEEM - - - 2,041 2,041
Derecognition of leases RrERHE - - - (6,686) (6,686)
Total other changes AnEHEE (696) 793 (7) (4,274) (4,184)
As at 31 December 2020 “BCEET-A=T-H 11,506 15,735 106 155 27,502

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ~Z -~ ZT&F+ - A=+—HILFEE

34- n _\éIﬁﬁsﬁiﬁl}ﬁ

I:IE'I'IJ:
0

34. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) METEMELENEGZYHIER
financing activities (Continued) (#&)
Total
Amount Bank Lease liabilties from
duetoa barrowings Dividends Corporate liablities financing
shareholder (note 24) payable bond (note 26) activities
HEEY
RITER HEaE FELR
ERRRE (B 24) ERRE AAER (HtsE20) BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETR
A1 Janary 2019 R-Z-NE-A-B 47 83809 11 55506 - 144205
Changes from cash flows; Renesy:
Increase in amount due to a shareholder ERRRFEEM 8663 - - - - 8663
Repayrent of corporate bond EELTES - - - (56813) - (56813
Repayment of bank borrowings RERTERN - (69449) - - - (69449
Lease payment HENT - - - - (5,031) (5,03)
Interest paid EFIE - - - 2489) (1174 (3659)
Repayment ofntereston bankhorowings B F{TEZNFIE - (2364) - - - (2364
Total changes from financing cash flows BERENERYES 8663 (71813) - (59,299) (6,203) (128653)
Other changes: Hh%
Fffective nterest expense ERFERY - 2364 - 3792 1174 7330
Exchange adjustments B A% - - 2 - 5 7
Recognition on adoption of HKFRS 16 REGEREBREE
EA 5 - - - - 1971 1971
Additions of leases REEN - - - - 1916 1916
Derecognition ofeases BEARE - - - - (2316 (2316
Totalother changes L0 B - 2364 ) 379 12750 18908
s at 31 December 2019 R-E-hETZR=+-H 13402 14360 3 - 6545 34460
EHSRREZERERAT —ECEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

35. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

35. BEHIES
EHME

SESMT ANEE A BOETEMT -

THERMEEREHME

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 2019
“ECEE ZE-NF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
HHE ATE FRE AFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AREFTT AREFL
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABENESREE
- Equity investments -BRRE 231,351 231,351 590,791 590,791
~ Debt investments -ERERE 31,808 31,808 34,640 34,640
Financial assets at FVOC| BATEF AR MZEREN
SHEE
- Equity investments -BuHRE 54,129 54,129 40,300 40300
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKAG EZ e REE
- Loans and accounts receivables —ERRIEMERR 19,896 19,896 60,016 60,016
- Deposits and other receivables —&e RAMEWFR 3,956 3,956 53442 53442
— Amount due from a non-controlling interest  — FE4T3E 3 i e 25 208 1 1 1 1
- Cash and cash equivalents -HekReEBEER 7,324 7,324 16973 16,973
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost X SR ATE 7 SR B E
~ Accruals and other payables —EFERREMERNRIE 45,689 45,689 30,198 30,198
— Amount due to a shareholder - BENRERE 11,506 11,506 13442 13442
- Dividend payable o DE) 106 106 113 113
—Bank borrowings —RITER 15,735 15,735 14,360 16972
~ Lease liabilities -HEEE 155 155 6,545 7,142

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. I EKRER

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise financial asset
at amortised cost, financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVOC|,
loans and accounts receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, accruals and other
payables, lease liabilities, amounts due from a shareholder and a non-
controlling interest and bank borrowings. These financial instruments
mainly arise from its operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated their fair values as at the reporting date. Fair value
estimates are made at a specific point in time and based on relevant
market information on the financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgment, and therefore cannot be determined
with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. As
the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum, the Group
has not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue any derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

AEENTESR T ABEREHKAG
ENSREE  HRAVFESABEHSHE
BE RAVEAAHMEZARRENS R
BE  BERNMERER  Re MEMEK
FE R LAEFEEE - XRHRT
TR B ERRAEMEMNRE  HER
18 MR A KRR B 2 S SR1T 2
R BRECRTAFERAARTEZE -

RBEEEH AEELBRTANKEESR
HRAFERSE - XA FEMGS IR ERE
RESRTANHEBMISEREDL -

HSEHEAEBEEER S RTRT
AEREALMER - BT RREE
it - BRONBATRREYERZHE
it

KEARBESRMTANTIRRERANEE
@ HNERR EERREABESRR
MR A EE R Ll E R E &R RS
B3 4 {5 R ) 07 4 M Hoth T B (E %% A
® o ARBYEFARBITEMITLESH
TRAEEERGZ ARREZTSRALF
BEE AR EBRABE - WHRALT

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value or
future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from changes in
interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments will result in the Group
facing the risk of changes in market interest rate.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balance, interest-bearing bank borrowing and lease liability. The
Group currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of interest
rate risk. However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise. The interest bearing bank borrowing and lease liability bear
floating interest rates and are denominated in RMB.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowing. The
analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of assets and liabilities
outstanding at the end of each of the reporting periods were
outstanding for the whole year. 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the interest rates of borrowing.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent interest rate risk as the exposures at the end of the
reporting periods do not reflect the exposures during the years.

If interest rates on bank borrowing at the end of reporting period had
been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on the Group’s post-tax loss/profit for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follow:

FrA=+t—RHIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 £ =~ =%

36. t#5E b EE ()

F = B
MEEENEEBEXN TR TANDF
@jﬂixiﬁﬁ\mi/ﬁ@}mnﬁ“ ° /%Ejjﬂ
TEKBRASERET SN EZSHNER
|§uuo

AEBHEBEBYBRITHER  FHRRT
fERREERENF ERER - AEE H Al
I IR S EEP A REARAEER < AT -
EREERMNEAR UHERRARE
RFEREAN KRR - 5t BRITERER
SRENFBNEFE  EAARKEDIE -

DA 8= E *ﬁ)ﬂﬁ?ﬁ% SERITIEZF
K@ IMERETIBREER
JiINE= ilﬁiﬁﬂﬂ%hﬂi%f}%ié%ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%f
FEHHAREE 100%%1311&5)3@\ HE
BEFZERNENEER LR

EEERR  ARRESHRZERIY TR
BREAZER  HERES T ARRES
=@ o

MR RS BARMRITERFE LA TR

T00E2h - MATEHMAIE AR IE -
IHAREEBZE S _TFR_FT—NF
TZ A=+ —HLEFERBREEE &5
HOBESZENT -

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

(Increase)/decrease in loss for the year FANEEOGEM RS
As a result of an increase in interest rate —EFIE _EFE (96) (108)
As a result of a decrease in interest rate — A F R TR &R 96 108

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. IR ERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

As the Group's revenue and expenses are mainly in RMB which is the
functional currency of most of the entities making up the Group, the
currency risk resulting from the Group's daily operations is considered
not significant. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
and FVOCI decrease as a result of changes in the levels of the equity
price of unlisted equity investments. The Group was exposed to equity
price risk arising from unlisted equity securities in the PRC classified as
financial assets at FVTPL and FVOCI as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
All of these investments are unquoted securities.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually
against the performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited
information available to the Group, together with an assessment of
their relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.

S8 L B

RN A S M AX T2 UARARE
lmﬁ*“*%m%%E%AE%WE
BAKE R ESEMERNE S AR
BEXe $%@Emlﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁ °
awim - BEEE-EERINERR IR
EREEE M EARINERER

IR 18 L B
P (B L 5 A 3F £ B R B A B K
HE - MBBIZAFESABRZRRAF
Bt ARt 2EKRENEREEN A FE
THHER R_T_FFR_T-NF
+ A=1—H0 AKEHEASBHR
NHEFABRm MERAFEFARMER
WS mMEEZ PEIZE EHBRAESS
HHRERR - AR EDSIFBIERS -

AEENZMEREREHURIRE B
MFFHE - REAKREMSERENRASE
B R EIR A BB - RAOFF—
REFBULETEEORRUEBARZE
Txéf{’ﬁﬁaﬂﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the Group’s equity investments of which the
directors of the Company expect the possible future changes of
financial assets, with all other variables, held constant and before
any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the end of the

36. I EREE (&)

B B L B (AR

HRED
TRINTHARBREZTFEHRREREE
AR B AKERRRE 2 A EEF10%
BRI GURE - DRARREHR KR
BFtE - MAA E 28 =A% B RE

PN
BHIARE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

reporting period.

Decrease/
(increase) in
Increase/ loss before Increase/
(decrease) income tax (decrease)
2020 in fair value expenses in equity
BRET B
NS M Al B e
—BCEF #m,/ (Bd) B/ (i) @,/ (L)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBT R ARBTR
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFABGHSRERE
~ Unlisted equity securities in the PRC —PERIE ETRAE S 10/(10)  23,135/(23,135) -
Financial assets at FVOCl BATEGFAREMEEYE
HeEmEE
- Unlisted equity securities in the PRC — BRI ETRAES 10/(10) - 5,413/(5,413)
Decrease/
(increase) in
Increase/ loss before Increase/
(decrease) income tax (decrease) in
2019 in fair value expenses equity
BRETIS T
RNFE Bl E B e
—T-hF #m/ Cid) A e: i) #m,/ ORd)
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT ARBTTT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABENEHEE
- Unlisted equity securities in the PRC — BRI F TR 5 10/(10) 59,079/(59,079) =
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEFAE M2 E S
- Unlisted equity securities in the PRC —HBMIE LT RAES 10/(10) - 4,030/(4,030)

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. I EAKRERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its cash and cash
equivalents (note 21), loans and accounts receivables (note 18), other
receivables (note 19), amount due from a non-controlling interest
(note 20) and other financial assets at amortised cost and at FVTPL.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL included unlisted debt security
held for strategic purposes. Credit risk refers to issuers to these
financial instruments failing to discharge their obligations under the
terms, leading to a financial loss to the Group. The Group monitors
the financial status and credit rating of individual issuers by reviewing
the financial information provided by issuers on a regular basis. Please
refer to note 17 for the details of the Group’s investments.

In respect of loans and accounts receivables and other receivables, the
Group’s policy is that all borrowers who wish to obtain loans from the
Group are subject to management review. The Group holds collaterals
directly or indirectly to cover its risks associated with loans receivable.

All collaterals of loans and accounts receivables and other receivables
are held directly by the Group.

For loan and accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customers operate. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collaterals from customers on accounts
receivable.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
The Group's exposure under certain outstanding loans and account
receivables are secured by the pledged assets of the customers as
disclosed in note 18.

BEECHTEERR  UBEEEZE
EERRE

AEENEERRIZREERS MRS
HEHEE (HE21) - ERREUER R (K
iE18) ~ E b EUGRIA (MfaE19) ~ B —
FIFE AR SR (M5 20) DA R IR 88 85 AK
At BREAFEFABSENEMEHE
E-BERENEEERER UBBERZ
LZEERR -

AEBRAFEFABSNEREESR
FEBRE B WM FE LM EBES - EERR
BT R TAMNEIT ARERBITIRIA
THEEMaI BN AREBHEEER - K
SEZBTHENBET AR HER
ERERBT AN BN R EETR -
BERASBERENFBFEL2EME 7 -

h B R N MR R e B At R WRIR T E
AEEBRRAEMBERUEAEERSER
MERARCEEBER AREFAR
YR E S EEREEEREFARR

B -

AEBBEESAER MY H iR
WkTE 2 B B o

ER KRR S  HRAEERKET
EESENTPHSETEMNEENE -
I AT (A £ B i H R P A B B H & K
RELRENENES  YEBREPESR
MEREEPEBAREERENER -
—RME  ARETEREBEERATP
YR AR o
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EHRBITEHEERRIERRAMBNY
2o REFETAREZEERTLEKRERDN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MEERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) EERB (&)
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly rEFEAMeREE(Z2REFEReLRE
comprise of cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and financial LEIEE - Hth W EIE R A FERA
assets at FVTPL, arises from potential default of the counterparties, EasemEE) NEERBERERZHF
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these WEBEERD mEaRABRESENRZELA
instruments. Credit risk in cash and cash equivalents and restricted WEEEE ReKASFEEBEE RXRE
cash is mitigated as cash is deposited in banks with high credit rating. ReMEERBRERBRSTREERESR
EFT AR SRT M A& A o
The Group measures loss allowances for accounts receivable at an REBEGFERWERNEERE  ©5848
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision ERNRAREESEGENERABRESR
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not ElELE AR TEENBTEEREL
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different customer BERPSEFPAOB2EANBEENEEXR
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not further =R WERBaBRRKENBEREETER
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases. AEESEFER BEE—FES -
The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure TEREY ZZZZTFR_FT-NF+ZA
to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivable as at 31 December 2020 =+ —HAXRSEEBRMNEKEREERR
and 2019: RIEHEEBRER
Gross
carrying
amount Average Net carrying
brought expected Loss amount after
forward loss rate allowance  impairment
AR Fi9EH REE
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEH+-A=+—H HEREE BEE ERRE REFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR % AR®TRT ARETrR
Current (not past due) BIER (R A) - - - =
0-30 days past due wE0ZE30A - - - =
31-90 days past due B3I ZE0AR - - - -
91-180 days past due #HI91 £ 180 H - - - -
Over 180 days past due @180 BIA L 11,082 100% 11,082 -
11,082 11,082 -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MEERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
Gross
carrying
amount Average Net carrying
brought expected Loss  amount after
forward loss rate allowance impairment
Y T8 %
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H AR E BiEx ikt REFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT % ARETT ARBTRT
Current (not past due) BIER (R H) 4,998 45 (2,270) 2,728
0-30 days past due BHI0OE30R 1,550 29 (445) 1,105
31-90 days past due BE3IZE R 1926 75 (1,435) 491
91-180 days past due #HEIO1 £ 180 H 3,948 28 (1,106) 2,842
Over 180 days past due BHEI180 HIA £ 7213 100 (7,213) -
19,635 (12,469) 7,166

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over one year.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

BHERXIRE-FNEREBRERE
He ZELERTIRHE  ARRIKEBE

SRR LEAR - BRI AR AR

B 5 MR IR R TR IR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group has adopted the general expected credit loss model for
material financial assets in relation to loans and other receivables. A
summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's expected
credit loss model is as follows:

36. K EAMREE (H&)

AEEREERNEMEEFTIEFENE
ReEBMEERM —RIAHAEEHERL -
XEASEEREEEERAZREME
LU

Basis for recognition of

Category Company definition of category expected credit loss provision
5 NAHEENESR RHEFEEERENREIEE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a strong ~ 12-month expected losses. Where the expected

capacity to meet contractual cash flows

) EPENEREK BmEAHRERERK
B BE 1158

Underperforming  Loans and other receivables for which there is
a significant increase in credit risk as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if interest and/or
principal repayments/other receivables are 30 days

past due
BT i F 8 & REEER S H it E YK IER

$308  ABEEERREZEN - R E
0 O P15 B LR R L O £

Non-performing Interest and/or principal repayments/other
receivables are 90 days past due

R FERHEERR S H b FE YK IE 8 H
90 H

Write-off Interest and/or principal repayments/other

receivables are 180 days past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery

1 85 FERKEEERS HAEWFIER
180 H BB Bl /) & 12 78 B

Interest bearing loans receivables are generally pawn loan receivables
and entrusted loan receivables. Other receivables includes amount
due from third parties and income receivables derived from
investment in debt investments at amortised cost.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

lifetime of an asset is less than 12 months, expected
losses are measured at its expected lifetime.

121 AFEHIEE - B ENTAEHFR DM 1218
A - BFEHIEEIRBMERAS -

Lifetime expected losses

FIRATEHERE

Lifetime expected losses

FRATEHERE

Asset is written off

FEMGT B ER—RA B E BRI W
RAER HEYGRERRRRE =7
FIANKBREHR A ENERREN
YA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group accounts for the above items’ credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating
the expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates
for each category of customers/investments, and adjusts for forward-
looking macroeconomic data. The Group provides for credit losses
against loans and other receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019

are as follows:

As at 31 December 2020:

36. I ERERE (&)

EERRE (&)
AEBRBNSHRAREEEEELEE
BEnE LRAMNEERERR - RETHEE
HEEFEXR AEEEEEREF/
BREMBEBEE W HAEERERL
BHIBETHAE AEER-_ZT_TFR
TE-AFT A=t -BRERKEAM
RN EEEBREED HIMT

R-B-BE+-A=+—A8:

Carrying
Basis for Estimated amount
Expected recognition of gross (netof Basis for
Company internal External credit  expected credit carrying impairment calculation of
credit rating credit rating lossrate  loss provision amount provision) interest revenue
REE
HEBEE REEE RAHCEERER fest  (HIBRRE
RARNBEETR TR BEX MHRIEE BIREE BB SENRKEMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBTRE AR®TR
Performing Baal - 12-month expected losses - - Gross carrying amount
% NREARAEE BREE
Underperforming Caal 3.4 Lifetime expected losses 18,503 17,870  Gross carrying amount
) FRABRHER BREE
Non-performing - 100 Lifetime expected losses 191,770 - Gross carrying amount
TR FERABRHER BREE
Total loans and other
receivables
ERRHMERTE
nE 210,273 17,870

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH



240

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019:

36. I EREE (&)

FEER (&)
RZZ-NFt+-A=1+—H8:

Estimated Carrying
Basis for gross amount
Expected  recognition of carrying (netof  Basis for
Company internal External credit  expected credit amount  impairment  calculation of
credit rating credit rating lossrate  loss provision at default provision)  interest revenue
el FHEE
hEEE HHEE ROGEEERERE mfhEt  (FIRRRME
RAINEET ATk BEX MREILE BEEE B SAENSKEMEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT ARETR
Performing Baal 0.1 12-month expected losses 2363 2361 Gross carrying amount
E% REAERSRER BEREE
Underperforming Caal 3.2 Lifetime expected losses 105,377 102,029 Gross carrying amount
2ba FERABHER BERmEE
Non-performing - 100  Lifetime expected losses 108,363 - Gross carrying amount
TR FRARHER BRmEE
Total loans and other
receivables
ERREMmERRE
BE 216,103 104390

No significant changes to estimation techniques or assumptions were

made during the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

The closing loss allowance for loans and other receivables as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 reconciles to the opening loss allowance for

that provision, and the gross carrying amounts are as follows:

36. I ERERE (&)

EEEk (&)
B RN At R W R IR R
—NE+-A=1+—"BnHREBEERAER

— T

—ECRFERE

HMYERRE YR EFRmENT

Under- Non-
Performing performing performing Total
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZF+-A=1+-8 E%E B TR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR  ARBTR AR%TR AR%®Tx
Gross carrying amount for loansand other ~ —ZE-ZTF+-A=+—HER
receivables as at 31 December 2020 REMERTIRRREE - 18,503 191,770 210,273
Less: Expected credit losses: B EHEERR:
Opening balance as at 1 January 2020 —TTE-F-BH0ES 2 3,348 108,363 11,713
- Loss allowance provided for the year - ENEERE - - 86,185 86,185
—~Recovery of impairment of other receivables  — U [B1 £ b FEE U F B A (B (2) 4) (5,375) (5,381)
— Amounts written off as uncollectible — M AEEKE & - (113) - (113)
- Transfer: —-8%:
Under-performing to non-performing WEIETR - (2,597) 2,597 -
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December “ECEE+-A=1—H
2020 HMABEEE - 634 191,770 192,404
Net carrying amount for loans and other “RCRETZA=T-HER
receivables as at 31 December 2020 REMEWFIEREFE - 17,869 - 17,869
EHSRREZERERAT —ECEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MEERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
Under- Non-
Performing performing performing Total
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1+—H i Wx TR w@ar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARETR  ARETR
Gross carrying amount for loansand other ~ —E—AF+=-A=+—HER
recelvables as at 31 December 2019 KA IR B RRE E 2363 105377 108,363 216,103
Less: Expected credit losses: B RBEEESE:
Opening balance as at 1 January 2019 ZE-NE-A-BEUER 54 33 - 87
~ Loss allowance provided for the year - FREBEE (52) 3315 108,363 111,626
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December ~ —E—AF+=-A=+—H
2019 HREBRRGE 2 3,348 108363 111,713
Net carrying amount for loans and other “E-NFTZA=+—HER
recelvables as at 31 December 2019 REMERTIRREFE 2,361 102,029 - 104,390
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of loans and F N 98 E 7R E UK AR F) A K E At FE U 5K
accounts receivables and other receivables during the year is as B BEREZSHOT
follows:
2020 2019
—E-FF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT
Balance at 1 January R—A—BmEH 124,182 15,910
Loss allowance recognised during the year FAEHEREERE 89,535 108,272
Amounts written off as uncollectible HsE AW E £ 58 (113) =
Recovery of impairment of loans and accounts U B JA 73 FE 52 40 & 50 % JE W AR 3K
receivables and other receivables previously R E i B WK IER (B
recognised (10,118) -
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—H8#&#% 203,486 124,182

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Mt#5E b EE ()
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REBESRER
Management of the Group monitors current and expected liquidity AEBEEEERERLERARDEST
requirements to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient reserves of Ko UBRASEREARRAA#KITT
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. EHRSRHENENERSESENK -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RRAE LRI RO EE - REBRR
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, are SHHNeRBENEBBERET
as follows:
Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Repayable Within Within More than
amount cashflow  ondemand lyear  2to5years 5years
BHRMER
REE RENELE RIREE R-FR RZZEFR BENE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARETT AR%ETr ARt AREBTR
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZF+-A=t-H
Accruals and other payables e ERREMENTE 45,689 45,689 - 45,689 - -
Amount due to a shareholder ERRRE 11,506 11,506 11,506 - - -
Dividend payable ) 106 106 - 106 - -
Bank borrowings BITER 15,735 18,105 - 4,446 11,631 2,028
Lease liabilties BERAR 155 159 - 159 - -
73,191 75,565 11,506 50,400 11,631 2,028
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-NE+ZA=1-H
Accruals and other payables B ERRAMERTIER 30,198 30,198 - 30,198 - -
Amount due to a shareholder [ ES 13442 13442 13442 - L -
Dividend payable ERRRE 113 113 - 13 - .
Bank borrowings RITHER 14,360 16972 - 2875 10338 3759
Lease liabilties HERE 6,545 7142 - 5660 1482 -
64,058 67,867 13442 38,846 11,820 3759

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Fair value

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group'’s financial
instruments, other than those carried at amortised costs, are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

36. t#5E b EE ()

AFE
AEBEEa TR (REERANIRERIN
MEEEERAFEMT

Carrying amounts Fair values
HREE ATEHE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EC-EF - ZZ-EZF —NF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR®TR ARBTR
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABEN
SWMEE
— Equity securities — unlisted —JELEMRAFEFH 231,351 590,791 231,351 590,791
- Debt securities - unlisted —FFLEMEBES 31,808 34,640 31,808 34,640
Financial assets at FVOCI BRAFEFTAHEM
2HKBENESREE
— Equity securities - unlisted —JELETRAFEFH 54,129 40,300 54,129 40,300
Management has assessed that the fair values of the financial assets EREEMNMLIRHEEKAT RN ESRHEER
and liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying E%E’] NPEHEAREERLD  TEEH

amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's risk control team is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The risk control team reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the
risk control team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

RzE TATINEHANEE -

AEERBZEHEGFAEEETERTAR
FEFENBRREERF - BREHERE
ERPHAENEZZEERE - RER
SEH - EREVEESTERTAEE
MEE BEGERANIZGARE -
MERTBEESEY - FFRRDH AP
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & —Z —EF+_-A=1+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. IR ERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Fair value (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets are included at the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of equity instruments and debt securities have been
estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation model or guideline
public company marketability model based on assumptions that are
not supported by observable market price or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to make estimates about the expected future
cash flows including expected proceeds on subsequent disposal of
the debt securities.

The directors believe that the estimated fair value of the equity
instruments and debt securities based on valuation technique, and
the related change in fair value, reasonable, and represents the most
appropriate value at end of the reporting period.

D ¥ E ()

TREEZAVTERENRSTET AR
RHZEBRAER BHHBEELETES
EA - ARMERT R FEZITERBRRIT :

BETAREHEFNQFEERILHEA
BEMERERFERERENBRREATE
RenE8HEEAXBELTARMER
BUERAAETE - RERRKEFR[IBEHR
KR enE (BRETEFREEERHR
BIA) °

SRR - BRI BT A
R B 76538 34 5T 2 LA RAABIA T 22
BEBAE - NARE AN RAEE -

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

37. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

37. TR TANQAVFERATFEHER

UWTER-_ZE_2FR-_F—NF+=A
—t+t—HB&mMITAHECERTAEEE

ABUEHIZ -
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable input estimates  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
EXFUER AVERAYE
it BARE st EE ZBRE
As at 31 December 2020
R=2=-%F+-A=1-H
Financial assets at FVTPL
BAVEGFABENEREE
Equity instruments - unlisted Discounted cash flow ~ Market price/selling RMB12,261/sgm - An increase in the market price/selling price of
method - Future price of the RMB46,087/sqm  the properties/lands in the underlying projects
cash flows are properties/lands will result in an increase in the fair value of the
estimated based inthe underlying unlisted equities securities and vice versa.

onexpected return,  projects
discounted at a rate

that reflects risk of
underlying assets
FLMRELA FRASREE  HERENME/L

~REBERSBET  BITE/EE
ARESTE I

URBIAEAER,

COLES T

Timeline of the
underlying projects

HERENERA

Weighted average cost
of capital ("WACC")

I E AR A

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

AR®N61T,/ HEBEMNNE/ Tz mE/EEBLEF
THk- BEBCELTRAZBHFNALELA K
ARB 4608770,/ 2Tk o
Fhk

05 year-3years Earlier receipts of the investment income in the
determination of timeline of each underlying
projects will result in an increase in the fair value
of the unlisted equities securities and vice versa.

0S5E3F EBTIHBEEMNERRERERIRE
WABEEI FTRAZEFORTELT
RZ IR °

4%-93% Anincrease in WACC will result in a decrease
in the fair value of the unlisted equity securities
and vice versa.

4%9F93% METHEARK LA BEHHE EHRA
BHENATETE  R2TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

37. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

37. TR TANQAVFERATEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#&)
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable input estimates  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
EAFTBE ATEBAE
e BAYE EHEE ZSEE
As at 31 December 2020
(Continued)
R-Z-ZF+-A=1+-8
(&)
Financial assets at FVTPL
(Continued)
BROTESABENEREE
(&)
Debt securities - unlisted Discounted cash flow  Credit premium plus 737% Anincrease in the short term interest rate

I EMERES

As at 31 December 2019
R-B-hE+-A=1-H
Financial assets at FVTPL
EAVEN ABENSBAE

Equity instruments - unlisted

FLEMBETA

method - Future
cash flows are
estimated based
on expected return,
discounted at a rate
that reflects risk of
underlying assets
NRBEREE
—RIFTEEE R A
ARBERE I
DRMAHEEE
BB & F) = BE IR

Discounted cash flow
method - Future
cash flows are
estimated based
on expected return,
discounted at a rate
that reflects risk of
underlying assets

NRELREE

— BB R
ARRERE W
R =
2\ fex ) FI| R BE 3R

the average market
mortgage rate

EEREMNFATS
BRER

Market price/selling

price of the
properties/lands
in the underlying
projects

REEENYE/

wemE/ &8

7.37%

RMB12,261/sqm -
RMB46,087/sqm

AR# 122617/
k-
AR 4608771,/
ok

EHSBRBZERERLA

will result in a decrease in the fair value of the
unlisted debt securities and vice versa.

EHME EAREIE EMEHESNHA
FETRE  R2TH%

An increase in the market price/selling price of
the properties/lands in the underlying projects
will result in an increase in the fair value of the
unlisted equities securities and vice versa.

RBRENYE LB/ EELT
BEELMRABSNLFELT R
ZIR e

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R I ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

37. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Significant
Valuation unobservable input

EATTHE
18 BAE

37. TR TANQAVFERATEHER

(%)

Range of
estimates

T EE

Sensitivity of the input to fair value
AFERABE
ZBRE

Timeline of the
underlying projects

RRERNERR

Weighted average cost
of capital ("WACC")

T E R
As at 31 December 2019
(Continued)
RZB-AF+ZA=+-H
(&)
Financial assets at FVTPL
(Continued)
BAVEGABENEREE
(&)
Debt securities - unlisted Discounted cash flow  Credit premium plus
method - Future the average market
cash flows are mortgage rate

estimated based
on expected return,
discounted at a rate
that reflects risk of
underlying assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

0.5 year - 3 years

05SEE3E

9.4% - 11.3%

94% % 11.3%

7.37%

Earlier receipts of the investment income in the
determination of timeline of each underlying
projects will result in an increase in the fair value
of the unlisted equities securities and vice versa.
EERABERNRRRSRFUREE
WAREHIE EMRARFNAFELT -
RZ TR o

An increase in WACC will result in a decrease
in the fair value of the unlisted equity securities
and vice versa.
MEFHERRA LA BERFE LARA
BHEHDFETE  R2TA -

An increase in the short term interest rate
will result in a decrease in the fair value of the
unlisted debt securities and vice versa.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

37. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

37. TR TANQAVFERATEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable input estimates  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
EXFUER AVERABE
18 BAE HHEE ZBBE
FLEMERES FRESREZE  FEERENTHETS 737% REEHNE RSBk LTEBEFNA
-REFHO RS RBEE FETR RZHA-
ARBERE I
NRBRAEEE
R M R BL IR
Financial assets at FVOCI
Equity instruments - unlisted Guideline public Discount for lack 10.08%  Anincrease in the discount rate will result in a
company method of marketability decrease in the fair value of the unlisted equity
- Analysing the ('DLOM") securities and vice versa.
data and valuation
multiples of
publicly listed
companies that
can be considered
comparable to
those being valued
BRAFEFAREBZEKED
tREE
FLmRELA BELTRARE Mz msRdtE 1008% HHREFAREHE LIRAEFNOLT
— A HZERAEE BT R2THA-
ABERME®
RARAE LR
RRIMEE R
B

EHSBRBZERERLA

—ECREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME(E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. ERMTEAEMNATFERAFERER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRAREESRTIANATVETEER:

the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BAFENEEE:

Fair value measurement using
ERATHRENATLENE

Quoted price Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BEATEHE EXTAUEE

ERTERE BAHE WABE

(B-BHR) (EZER (F=EH) @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETIT ARETR
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-BE+-A=+—H
Financial assets at FVTPL BOTEFAHMBREMN
CRMEE
- Equity securities - unlisted — I EMBRAES - - 231,351 231,351
- Debt securities - unlisted —FLTEBES - - 31,808 31,808
Financial assets at FVOCI BOATEFAEMZEKEN
CREE
— Equity securities — unlisted —FLETRAFES - 54,129 - 54,129
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+=-A=+—8H
Financial assets at FVTPL BOTEFAHMBREMN
CREE
- Equity securities - unlisted - LETBRAES - - 590,791 590,791
- Debt securities - unlisted — I LMEBES - - 34,640 34,640
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAHMEZEKEN
CREE
- Equity securities - unlisted —JELTRAER - - 40,300 40,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R M ERARMIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z -EF+-A=+—HILFZ

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. SR I ANAFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEERBR(E)
The movements during the period in the balance of these level 3 fair FoBRATEFTEHRENHANZESHNT

value measurements are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-FF i
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥F ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABRNSREE
Unlisted equity securities FELMiE=ES
At 1 January ®n—H—H 590,791 1,211,129
Purchases EE - -
Disposal & - (94,490)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss 4 AEH A I8 25 ) A F (B &

during the year (359,440) (525,848)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 231,351 590,791
Unlisted debt securities ELETEBES
At 1 January n—H—H 34,640 33,380
Disposal e - (1,841)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss  F R ABZH A FEEH)

during the year (2,832) 3,101
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—81 31,808 34,640

EHSRRBZERERAE —T-TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & — T T+ - A =+—H I FE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. eMTANAFERDFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEER (&)
2020 2019
i —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBF T
Financial assets at FVOCI BRAFEFAHMZEREN
tHMEE
Unlisted equity securities JE MR B S
At 1 January ®n—H—H 40,300 62,348
Disposal & - (11,400)
Changes in fair value recognised in other FARAEMEE RS ERE
comprehensive income during the year NEEEZH 13,829 (10,648)
Transfer to Level 2 EEF_ER (54,129) -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H - 40,300
During the year, the fair value of financial assets at FVOC| were valued FR - EAFEFAEGBE2AKZH SR
using the recent transaction approach. The fair value measurement BEMRFEDNFERAOBERZEBE -2
was reclassified to Level 2 (2019: Level 3). FEFAEDEFHEE_ER(ZET—HN
FEZER) -
The Group did not have any liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 AREBR-_ZE-_TFER-_T—NF+-A
December 2020 and 2019. —+—RTEZATEFENEE -
38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXERERE
The Group’s capital management objectives include: REBEMNEAREREBIEZERE
() tosafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, () REASETHESCENESD g
so that it continues to provide returns for owner’s benefits for BEAEME NREERY AHMERR
other stakeholders; B ANEIFEF S
(i) tosupport the Group’s stability and growth; and iy ZFEAEEMNBEMER: K
(i) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group’s (i)  FREEARLAINRAE B AR E IR AL
risk management capability. 7 e
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital AEBERBGWFHERNNEEREEAREE
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder’s returns, AR R ERRIBBME REENRT ARE
taking into consideration the future capital requirements of the Group BlERERR  EPEEEAEFMHKRK
and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected BARAFRKRERS & - ERI AR EENTE
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected Bl g RS RERA - BEXRFAZEAR
strategic investment opportunities. TEHIREE IR B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R MIEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Management regards total equity as capital which comprise share
capital, reserves and non-controlling interests. The amount of capital
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB301,703,000
(2019: RMB757,229,000). Management considers the current capital
structure as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the projected strategic investment opportunities.

39. LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

1.

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 26
March 2021, a writ of civil summons has been issued in
PRC against Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo, two PRC subsidiaries of
the Company (namely, Qianhai Flying Financial PRC Service
(Shenzhen) Limited and Flying Investment Service (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) and the Company in October 2020 in
relation to the repayment of certain loans and interest accrued
thereon (the “Writ"). Pursuant to the Writ, (i) Mr. Zheng was
demanded for the repayment of an aggregate amount of
RMB16,306,300 (“Claimed Amount”), alleging to be the principal
and interest accrued thereon pursuant to a loan agreement in
2019; (i) Ms. Guo, the Company, two PRC subsidiaries of the
Company and a number of PRC companies independent to the
Group were alleged to be guarantors of the Claimed Amount
under a guarantee in 2019 in favour of the claimant under the
Writ to secure the Claimed Amount. Mr. Zheng has actively
liaised with the claimant to resolve the matter. As of the date
of this report, no settlement has been concluded in respect
of the writ. The directors of the Company, having taken into
consideration the advices from the Group's PRC legal counsels,
believe it is probable that the Group has to bear the Claimed
Amount, accordingly, a provision for loss under the guarantee
of RMB16,306,300 has been provided for the year ended
31 December 2020 and included in other payables as at 31
December 2020.

As detailed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
as of the date of this report, the Investigation by the Bureau
is still ongoing. Based on current information available and
advices from the Group’s PRC legal counsels, the directors of
the Company are view that the potential claims that might
arise from the Unsettled Repayment Funds would be limited to
the Seized Assets under the Guarantee Documents and assets
owned by SZ Flying Internet Financial which mainly included (i)
one of the Seized Assets; (i) amount due from group companies
of approximately RMB1,990,000 and (iii) and other assets of
approximately RMB426,000 as at 31 December 2020. As the
Investigation is still in progress and no decision has been made
by the court or Bureau, the directors of the Company, taken
advices from the Group’s PRC legal counsels, are of the view
that a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations of the
Group under the claims cannot be made and accordingly no
provision has been recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R M EE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 — T T F&+ - A=+—HILFE

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

41.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Subsequent to the reporting date, there are some changes in the

board of directors of the Company as follows:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Mr. Hsu Tawei has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director, a member of the audit committee, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the nomination committee of the Company with effect from
1 March 2021. Details of which are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 1 March 2021.

Mr. Zheng has resigned from his office as an chairman,
executive director, chief executive officer (the “CEQ"), authorised
representative and compliance officer of the Company with
effect from 26 March 2021. Details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 26 March 2021.

Ms. Guo has been temporarily suspended the executive and/
or administrative duties and powers as an executive director,
a member of the nomination committee of the Company,
and all of her other positions in the Group with effect from
26 March 2021. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 26 March 2021.

Mr. Zhang Gongjun, an executive Director, has been
redesignated as the chairman, CEO, authorised representative
and compliance officer of the Company to replace Mr. Zheng
with effect from 26 March 2021. Details of which are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 26 March 2021.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2021.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHME

Below is a summary of the Group's results for the last five financial years
and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020, 2019,
2018, 2017 and 2016, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017 and
2016. The amounts set out in this financial summary are prepared as if the
current structure of the Group had been in existence throughout the years
presented.

TRAAEEBREAAMBFEX£ERNIEE
RZE-ZEF - —_F—NF T \F =&
—tFER_E-RFT+_A=+—"HWHNEEK
BEME  NEKEERREE_ZE_TF - =
E-NE - —E-)\E —E—F+EK-ZFT—X
F+A=+—HULFELEZYBRE o L&
B EMS BB AN EEIR B RBBAAAT

EREENEGEMMRE -
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“WBw  meom  mw e e
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT
Revenue Wegs 19,721 104,390 220,353 384,604 289,162
Other (expense)/income, net Hib (X)) MAFE 12,675 (3,022) 3,984 643 2,668
Employee benefit expenses EEBRAES (25,322) (48,847) (68,120) (59,141) (48,058)
Other administrative expenses Hie TE( Fx (28,552) (53,101) (71629 (79,017) (78,992)
Fair value changes in financial assets at fair value A FEFABENEREE
through profit or loss NFEZE (362,272)  (522747) 65133 - -
Impairment loss on goodwil BERESS - (48316) - - -
Impairment loss on intangible asset BVEERERR - (19810) - - -
Loss allowance on financial assets CHEEBERG (89,535) (108,272) (13,243) - -
Equity-settled share-based payments Nign SR 753% AN - 2,169 (7,607) (7,248) (21,009
Share of results of a joint venture BIEABRRIZEE - - 7,553 868 (661)
Finance costs BB (1,184) (7,330 (15127) (16,890) (7,790
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BRETERES A (BR) &H (490,775) (704,886) 121,297 223819 135320
Income tax credit/(expense) FEHEL,/ (A 20,428 5624 (22,372) (70961) (31,886)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B8) /55 (470,347) (699,262) 98925 152,859 103434
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 e
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: M & EH AR EBHMIAR !
~ Changes in fair value of equity investments ﬂ‘ﬂ@$f§§ﬂ\ﬁfﬁﬁ%@
at fair value through other comprehensive ”ﬁlﬁn MRERE
income ATEED 13,829 (10,648) 999 - -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEMgEN»BEEEN
to profit or loss: ER : )
- Exchange differences on translating /i’ﬂ\if%?ﬁ% f0E 3 2= 8
foreign operations o ) 965 (4,083) 6,990 (2,870) 3972
~ Change in fair value available-for-sale -AHLEREATEED
investment - - 810
Total comprehensive income for the year EEPENHLEE (455,553) (713,993) 106,914 150,798 107,406
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: ELERE (BB) /RF
Owners of the Company N/NIE 7SN (468,725) (673,713) 102,575 152,762 101323
Non-controlling interests R (1,622) (25,549) (3,650) 9% 2111
(470,347) (699,262) 98925 152,858 103,434
Total comprehensive income for the year FHEEZENRLBE
attributable to: "
Owners of the Company AUN T@EA (455,972) (688,444) 110,564 150,702 105,295
Non-controlling interests R ER 419 (25,549) (3,650) % 2111
(455,553) (713993) 106914 150,798 107,406
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ﬁé&%%
Total assets BER 394,665 854,816 1,743,025 1,126,165 988,169
Total liabilities afae %E (92,962) (97,587) (269,860) (225472) (216478)
Net assets BEFH 301,703 757,229 1,473,165 900,693 771691
EMSRREERERAR TBRIREER
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REVEHE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 A —Z - T4+ - HA=+—H

Attributable

interest of
Location Building Usage Tenure the Group
rEE
vE BFAR ERAEH &4 #E 22
Unit 3201-3212, Block D of Area 1 The investment property comprises Granted the land use rights of 100%
in Shenzhen Bay Technology and 12 apartment units on level 32 of a the property until 17 August
Ecological Park, West of Shahexi residential building completed in 2061.
Road and South of Baishi Road, about 2016.
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the
PRC
mERIITEILRAAMEKEY ZREVEBER-_Z-RFLhA BERZIVENLHMEREZR 100%

AT EORINERHT R &
DEE320IEINNE

BIHN—REEEREBEHNRER
BEA o
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